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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A 5 i

For the year ended 31 December &%+ —H=4+—HIFF/E

Consolidated Results mE¥EE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t-HLEFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C& —E-—% —E-TF “E-NF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THET TET TET
Continuing operations HEREER

REVENUE tam 1,617,467 5,504,341 6,766,470 9,767,512 1,873,968
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BEE (518) /%F (1,061,783) 223,798 (351,283) 1,000,740 286,419
INCOME TAX CREDITAEXPENSE) FrEfiike /(%) 150,519 (3,541) (29,629) (532,545) (106,344)

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE RERBECLERNAEE

YEAR FROM CONTINUING (1), &H

OPERATIONS (911,264) 220,257 (380,912) 468,195 180,075
Discontinued operations DRILEREEYR
PROFIT/ALOSS) FOR THE YEAR BB AR S 2781

FROM DISCONTINUED KEEHF/ (BB)

OPERATIONS = 84,452 (409,710) 30,830 (18,238)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A4 [E (B18) /&7 (911,264) 304,709 (790,622) 499,025 161,837
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE AT ATJE(L (E18) /

T0; et

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY  AZRAFIEA A (787,049) 334,621 (735,144) 385,850 103,138

NON-CONTROLLING FeE

INTERESTS (124,215) (29,912) (55,478) 113,175 58,699
(911,264) 304,709 (790,622) 499,025 161,837

(LOSSYEARNINGS PER SHARE Bk (E18) /&7
FROM CONTINUING AND REBERDIEEEEER (re-presented)  (re-presented)  (re-presented)  (re-presented)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (&7l) (&) (1m&75) (1z&7)
Basic (cents) EAR () (720.73) 320.62 (807.83) 44153 1414

(Note) (HizE) (Note) (Fif3E) (Note) (FfizE) (Note) (FfizE)
FROM CONTINUING REBBELEER

OPERATIONS
Basic (cents) EOR (L) (720.73) 239.7 (357.61) 406.25 166.42
Note: FIEE -

HE-Z-—% . 222FF . _T-NEFR-Z-)\F
T AT BLEVREEZER(ER) BFELE
Bl URBMAATR S - —FRTNBASZA(EHh SR
RIDE O - BRAHIRKRDIFAE) IEERNRAE  MREAE
HARZZTZ—FLAT-BAEX - FEBFLHERRTAHA
ZECZF=RA+—A 2T ZFWA=Z+H ZT==
FRATZBAR=ZE-__FtA+-HNREURARARH
HAE-ZT-_—_F-A=+HNEK-

The (loss)/earnings per Share for each of the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 2020,
2019 and 2018 were re-presented to reflect the adjustments resulting from the capital
reorganisation implemented by the Company in 2022, which involved share consolidation,
capital reduction and share sub-division, and completed on 12 July 2022. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 11 March 2022, 20 April 2022, 13 June
2022 and 12 July 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 30 March 2022.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AR [

For the year ended 31 December &%+ —H=+—HIFF/E

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

GeEERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t-HLEFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-—F T —T-oTF —Z-NE —T-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTEr TET FET FEr
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 16,684,537 20,150,319 23,666,615 20,175,573 12,636,662
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfEEE (13,491,983)  (15,358,362)  (19,589,259)  (15,527,018) (8,646,900)
3,192,554 4,791,957 4,077,356 4,648,555 3,989,762

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AN AT -
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY AR FEAEA 1,675,868 2,953,934 2,282,849 2,907,798 2,760,603

NON-CONTROLLING JE

INTERESTS 1,516,686 1,838,023 1,794,507 1,740,757 1,229,159
3,192,554 4,791,957 4,077,356 4,648,555 3,989,762

Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Glory Sun Land Group
Limited (the "Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively
the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”) (the
“Annual Report” or the “Report”).

Industry and Market Overview

In 2022, the People’s Republic of the China (the “PRC” or “China”)
economy was being challenged by multiple unforeseen factors such as
the Covid-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”) and the Russian-Ukrainian war
crisis. Under the PRC government’s efficient coordination of the Pandemic
control as well as economic and social development, and the accelerated
implementation of various policies to stabilize the macroeconomic
situation, the PRC’s gross domestic product (GDP) for 2022 was
RMB121.02 trillion, representing a growth of 3% year-on-year, which
accomplished the goal of economic and social growth under enduring
pressure. Meanwhile, the “triple pressures” of shrinking demand, supply
shock and weakened expectations faced by economic development
have not been significantly reduced, the endogenous kinetic energy for
economic growth remains lacking, and the economy has yet to show a
good momentum for recovery.

Over the past year, the PRC’s real estate industry experienced a period of
unprecedented intensive adjustment and unstable market expectations
continued throughout the year, with many real estate enterprises
encountering extraordinary challenges in sales, delivery, investment and
debt repayment. The annual sale volume of commercial housing as well
as development and investment scale decreased dramatically, with the
sales area of commercial housing falling to 1.358 billion square metres
and sales dropping to RMB13.5 trillion, the lowest in nearly six years.
The growth rate of real estate development and investment decreased
by 10% year-on-year, the first decline in nearly a decade. Due to the
liquidity pressure and hampered sell-through rate, many real estate
enterprises have shown a sharp decline in sales performance. Meanwhile,
the channel of aggregate financing is narrow, the deterioration of
asset liability structure is serious, debt risk continues to accumulate, the
problem of default has not been substantially resolved, the situation of
project suspension and late delivery is becoming more common, and
number of enterprises are even encountering the difficult situation of
accelerated disposal of properties as well as bankruptcy and dissolution.

EN 2
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

Although the Central Government has made continuing efforts to
“guarantee the delivery of property and the stability of people’s
livelihood” by issuing a package of financing policies such as “credit
support”, “bond financing support”, “equity financing support” and
“16-Point Plan” at the end of last year, giving positive signals to promote
the healthy and stable development of the real estate industry, and many
cities and places have also timely followed up with corresponding easing
policies to encourage demand. However, the loosening at the policy level
has not yet been fully transmitted to the market level, and the follow-
up effect of its implementation has yet to be realized. In addition, the
imminent financing needs of a large number of private enterprises at risk
are not met, and the upcoming wave of debt repayment makes it miles
away from the goal of resolving the liquidity crisis and getting back on
track.

In 2022, investment and consumption had slowed down in the PRC,
and the cultural sports and entertainment industry was under relatively
huge pressure due to suspension of business under Pandemic prevention
and control measures as well as reduced consumers during holidays. The
output value of the cultural entertainment and leisure service industry
for the year was approximately RMB12 trillion, representing a slight
increase of 0.9% over the previous year. In order to alleviate the pressure
of operation and labour costs, leisure venues such as children playroom,
fitness room and KTV were temporarily suspended. With the arrival of
the post-pandemic era, it will take a longer period of time for the cultural
sports and entertainment industry to improve staff turnover, customer
loss and market shrinkage and return to normalcy.

Last year, under multiple pressures of the impact of the Pandemic,
insufficient demand and rising costs, China’s logistics industry achieved
stable operation as a whole and had steady progress and improvement in
major economic indicators. The total social logistics for the year exceeded
RMB340 trillion, representing an increase of approximately 3.6% year-
on-year. Following the steady progress of various economic stabilization
policies and measures, and the gradual implementation of favourable
policies in this sector, logistics operation is expected to resume a positive
development trend.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Looking back at 2022, the Group maintained its strategic focus and
actively responded to policy adjustments and market changes. The Group
focused on its main business and core cities and organized resources
mainly on core regions and key projects; actively resolved debt risks and
overcame liquidity difficulties by seeking debt refinancing and accelerating
inventory revitalization; strived to improve construction progress to
ensure the quality of property delivery and accelerate the sales and other
receivables collection; proactively improved management efficiency, saved
costs, improved control efficiency and optimized resource allocation, and
made every effort to protect normal operation and production through a
multi-pronged approach.

Business Review
Property investment and development

The Group's property investment and development sector continues to
maintain its development strategy of “deeply exploring the business
of property investment and development in strong first-tier cities, new
first-tier cities and strong second-tier cities”. Currently, the Group has a
total of eight property development projects in six PRC cities, including
Shenzhen, Changchun, Changsha, Weinan, Shantou and Yunfu. With
a gross construction floor area of over 2.80 million square meters, such
projects comprise commercial complexes, high-class residences, hotels,
commercial apartments, villas, garden houses and other multi-format and
segmented products.

Throughout 2022, the combination of factors of downward pressure
on the industry, obstruction of financing channels, the wait-and-see
sentiment of the market and sluggish sales, as well as the delayed
payment collection upon late delivery due to slow construction progress
caused the tight operating cash flow of the Group to remain unimproved,
which further led to increasing challenges in various areas such as external
debt repayment, suppliers’ settlement and the completion of the pre-sale
target.

To resolve liquidity difficulties and alleviate repayment pressure, the Group
proactively conducted debt management, optimized the debt structure,
sought debt refinancing and accelerated the disposal of existing projects.
Through active communication with stakeholders such as creditors,
financial institutions and the government, the Group aimed to develop
a comprehensive solution that respects the rights and interests of all
stakeholders, so as to use its best endeavours to preserve the respective
interests of all stakeholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

To ensure that the delivery targets of the sold projects are met, the Group
withstood capital pressure and made every effort to accelerate the pace of
project construction and sales. Meanwhile, the Company also proactively
evaluated the market environment, timely analyzed and formulated
appropriate marketing strategies in accordance with the specific features
of the projects, and commenced sales of different projects across various
places with on-time delivery, thus realizing the commitment made to
customers. Among them, the Group continued to launch the sales for
Changsha Project, Weinan Project Phase Il, Shantou Chaoyang Project
Phase Ill & IV and Shantou Eastern Coast Project North Zone in line with
the market recovery trend, and hence sales volume and price steadily
increased. In addition, the construction of Changchun Project, Weinan
Project Phase Il, Changsha Project and Shantou Eastern Coast Project are
progressing in a safe and orderly manner, thus making every effort to
meet the delivery schedule.

Cultural sports and entertainment business

Relying on its own proprietary property resources, the Group has
proactively unblocked the industrial chain and has developed an
innovative platform that integrates culture, sports and entertainment.
The Company’s traditional cultural sports business includes Shenzhen
Bihaiwan Golf Practicing Court (“Bihaiwan Golf”), and its cultural
entertainment operation in new business form comprises high-end
children entertainment project Xiao Mu Tong Playroom, high-end
gymnasium project Xin Dong Neng Fitness Club, and KTV TYPET Party.

The frequent recurrence of the Pandemic greatly disturbs the recovery
of the consumer market. Although the first-tier cities where the
Company’s cultural sports projects are located have the advantages of
large population and consumption upgrade, with the gradual depletion
in online traffic monetization, serious brand homogeneity, the surging
costs of acquiring customers in new consumer and existing markets and
the ever-rising rental and labour costs, the overall profitability of the
Company’s cultural sports sector decreased and its profit growth slowed
down in 2022.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In 2022, Bihaiwan Golf has completed the full year leasing of all-inclusive
rooms, with the overall revenue and number of visits of customers being
largely the same as compared to that of last year. The overall revenue of
Xiao Mu Tong Playroom was lower than expected due to the impact of
the anti-pandemic control measures. The Shenzhen Luohu Shop, which
was only officially opened in August 2022, is still in its early stage of
operation and its profitability is not yet stable. The number of visitors for
the Shenzhen Xili Shop dropped significantly during its open period for
the Year, but with the normalization of Pandemic prevention and control,
the customer traffic showed a gradual recovery. Xin Dong Neng Fitness
Club adheres to the “user oriented” principle and focuses its operation
on the improvement and upgrading of services, so as to attract repeat
customers and improve revenue. KTV TYPET Party has increased its brand
awareness and image through increased investment in publicity in hopes
to establish an in-depth experience between the brand and users, the
effect of which is yet to be seen.

Trading of commodities and other operations

Based on the understanding and involvement in various kinds of trade,
the Group leveraged its own strengths and built a large-scale trading
platform for non-ferrous metals, which is mainly engaged in the supply of
non-ferrous metals (which are raw materials for industrial purpose).

In 2022, as a result of a number of global risk events, the non-ferrous
metals industry as a whole faced difficulties in sluggish downstream
demand and disrupted price transmission. Against this backdrop, the
Group fully leveraged its own advantages of business areas, product
structure and resource channels, and improved business flexibility and
turnover rate through differentiated operation, thus stabilizing business
performance.

Meanwhile, the Group also made full use of its platform advantages and
deepened the whole industrial chain cooperation, providing upstream
and downstream customers with services ranging from order taking,
warehousing logistics, transportation logistics, payment and settlement
to risk management, which built up the Group’s brand reputation and
market influences. In the future, the Group will continue to innovate
its business model, actively expand the regional market, and further
complete the in-depth integration of the industrial chain through
cooperation with high-quality strategic partners, so as to realize the
specialization of its business development and facilitate the scale-up in
the growth of the industry.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

Structural changes

In order to reduce the overall gearing level, alleviate the pressure of
operating funds of the Group and cope with the Group’s business
planning, the Company entered into a framework agreement with Glory
Sun Financial Group Limited (“GSFG") (stock code: 1282, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”)) on 3 October 2022, in respect of the disposal of
the entire equity interest in Shantou Taisheng Technology Limited* (128
MEERHRAR AR (the “Disposal Company”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, on 19
October 2022, the Company procured Shenzhen Hong Jia Xin Technology
Limited* CRIIEEFEIE AR A7) (the “Vendor”), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and GSFG procured Shenzhen
Baokai Investment Holding Company Limited* (F3IIE 1% &1L B R
‘A a]) (the “Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of GSFG
to enter into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, the 1st Tranche Sale Equity Interest (representing 51%
of the total equity interest and actual paid-up registered capital of the
Disposal Company). The 1st Tranche Disposal was completed on 22
March 2023. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 3 October 2022, 17 January 2023 and 22 March 2023
and the circular of the Company dated 28 December 2022.

Prospect

The real estate industry has a significant impact in terms of economic
growth, employment, fiscal revenue, residents’ wealth and financial
stability. The focus of the PRC’s Central Economic Work Conference on
the real estate deployment in 2023 centres on “increasing confidence,
preventing risks, and driving transformation”. The main objective is to
fully ensure property deliveries, gradually steer the recovery of the real
estate market, and promote the stable and healthy development of the
real estate market. Under the guidance of such major policy guidelines,
with the prominent nature of housing in people’s livelihood, the volume
and price of the real estate market is gradually returning to normal. The
drawbacks of the development model of “high liabilities, high leverage,
high turnover” over the years will be gradually eliminated, and the real
estate industry will have a smooth transition to the new development
model.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Looking ahead, 2023 will not only be a year for the confidence of the
real estate industry to be restored, but also a year for the industry to
explore new development possibilities. The recovery of macroeconomy,
the rebound of consumer expectations and the increase of investment
are still key factors affecting the recovery of the real estate market.
Considering that the impact of the Pandemic on the economy is gradually
weakening, market uncertainties will be significantly reduced, the effect
of various financing policies will continue to emerge, and the profound
adjustment of the industry may enter its final phase. In the process of
rebuilding confidence in the real estate industry, it has gradually entered
the stage of “ensuring quality delivery” from “guaranteeing delivery”.
It has become an industry consensus to continue in-depth returns to
products and accelerate the enhancement of brand influence. Therefore,
the Group will further strengthen its strategic flexibility and sensitivity,
increase the sell-through on the sales side, speed up the inventory
reduction, and continuously improve the payment collection efficiency. It
will also focus on improving the overall financial position and enhancing
the financial security margin, while responding to the development
trend of new technology and new consumption, and continue to deeply
explore user needs and focus on enhancing product competitiveness,
service and efficiency. Through means of “high-quality delivery” and
“service upgrade”, the Group will restore confidence on consumer side
and facilitate the production and operation to get back on track as soon
as possible.

In response to the upgrade diverse needs driven by consumers, new
experience-oriented business form must constantly shorten the renewal
cycle and develop innovative contents to promote differentiated and
specialized development, thereby enhancing the consumption premium
of entertainment projects and consumers’ spending momentum. These
demand higher requirements for capital investment, innovation and
risk resistance of new cultural entertainment enterprises. In 2023, the
Group’s cultural sports and entertainment sector will continue to pursue
the combination of stable operation and resilience, timely adjust its
business strategy according to market changes, and improve the stability
and sustainability of the overall profitability of the cultural entertainment
segment.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and all our employees
for their dedication and contribution to the Group. | would also like to
thank all our partners for their trust, and our shareholders and investors
for their understanding and support of the Group. In the coming year,
the Group will (i) continue to implement our corporate vision of “Building
the Beauty of Life”, assuming more social responsibilities; (i) optimise
the industrial layout, expanding financing channels through project
cooperation, and building a healthy debt structure and capital status, to
ensure the safety and stability of the Company’s operations; and (iii) strive
to create better investment returns for the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), thus achieving high-quality development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P i s 5L

Review of Results and Operations

The revenue of the Group mainly arose from two (2) major business
segments, namely (i) property development and property investment in
the PRC, and (ii) trading of commodities.

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$1,617.5 million which was decreased by approximately 70.6%
from that of approximately HK$5,504.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Prior Year”). The decline in revenue was mainly
attributable to the drop in the trading volume of commodities in the
Year by approximately HK$3,360.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 85.1% as compared to the Prior Year.

In respect of sales of properties, the revenue was approximately HK$968.3
million for the Year which was decreased by approximately 33.1% year-
on-year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the recession of the
PRC property market, and general public being more conservative when
dealing in property market.

In the Year, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$2,142.6
million, which was decreased by 59.1% from approximately HK$5,234.1
million in the Prior Year. Along with the decrease in cost of sales, due
to the uncertainties brought by the outbreak of the Pandemic and
unprecedented challenges faced by the national real estate market in the
Year, the gross loss was approximately HK$525.1 million for the Year,
comparing to gross profit of approximately HK$270.3 million for the
Prior Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$795.4 million.
The gross loss margin was 32.5% for the Year comparing with the
gross profit margin of 4.9% for the Prior Year. The gross loss was mainly
attributable to written-down in the carrying amount of inventories to the
net realisable value amounting to approximately HK$700.1 million with
respect to Hunan, Weinan and Shantou projects in the real estate and
property investment segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The trading commodities of the Group were mainly copper cathodes
and zinc ingot for the Year and the Prior Year. As a wholesaler of such
non-ferrous metal products, the Group purchased the products in bulk,
and then distributed and sold to the downstream customers. Under
the prevailing business operations, for the sake of obtaining optimal
contractual terms, the Group arranged to conclude and sign supply
framework agreements with respective individual key suppliers with good
reputation and credit in the market. Meanwhile, the profitability was
relatively low and being affected by a bundle of external factors including
the Pandemic and the international non-ferrous metal price fluctuations.
Both buyers and sellers of such non-ferrous metal products had great
demand in the PRC market, the relatively low gross profit margin should
be attributable to the active market participation and the transparent
prices information. As the Group has already built up a team of staff
members with specialized experience and expertise in this business
segment over the past few years, the gross profit margin for the Year
reached a record high of around 0.2% as compared to 0.17% for the
Prior Year though the revenue of the Year had dropped to approximately
HK$587.4 million from approximately HK$3,948.2 million for the Prior
Year.

In the Year, the Group’s selling expenses amounted to approximately
HK$53.1 million (2021: approximately HK$99.6 million) representing an
decrease of approximately 46.7%. In addition, administrative expenses
being approximately HK$119.0 million (2021: approximately HK$141.1
million) was decreased by approximately 15.7% when compared to
the Prior Year and the decrement amounted to approximately HK$22.1
million.

Since the assessed net realisable value of the property inventories had
been lower than its carrying cost amount, the inventory value was
therefore written down by approximately HK$700.1 million (2021
approximately HK$164.0 million) reflecting the recession in the property
market of the PRC.

The real estate portfolio of the Group comprised residential and
commercial properties in Shenyang, Hefei, Shenzhen, Hunan and
Shantou, as well as certain properties under construction in Shantou,
which were held for rental purpose. For the Year, the loss arising from
the net fair value change of these investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$223.0 million (2021: a gain arising from the net
fair value change amounted to approximately HK$70.7 million) was
recognised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P i s 5L

Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets dropped to
approximately HK$12.7 million from approximately HK$23.0 million for
the Prior Year, which was primarily due to the decrease in impairment
recognised on the other receivables during the Year.

Finance costs represented mainly interest expenses and other borrowing
costs in relation to bank and other borrowings. During the Year, finance
costs amounted to approximately HK$185.9 million (2021: approximately
HK$125.0 million), representing an increase of approximately 48.7% as
compared to the Prior Year.

Income tax expense, which consisted of the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
and the Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") levied in the PRC as well as their
deferred tax effect, constituted an income tax credit of approximately
HK$150.5 million for the Year while an income tax expense amounted
to approximately HK$3.5 million was recognised in the Prior Year. The
decrease in the income tax expense was mainly attributable to the
temporary differences arising from fair value loss of investment properties
and write-down of inventories.

Given the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately HK$911.3 million for the Year, as compared to a net profit
of approximately HK$304.7 million for the Prior Year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$88.4 million (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$341.4 million), while the pledged and restricted bank deposits
amounted to approximately HK$441.3 million (31 December 2021
approximately HK$381.9 million). Total borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$6,481.1 million as at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: approximately HK$8,067.5 million), of which
equivalents of approximately HK$1,128.0 million (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$1,203.0 million), approximately HK$5,353.1 million (31
December 2021: approximately HK$6,815.4 million) and nil (31 December
2021: approximately HK$49.1 million) were denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, Renminbi and US dollar respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Total borrowings included bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$5,579.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$7,324.9
million), and corporate bonds of approximately HK$605.0 million (31
December 2021: approximately HK$680.0 million), and notes payable
of approximately HK$297.0 million (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$62.6 million). All of the borrowings bore fixed interest rates and
exposed the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a net current asset of
approximately HK$946.0 million, as compared to the balance of
approximately HK$4,042.1 million as at 31 December 2021. As at 31
December 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 1.9 (31
December 2021: approximately 1.5), which was calculated on the basis
of the total borrowings less bank and cash balances and pledged and
restricted bank deposits divided by the total equity as at the respective
reporting date.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses. The Directors review the capital structure of the
Group on a timely basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debts.

Disclaimer of Opinion

As disclosed in the “Disclaimer of Opinion” section of the Independent
Auditor’s Report as set out on pages 69 to 73 of the Annual Report,
BDO Limited, the Auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) does not
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group (the “Disclaimer of Opinion™), because of the significance of the
matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of the
Independent Auditor’s Report, the Auditor has not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P i s 5L

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

As disclosed in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$911 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, as of that date, as disclosed in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$6,481 million, of which the current borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$5,568 million, while the Group had bank
and cash balances of approximately HK$88 million only.

As at 31 December 2022, as a result of not making scheduled
repayment of loan principal and/or interest and breach of other loan
covenants during the year, among the current borrowings, the entire
principal amounts of approximately HK$3,295 million in aggregate
which comprised bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,567 million
(the”FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings”), other borrowings of
approximately HK$9 million, corporate bonds of approximately HK$605
million and loans from related parties of approximately HK$1,114 million,
together with interest payables of approximately HK$326 million became
due and repayable on demand.

In particular, due to not making scheduled repayment of interest and
breach of other loan covenants during the year, a non-current bank
borrowing of approximately HK$1,317 million was reclassified as the
current liabilities which was included in the FY2022 Defaulted Bank
Borrowings.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group has received repayment
notices from the banks to demand for repayment of total outstanding
principal amounts of approximately HK$1,567 million of the FY2022
Defaulted Bank Borrowings, together with the interest payables.

In addition, due to not making scheduled repayment of loan principal
and/or interest subsequent to 31 December 2022, the entire principal
amounts of approximately HK$604 million in aggregate including bank
borrowings of approximately HK$384 million (the “FY2023 Defaulted
Bank Borrowings”) and other borrowings of approximately HK$220
million, together with interest payables of approximately HK$83
million became due and repayable on demand subsequent to the end
of the reporting period. In particular, among the FY2023 Defaulted
Bank Borrowings, a bank borrowing with the entire principal amount
of approximately HK$318 million, of which approximately HK$66
million and approximately HK$252 million were classified as current
borrowing portion and non-current borrowing portion, respectively as
at 31 December 2022, has subsequently become due and repayable on
demand as a result of not making scheduled repayment of loan principal
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and, therefore, that the Group may not be able to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of the above circumstances, the Directors have prepared a cash
flow forecast (the “Cash Flow Forecast”) which took into account of the
plans and measures as set out in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Details of the Disclaimer of Opinion and the relevant plans and measures
proposed by the Directors are disclosed in the Independent Auditor’s
Report set out on pages 69 to 73 of the Annual Report.

Additional Information in relation to the
Disclaimer of Opinion

(i) Impact of the Disclaimer of Opinion on the
Group’s financial position

As set out in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
should the Group fail to achieve the proposed actions plan and
measures with respect to the Cash Flow Forecast, it might not be
able to continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the
Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the prevailing consolidated financial statements.
The Disclaimer of Opinion only relates to the going concern of
the Group as a whole, and not to a specific item or issue of the
Group's financial position at the abovementioned reporting end
date. Furthermore, apart from the written notices issued by the PRC
lending banks in relation to the loans default by the subsidiaries
of the Company as already disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 and 17 March 2023 respectively, there has been
no other subsequent events which may impose any significant
impact on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2022 to
the date of the Annual Report.
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(i) the Management’s position and basis on the

going concern assumption, and its view on the
Disclaimer of Opinion

The management of the Company (the “Management”)
understands that the Disclaimer of Opinion is a result of scope
limitation relating to the appropriateness of the going concern
assumption as the Auditor could not obtain the information
considered necessary for Auditor’s evaluation of the financial
viability of the fund providers to provide sufficient funds to the
extent that is necessary based on the Cash Flow Forecast due to
unavailability of the information of the fund providers highlighted
in the Disclaimer of Opinion.

As regards the further drawdown of unutilised loan facilities
(the “Unutilised Facilities”) from fund providers, the Directors
are confident that the Unutilised Facilities will provide adequate
financing funding to the Group, as and when necessary. This
assumption has been well supported by the long and close
relationship between the Company and the respective fund
providers, and also the solid track record of facilities utilization in
the past. However, there is no documentary evidence for evaluating
the financial viability of those fund providers of the Unutilised
Facilities to the extent that is necessary based on the Cash Flow
Forecast. As such, no documentary or other sufficient information
was provided to the Auditor in regard to the measures for assessing
the successful implementation of this action plan.

On the assumption of the successful implementation of the
proposed actions plan and measures as scheduled, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Group is able to continue as a going
concern and shall have sufficient financial resources to finance
the Group’s operations and meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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(iii)

(iv)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Audit Committee’s view on the Disclaimer of
Opinion

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
critically reviewed the detailed basis and grounds of the Disclaimer
of Opinion as addressed by the Auditor, the Management's
assessment and also the proposed actions plan and measures to be
undertaken by the Management for addressing the Disclaimer of
Opinion at the Audit Committee meeting. The Audit Committee
has also had discussions with the Auditor, after which the Audit
Committee has comprehended that the cause of the Disclaimer of
Opinion is, as mentioned in the note (ii) above, the unsuccessful
capture of sufficient supportable evidence to support on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. In the light of the
above, the Audit Committee has agreed with the Management's
view concerning the Disclaimer of Opinion and has acknowledged
the proposed actions plan and measures taken and to be taken by
the Group to address the liquidity matter. The Audit Committee is
also of the view that the Management shall continue its efforts in
the implementation of the proposed actions plan and measures to
mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure. Furthermore, the chairman
of the Audit Committee meeting has reported the case in an
extensive manner to all the participating board members at the
subsequent meeting of the board of Directors (the “Board”). Both
the Audit Committee and the Board have agreed that the Group
should adhere strictly of the proposed actions plan and measures for
addressing the effect on the Disclaimer of Opinion with the ultimate
aim to remove the Disclaimer of Opinion in the forthcoming audited
financial statements.

Details of the Actions plan to address the
Disclaimer of Opinion and its Latest Development

The Disclaimer of Opinion as mentioned in the FY2021 annual
report had addressed to the following proposed actions plan and
measures to be undertaken by the Group:

(i)  The negotiation with fund providers for the extension in
respect of certain borrowings which are repayable during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Renewable
Borrowings”)

Throughout the underlying period of the Cash Flow Forecast
for the FY2021 annual report, the Group has succeeded in
entering into extension arrangement with a total number
of three fund providers and has obtained the Renewable
Borrowings amounting to approximately HK$1,091.7 million
in aggregate.

(iii)

(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
7 SHL ) i B0

(ii)

(iii)

The further drawdown of unutilised loan facilities in the year
2021 (the “Unutilised Facilities 2021") from fund providers.

The Management has managed to drawdown further
Unutilised Facilities 2021 with principal amount of
approximately HK$1,434.6 million in aggregate from those
fund providers during the whole year of 2022.

The acceleration of pre-sales of major property development
projects during the period of the cash flow forecast

The Group’s property investment and development segment
continues to consistently maintain its development strategy
of “deeply exploring the business of property investment and
development in strong first-tier cities, new first-tier cities and
strong second-tier cities”. In 2022, the Group had a total of
eight property development projects in six PRC cities, including
Shenzhen, Changchun, Changsha, Weinan, Shantou and
Yunfu. These projects comprised commercial complexes, high-
class residences, hotels, commercial apartments, villas, garden
houses and other multi-format and segmented products.

As mentioned in the Annual Report, the combination of
factors of downward pressure on the industry, obstruction of
financing channels, the wait-and-see sentiment of the market
and sluggish sales, as well as the delayed payment collection
upon late delivery due to slow construction progress caused
the tight operating cash flow of the Group to remain
unimproved and the unsuccessful completion of the pre-
sale target. Therefore, the Group finally accomplished a cash
inflow of approximately HK$1,237.6 million from the pre-sale
of inventory properties.

In order to address the uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and with a
view to the Disclaimer of Opinion, the Group has already taken and
will continue to implement the following proposed actions plan and
measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its cash
flows. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has Unutilised Facilities
of approximately HK$3,186 million whilst subsequent to 31
December 2022 to the date of the Annual Report, the Group has
further obtained the facilities of approximately HK$2,222 million.
Further, subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group has drawn
down approximately HK$84 million. In this respect, the Directors
are confident that such Unutilised Facilities can provide adequate
funding to the Group, as and when necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Removal of the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Company’s view on the removal of the Disclaimer of Opinion
in the next financial year (i.e. for the year ending 31 December
2023)

The Board will take into consideration the Disclaimer of Opinion when
preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2023. Meanwhile, the Board will be absolutely
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern based on the actual conditions and circumstances by 31
December 2023.

Assuming that (a) the proposed action plan and measure as mentioned
in the above note (iv) can be implemented as stipulated; (b) there is no
other material adverse changes to the business, operation and financial
conditions of the Group; and (c) sufficient supporting evidence for
validating the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern can be
provided to the Auditor to its satisfaction, the Company is confident that
the Auditor will be able to remove the Disclaimer of Opinion by the time
of issuing the audit opinion for the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2023. The Company will
therefore work closely with the Auditor with the view to making timely
reporting of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2023 in accordance with the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

The Auditor’s Preliminary View

As the Management's assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern for the purpose of preparing the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2023 has to take
into consideration of the then conditions and circumstances and could
only be made by the end of the relevant reporting period, the Auditor is
unable to ascertain at this moment whether the Disclaimer of Opinion
can be removed in the next financial year purely based on the latest
actions plan. Further assessment of the going concern basis in relation to
the Group’s liquidity situation for removing the Disclaimer of Opinion for
the year ending 31 December 2023 shall be required.

Capital Expenditure
The total spending on the additions of property, plant and equipment and

investment properties amounted to approximately HK$90.1 million for
the Year (2021: approximately HK$433.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Charges of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment, inventories and investment properties amounted to
approximately HK$4.4 million (2021: approximately HK$5.1 million),
approximately HK$5,708.1 million (2021: approximately HK$7,564.2
million) and approximately HK$2,260.0 million (2021: approximately
HK$1,892.8 million) respectively were pledged as security for the Group’s
bank loans and other borrowings granted in relation to the Group's
real estate business. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of investment properties and properties held for sale amounting to
approximately HK$39.2 million (2021: approximately HK$47.0 million)
and approximately HK$28.9 million (2021: approximately HK$32.1
million) respectively were pledged as security for a bank borrowing in
favour of a former subsidiary which was overdue. The Group’s pledged
and restricted bank deposits amounting to approximately HK$441.3
million (2021: approximately HK$381.9 million) were pledged to banks to
secure a bank loan granted to an independent third party, notes payable
granted to the Group and guarantee deposits for construction of pre-sale
properties.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 361 employees as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: 413) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group reviews remuneration
and benefits of its employees annually according to the relevant market
practice and individual performance of the employees. Save for the social
security insurance in the PRC and the mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant
funds to provide for retirement or similar benefits for its employees.

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risks

Most of the Group’s revenue and expenses were generated from the
PRC and were denominated in Renminbi. During the Year, the Group
had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure was
considered insignificant. Our management will continue to monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging the foreign currency
exposure when it is necessary.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022

BEERH

R-E-_—_F+_-_A=+—8  FEESDH
BHAAAEATL(ZE-—F Y518 S
BIL)  H5,708 1 BBAETL(ZE=—F 1 4
756425 BB L) K#2,26008 88 T(=
T —F 18N 8EEB L) Z2WE - BE
NEHE  TEURREYMEE TIEE - LUER
RAEBEHEEFER ZRITERRHEME
HHERG  c N B —F+=-_A=+—8 -
REES A9 2BE8ETL(ZEZ—F : 8
470B BB L) R289BEBT(ZE-—
FHRNIEBEEL) NREMERBELE
YED TR - (EA— TR E AR MIRTE
F(BE@H) 2EHR - NEBMN443H5EE
(=T -—%F : 4381 9@ BB L) 2K
MZRHIBITFERERBEFRIT - AERRT
BYE=ZFZRITER B AEEZENE
BREBEEENEER 2REBEZS -

BT RHFMEE

R-TE-—F+-A=+—0B X&EEARE
BRFPBHERAGIZEE(ZE—F+=A
=+—H:413%) - XEESFIRBEABETES
BHRETIZENKRBRIEE T ZHMERE
FloBabBEZESREBEES A EATES
BN AEEY EEE R 2B ITMABEES
AR HE 8 TIRERIRSBLIER

SMNEE B & 5 L B

AEBERAIOEXBLFARERNTE - I
AAREBHE - RAFE - REBERIMNER R
WAEKR - I EEL S - EREREEEE
FINERR - WHKE T ERZ BEHIHINER

B o

HAREE

R-F-—#R-_F-_—4+-A=+—8:
AREWEEALRAIE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s commitment was approximately
HK$7,264.6 million (2021: approximately HK$7,849.1 million) in
respect of contracted but not provided for expenditures on properties
under development, investment properties under construction and the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Significant Investment, Material Acquisitions or
Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

Save for those disclosed in the Annual Report, there was no other
significant investments held as at 31 December 2022 nor other material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries or affiliated companies made by
the Group during the Year.

Share Options
2014 Share Option Scheme was adopted on 26 March 2014. As at 31

December 2022, the number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remained outstanding was nil (2021: nil).

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES
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Directors

Yao Jianhui
Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao"”), aged 51, has joined the Company as the
executive Director and the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”)
since 20 December 2018. He graduated from South China University
of Technology in the PRC with a postgraduate diploma in business
administration.

Mr. Yao has acted as the executive director, chairman and chief executive
officer of GSFG since August 2015.

From March 2002 to March 2003, Mr. Yao acted as the executive
vice president of RN E IR E &£ B HAR 2 F] (Shenzhen Baoneng
Investment Group Co., Ltd.*). From July 2010 to October 2014, Mr. Yao
acted as the general manager and chairman of the board of directors of
B ERMDER AT (Baocheng Investment Co., Ltd.*) (stock code:
600892, a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange) (currently known
as KERRUEEE KD BRRZAF (Dasheng Times Cultural Investment
Co., Ltd.,*)). From June 2006 to January 2019, he was the chairman of
the board of directors of BEae#ZEik (F1 ) BBR 2 F] (Baoneng Holding
(China) Co., Ltd.*).

Xia Lingjie
Executive Director & Chief Executive Director

Ms. Xia Lingjie (“Ms. Xia”), aged 35, joined the Company as the non-
executive Director on 1 April 2016 and she was re-designated as the
executive Director on 17 August 2016. On 27 March 2019, she was
appointed again as the executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (the “CEQ"). Ms. Xia also holds directorship in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Xia received a bachelor’s degree in broadcasting, television and
news from Wuhan University and a bachelor’s degree in psychology from
Central China Normal University. She graduated from Wuhan University
with a master’s degree in communication in 2011 and earned a master’s
degree in Global Journalism from University of Sheffield, UK in 2012.
She was the assistant to general manager and deputy general manager
of FIIBEFEEER A (Shenzhen Wangdian Media Co., Ltd.*) from
January 2014 to June 2016. From 2013 to 2014, she was the director of
business operation of RIIEI B L EEFR A F] (Shenzhen Guosheng
Culture and Media Co., Ltd.*).
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

Ms. Xia is a veteran in business financial management, merger and
acquisition management, capital management, and operational
management cultural media, especially experienced in the execution
of corporate strategies formulation and financial analysis, and the
management in human resources and company operations, investors’
relationship management and capital management.

Zhan Yushan
Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhan Yushan (“Ms. Zhan"), aged 44, was appointed as the non-
executive Director on 26 October 2018. She graduated from 7 & E &
EIRKE (Central Television Broadcasting University of China*) in 2009
with a bachelor’s degree in law.

Ms. Zhan has been further appointed as the chief legal officer of the
Company (the “Chief Legal Officer”) since 20 December 2018. Ms.
Zhan has acted as the deputy general manager in J&IITEFREI AR
‘A 7] (Shenzhen Feng Cheng Technology Company Limited*) since July
2016. She has also been the president of /&Y E B ERM AR AR
(Shenzhen Lan Si Guang Technology Company Limited*) since December
2014. She served as the secretary to the president in general manager
office of FIITT R MFZIER AR QA (Shenzhen Nanyou Development
Construction Limited*) from December 2004 to December 2013.

He Suying
Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. He Suying (“Ms. He"), aged 57, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 30 May 2016. She obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, majoring
in infrastructure finance and credit, and a master's degree in economics
from the investment and economics department of Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics, majoring in investment and economical
management. She possesses extensive experience in areas including
internal audit, corporate financial analysis, management, investment
decision-making and business combination.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

EFLEREANBMHA

Ms. He has over ten years of experience in corporate internal audit.
Since May 2006, Ms. He has been working in ZIITHEBEEEEE
BRR72 7] (Shenzhen Capall Asset Management Co., Ltd.*) as the
executive director. From April 2015 to March 2021, she served as the
independent director of RIITELFEE K (DB R QA (Shenzhen
Salubris Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.*). From January 2010 to July 2017, she
served as the independent director of KRR LI E R BIRAF]
(Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Co. Ltd.*). From 2011 to 2017, she
was the independent director of BEER 18 B £7#Hi% {5 F R A 7] (Guangdong
Evergreen Feed Industry Co., Ltd.*) and EEZAEEHIRMDBER A F)
(Leadshine Technology Co., Ltd.*) in Shenzhen. From September 2007 to
September 2013, she was the independent director of X R FxEBINE
RAF] (MYS Group Co., Ltd.*). From August 2003 to December 2008,
she served as the director of F®IITHERERERNDER AR (Shenzhen
Seg. Dasheng Co., Ltd.*) (now renamed as )& 2 FIH B R A F]
(Shenzhen Quanxinhao Co., Ltd.*)).

Ms. He had previously served as the supervisor and the officer-in-charge
of the auditing department of Weishen Securities Co., Ltd., a section
chief of the auditing department of Shenzhen Branch, Guangdong
Development Bank and the lecturer of the investment and finance
department of Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics.

Tang Lai Wah
Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Tang Lai Wah (“Dr. Tang”), aged 65, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 30 May 2016. She is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA")
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
a member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association. Dr. Tang holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts with honors in
Accountancy, degree of Master of Business Administration (Executive) and
degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the City University of
Hong Kong.

Dr. Tang has over 30 years of accounting, corporate finance and financial
management experience in telecommunication, media and information
technology industries. Dr. Tang was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited
during the period from 2002 to 2022. She was also the group financial
controller in several companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Dr. Tang has extensive experience in the merger and acquisition
activities, the initial public offerings on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, overseeing corporate governance and monitoring corporate
compliance of the Listing Rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

Dr. Tang is the vice president of Hong Kong Business Accountants
Association. She is currently appointed as a committee member of the
departmental advisory committee for the Department of Accountancy
by the City University of Hong Kong. Previously, Dr. Tang had been
appointed as a specialist and financial expert by the Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications, and had
been elected as committee member of ACCA Hong Kong.

Wong Chun Bong
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Chun Bong (“Mr. Wong”), aged 64, joined the Company as
the independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He holds
a higher diploma in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic,
currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Wong has been the independent non-executive director of GSFG
since November 2009. Since May 2017, he has also acted as the
independent non-executive director of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co.,
Ltd (Stock Code: 2777), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Wong is the founder of a firm of certified public accountants in Hong
Kong. He is also a member of the Council of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a fellow member of each of the ACCA, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Wong was
an ex-member of the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
the ex-chairman of the executive committee of the ACCA Hong Kong.

Key Personnel

Fong Ching Kong
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Fong Ching Kong (“Mr. Fong”), aged 57, has been appointed as
the Chief Financial Officer and company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) since 20 January 2017. Mr. Fong holds a Master
degree of Business Administration. He is an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of each of ACCA, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, the
Chartered Governance Institute, and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Fong has over 30 years of experience in professional accounting,
financial management, tax, and company secretary. Prior to joining the
Company, he served as the financial controller, company secretary and
authorised representative of a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements. Details and respective analysis
of the main business segments of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 74 to 75.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Closure of Registers of Members

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on 2 June 2023 (the “2023 Annual General Meeting”), the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 30 May 2023
to Friday, 2 June 2023, both days inclusive. During this period, no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the 2023 Annual General Meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 29 May 2023.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development, possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 7 to 13 and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14
to 25 of the Report.
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The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
the Group's performance during the Year using key financial performance
indicators is provided on pages 14 to 16 of the Report.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are
provided in the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
("2022 ESG Report") published on 28 April 2023, which is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to improving environmental sustainability and
will closely monitor the performance. In accordance with Rule 13.91 of
and Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, details of environmental policies
and performance of the Company are set out in the “2022 ESG Report”.
We have complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

For the businesses and industries in which the Group operates, the most
important laws and regulations in the PRC include (but not limited to)
laws related to the establishment of real estate development enterprises,
acquisition of land use rights, property development, commercial housing
sales or pre-sales, and environmental protection. During the Year, the
Group has complied with all the relevant and applicable PRC laws
and regulations governing the business of property development and
management in all material respects, and we have obtained all material
licenses, permits and certificates for the purpose of operating our
business. For the Year, the Group has no non-compliance incident that
has had a material adverse effect on the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the Report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 78 and notes 34(b) and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, as at 31 December
2022, the contributed surplus and share premium accounts are
distributable to the Shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which any dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
amounted to approximately HK$1,780,667,000.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which the Board may recommend dividends to the Shareholders, to
allow the Shareholders to participate in the sharing of the Company’s
profits and the Company to retain adequate reserves for its future
growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall take into account factors in all aspects including,
the Company’s current and future operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements, as well as dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of
those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the law of Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time, and Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company in respect
of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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Donation

During the Year, the Group made no charitable and other donations (2021:
approximately HK$542,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 51.5% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately 21.9%.
The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 27.1%
of the total cost of services and among which approximately 21.7% is
attributable to the largest supplier for the Year.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, none of the Directors or any of
their close associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during
the Year.

Relations with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing long-term
relationship with stakeholders.

The Company understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers. The Group has established procedures in
place for handling customers’ complaints and customers’ satisfaction
surveys in order to ensure that customers’ complaints are dealt with in a
prompt and timely manner. The Group is also dedicated to develop good
relationship with suppliers as long-term business partners to ensure stable
supplies and timely delivery of materials. The Group reinforces business
partnership with suppliers and contractors by recurring communication in
proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and delivery.
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Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of the Report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jianhui
Ms. Xia Lingjie

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Zhan Yushan
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. He Suying
Dr. Tang Lai Wah
Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. He
Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 Annual General
Meeting.

Independent Non-Executive Directors’
Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and as at the date of the Annual Report still considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director have
respectively entered into service contracts with the Company. Details of
the service contracts include: (i) a term of directorship for three years with
effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or re-election; and
(ii) the contract shall be terminated according to the terms of each
respective contract.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Details of the letter of appointments
mainly include: (i) a term of directorship for three years with effect from
the date of appointment, reappointment or re-election; and (ii) the letter
of appointment shall be terminated according to the terms of each letter
of appointment.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the 2023 Annual General Meeting had a service contract with the
Company which was not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director, other
officer and auditor shall be entitled to be indemnified out of assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a Director, auditor or other officer of the Company about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set up by Salary Review
Committee on the basis of the Directors’ merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emolument of the Directors are decided by Salary Review Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Director’s fees are subject to the
Shareholders” approval at general meetings.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 15 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. None of the Directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the Year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Ordinary Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Interests and short positions in Shares and underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company

Interests and short positions in Shares and underlying
Shares

EERFETHRAERNEER A
RO RESPHERIAR

RZE-—F+-A=+—H AQREER
FTETBRABRARR A S ETMBEEE(E
EAESREEED ([FHRIPEEG ] EXV
) mpm - HERMRESTHEAEZAE R
HBEA MBS EHIEXVERE 7 R8N Eme A
DRI RBRER AR (BIEREESE R
HERBIBRIEXESHER AN E IFER M
KR ) ¢ Bk (b) AR ER AR IR 3B 5 R HA B &
FINEFENELMARNERSSAE ()
BAE ET R B S+ FrE E st A BT
BHER ZRFESTR([ZESFR ) ME R F)
MBS ETRRE R MoK BRI -

RADBRDREBARDREZFH
BERAR

R R (7 19 2z KA B

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage of

interests in interest in Total interests Shares in issue

Name of Director Shares Shares in Shares (Note 1)

HEBITRAEZ

RRGOHH RRGHH RRGHH BABE DL

EENE AR AREER AR (BfFsE1)

Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao") 115,661 (L) 106,731 (L) 222,392 (L) 0.20%

whaEsE s (ka4 ])

Notes: PRRE -

(1) As at 31 December 2022, the total issued share capital of the Company amounted to
109,202,495 Shares.

2) As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Yao through Shenzhen Lai Hua Industrial Limited
Company* (RIIFEFEEE AR AE]) (“Shenzhen Lai Hua"”), a company owned as
to 99.50% by him, held 100% equity interest in Lai Hua Holding Group Limited
Company* GRELAEEBR/AF]) (“Lai Hua Holding Group”), which beneficially
owned 106,731 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Yao was deemed to be interested in the
106,731 Shares held by Lai Hua Holding Group.

Abbreviations: “L" stands for long position
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company or their respective associates
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons or entities, not being a Director or the chief executives
of the Company, had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and were
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

BRI RAGREAR 7 9 4F B

Number of

Shares/ Approximate

Capacity in which underlying percentage of

Name of Shareholders interests are held Shares Shares in issue

(Note 1)

RERER REEENEH R5,HERGEA HEBTREABSL

(Bf=E1)

Da Ming Prime Limited Beneficial Owner 29,737,836 (L) 27.23%

EnEAA

Mr. Wang Jian Corporate Interest (Note 2) 20,807,954 (L) 19.05%
TEEE NAlfER (MEE2)

Massive Thriving Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 18,507,300 (L) 16.95%

("Massive Thriving”) A A (FE2)
Corporate Interest (Note 2) 2,300,654 (L) 2.10%

AR (FEE2)

(1) As at 31 December 2022, the total issued share capital of the Company amounted to
109,202,495 Shares.

2) As at 31 December 2022, Shenzhen Changfeng Industrial Company Limited* (%3]
EEZEBRAT), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Massive Thriving, beneficially
owned 2,300,654 Shares whilst Massive Thriving, which was a company wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Jian, beneficially owned 18,507,300 Shares. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Jian
was deemed to be interested in 20,807,954 Shares by virtue of the SFO.

Abbreviations: “L" stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company has not
been notified by any person (other than Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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Share Option Scheme

2014 Share Option Scheme

On 26 March 2014, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “2014 Share Option Scheme”) and the major terms of the 2014
Share Option Scheme were summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme is (i) to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development of
the Company’s businesses; (ii) to provide additional incentives to
employees, consultants, agents, representatives, advisers, suppliers
of goods or services, customers, contractors, business allies and
joint venture partners; and (i) to promote the long term financial
success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders
to the Shareholders.

Participants of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the 2014 Share Option Scheme, the Company may at
its absolute discretion grant options to any employee, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner
of the Company or its subsidiaries (including any director, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of
the Company or its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with the Company or its subsidiaries at the time when
an option is granted to such employee, or any person who, in the
sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or may contribute to
the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
2014 Share Option Scheme

The total number of Shares may be granted under the 2014
Share Option Scheme is 493,835 Shares after adjustments for
share subdivision in 2015, share consolidation in 2017 and capital
reorganisation in 2022, which represents 0.45% of the total
number of Shares in issue at the date of the Report.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2014 Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from
time to time.
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(e)

)]

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue, unless approved by the
Shareholders in the manner as stipulated in the 2014 Share Option
Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2014 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
may commence on the date on which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years
from the date of the grant of the option subject to the provisions
for early termination thereof. No minimum period for which the
option must be held before it can be exercised is specified in the
2014 Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per Share in respect of an option granted
under the 2014 Share Option Scheme is such price as determined
by the Board at the time of the grant of the options, but in any case
the subscription price shall not be lower than the higher of:

J the closing price of the Share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date on which
the options are offered, which must be a business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the options are offered; and

. the nominal value of a Share on the date on which the
options are offered.
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(h)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$10 or other amount as determined
by the Board by way of consideration for the grant of an option is
required to be paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance of the
granted option.

Duration of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The 2014 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 26 March 2014). The 2014
Share Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the case may be)
on the earlier of (i) the approval of the Shareholders in a general
meeting, and (i) at the close of business on the day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary of the adoption date (the “Scheme
Period”).

After the Scheme Period, the Company cannot grant new options
but for so long as there are options granted but not yet exercised,
outstanding vested or unvested options, the 2014 Share Option
Scheme will remain in full force and effect of such outstanding
vested or unvested options or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the 2014 Share Option Scheme. As at the date of
the Report, a total of 622,000 share options (after adjustments for
share subdivision in 2015, share consolidation in 2017 and capital
reorganisation in 2022) had been granted by the Company under
the 2014 Share Option Scheme. The number of outstanding share
options as at 31 December 2022 is nil.

(9)

(h)
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group has not entered into any non-exempt one-
off connected transactions which should be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement and/or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2020, EFTERAMR A F] (Baoxin Holdings Company
Limited™*) (“Baoxin Holdings”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Property Management Services Framework
Agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with &Y EERBEBER
‘A 7A] (Shenzhen Jixiang Property Services Group Limited*) (“Shenzhen
Jixiang”), indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Yao, the Chairman and the
executive Director, being a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, pursuant to which Shenzhen Jixiang
agreed to provide property management services to Baoxin Holdings and
its subsidiaries (“Baoxin Holdings Group”) in accordance with the principal
terms of the Property Management Services Framework Agreement
for a period of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023.
The transactions under the Framework Agreement (the “Transactions”)
constitute continuing connected transactions.

The aggregate amount of the Property Management Services Fees
payable by Baoxin Holdings Group for the period from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2023 will not exceed RMB115,000,000 and the annual
caps for each of the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2023 will be RMB20,000,000, RMB45,000,000 and
RMB50,000,000,respectively.
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In respect of the Framework Agreement which constitutes the continuing
connected transactions, all the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the Transactions and confirmed that the Transactions have
been entered into: (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Auditor, was engaged to report on the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Based on the work performed, the Auditor confirmed to the Board that in
respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions (the “CCTs"):

(i) nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that caused the Auditor
to believe that, the CCTs have not been approved by the Board;

(i) nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that caused the Auditor
to believe that, the CCTs have not been entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(i) nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that caused the Auditor
to believe that the CCTs have exceeded the relevant cap.

The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter to the Board containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs under Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. The Company has provided a copy of the Auditor’s letter to
the Stock Exchange as required under Rule 14A.57 of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

On 28 October 2022, the Company was notified that Mr. Yao had ceased
to be the ultimate beneficial owner of Shenzhen Jixiang and hence the
Framework Agreement would no longer be subject to the annual review
and reporting requirements from the financial year ending 31 December
2023 onwards.
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Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken during
the Year under review are disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements. Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, these related
party transactions either (i) do not constitute connected or continuing
connected transactions; or (ii) fall under the definition of a connected or
continuing connected transaction, but are exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Share Capital

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December 2022 was
109,202,495 ordinary Shares of par value of HK$0.05 per Share.

On 20 April 2022, the Company held an extraordinary general meeting
and approved (i) the consolidation of every fifty (50) issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company
into one (1) consolidated share of HK$2.50 in the share capital of the
Company (“Consolidated Shares”) (“Share Consolidation”); (ii) capital
reduction by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$2.45 on
each of the then issued Consolidated Shares from HK$2.50 to HK$0.05
(“Capital Reduction”); and (iii) each of the authorized but unissued
Consolidated Shares of par value HK$2.5 be sub-divided into fifty (50)
new shares of par value of HK$0.05 each (“Share Sub-division”).

The Share Consolidation became effective on 22 April 2022. Details of
the Share Consolidation were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 11 March 2022 and 20 April 2022 and the circular of the
Company dated 30 March 2022.

The Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division were effective on 12
July 2022. Details of the Capital Reduction and Share Sub-division were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 11 March 2022,
20 April 2022, 13 June 2022 and 12 July 2022 and the circular of the
Company dated 30 March 2022.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Ordinary Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes”, at no time during the Year
was the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors or the
chief executive of the Company or any of their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions”, no contract of
significance to the business of the Group, to which the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor
had there been any contract of significance entered into between the
Group, or any of its subsidiaries and any of the Director or the Director’s
connected party during the year ended 31 December 2022. There was no
any other transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Competing Interests

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests of Director in
business which might compete with the Group during the Year was as
follows:

Mr. Yao Jianhui, being the Chairman and executive Director, is also the
chairman and executive director of GSFG, which through its subsidiaries,
is also engaged in property investment and development in the PRC.
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GSFG is involved in the investment and development of properties of
different types and/or in different locations, and the Board has been
operating independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
GSFG, no competition is considered to exist.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Relief from Taxation

The Directors are not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars regarding principal subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management Contracts

No contracts relating to the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

Public Float

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of the Report, there
has been sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Events After the Reporting Period

Particulars of events after the reporting period are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control system of the Group,
and to review the Company’s annual report and to provide advice and
comments thereon to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman),
Ms. He Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Disclosures under Rules 13.20 to 13.22 of the
Listing Rules

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6 March 2023,
in February 2023, Hunan Meilian Property Company Limited ($F %
B E G A8)) (“"Hunan Meilian”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as debtor, received an early repayment notice
(“Repayment Notice”) from a creditor bank in the PRC (“Creditor A")
in relation to a loan facility with the outstanding principal amount of
RMB227,390,000 (“Facility A”). In the Repayment Notice, it was alleged
that Hunan Meilian had defaulted on its obligations due to its failure to
make timely repayment under Facility A. Accordingly, Creditor A decided
to exercise its acceleration rights and demanded early repayment of the
principal sum and all interests overdue under Facility A. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6 March 2023.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 March
2023, in March 2023, the Company received a notice (the “Notice”)
from a creditor bank in the PRC (“Creditor B”) in relation to a loan facility
granted by Creditor B to Shenzhen Jitong Industrial Company Limited*
CFRINEBEEABRAR]) (“Shenzhen Jitong”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, with an outstanding principal amount
of RMB1,197,000,000 (“Facility B”). Facility B was secured by, among
other things, a guarantee by the Company (as a guarantor) in favour
of Creditor B. In the Notice, it was alleged that Shenzhen Jitong had
defaulted on its obligations due to its failure to make timely repayment
under Facility B. Accordingly, Creditor B demanded the Company (as a
guarantor) to forthwith perform its guaranteed obligations under Facility
B and the relevant guarantee contract. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

As at the date of this annual report, the outstanding amount under
Facility A and Facility B have not been repaid. The Company is
continuously assessing the legal, financial and operational impact of each
of the Repayment Notice and the Notice upon the Group. The Company
will closely monitor the development of the abovementioned matters and
will further issue announcement as and when appropriate pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Group had no
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation under
Rules 13.20 to 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The
Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 49 to 68 of the Annual Report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2023

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The principal objective of the Company is to enhance long-term total
return for all its stakeholders. The Company is committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and recognises that sound and
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to the smooth,
effective and transparent operation of a company and its ability to
attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and stakeholders,
and enhance shareholder value. As such, the Company’s corporate
governance policy has been designed to achieve these objectives and is
maintained through a framework of processes, policies and guidelines.
The Directors consider that incorporating the elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal control procedures
of the Group could balance the interests of the shareholders, customers,
suppliers and employees of the Company.

In December 2021, the Stock Exchange published the conclusions to
Review of Corporate Governance Code (the “Amended CG Code”)
and the corresponding changes to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) which came into
effect on 1 January 2022. The Board has applied and complied with the
code provisions and the recommended best practices under the Amended
CG Code as applicable. The Board will carry out a regular review and
propose any amendment, if necessary, to ensure compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code provisions as set out in the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board and the management of the Company are of the opinion that
the Company has properly complied with the applicable code provisions
in the Corporate Governance Code (version up to 31 December 2021)
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Audit Committee, nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and salary review committee (the “Salary Review
Committee”) of the Company, all with specific written terms of reference
and chaired by an independent non-executive Director, support the
Board in providing independent oversight in their respective areas of
responsibilities. The development committee of the Company oversees
management of, and advises the Board on the development and
implementation of the sustainability initiatives of the Group, including
reviewing the related environment, social and governance ("ESG") policies
and practices, and assessing and making recommendations on matters
concerning the Group’s sustainability development and ESG risks. Further
information on the sustainability initiatives and its key relationships with
stakeholders as well as the ESG performance of the Group can also be
found in the related 2022 ESG Report published on 28 April 2023.
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The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining standards of
openness, probity and accountability. In line with this commitment and in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Audit Committee
has overseen the financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. In addition, the Company has also
established the Whistleblowing Policy, the Anti-Corruption Policy and the
Inside Information and Disclosure Policy for compliance by all employees
of the Group, the details of the Whistleblowing Policy and the Anti-
Corruption Policy are disclosed in the 2022 ESG Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions
and dealing (the “Code of Conduct”) by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, they confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Board of Directors

At the date of the Report, the Board consists of two executive Directors
namely Mr. Yao Jianhui (Chairman) and Ms. Xia Lingjie (CEO); one non-
executive Director namely Ms. Zhan Yushan; and three independent non-
executive Directors namely Ms. He Suying, Dr. Tang Lai Wah and Mr.
Wong Chun Bong. To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the
Directors has any family, financial, business or other material/relevant
relationship with any of other Directors.

The Company considers that the Board has the necessary skills and
experience appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interest of the Company and that the current board size is adequate
for its present operations. Detailed biographies outlining each Director’s
range of specialist experience and suitability for the successful long-term
management of the Group can be found in the section headed “Directors
and Key Personnel Profiles” of the Report.

During the Year, Mr. Yao Jianhui, who is the Chairman, has met with the
independent non-executive Directors without the other Directors present.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, and the CEO, namely
Ms. Xia Lingjie, are segregated in order to reinforce their independence
and accountability. There are clear demarcations of responsibility
and authority between the Chairman and the CEO which ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.

Corporate Governance Report
Role and function of the Board and the management

The principal functions of the Board are to make decisions on the
objectives, strategic plans, budgets and management structure of the
Company; to oversee the management of the business and affairs of
the Group; to supervise the management of the business and affairs
with the objective of enhancing the Company and Shareholders’ value
with the proper delegation of power to the management for the day-
to-day operation of the Company, implementation of the budgets and
strategic plans and development of the organization of the Company for
implementing the Board's decisions. The composition and functions of
each Board committee and their major roles and functions are described
below. The final decision still rests with the Board unless otherwise
provided for in the Terms of Reference of the relevant committees.

Independent non-executive Directors are responsible for scrutinising
the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of the board authority is within
the powers conferred to the Board under the Company’s Articles of
Association, applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Independent non-executive Directors ensure that the Board is accountable
for the interest of all Shareholders and handles matters in an objective
manner. The three independent non-executive Directors have brought
a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for efficient and effective delivery of its
functions.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the independent
non-executive Directors remain independent. The Board will maintain
proper channels of communication and ensure that the independent
views and input are available to the Board in time, the effectiveness of
which will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election.

Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association provides that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

Every Director, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once
every three years at the annual general meeting of the Company. Their
appointments shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee when they
are being due for re-election.

Board Meetings

The Board holds at least four regular meetings a year. The Board convenes
meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as required by
business needs. All Directors are invited to attend the Board meetings in
person or by video/telephone conference.

Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all Directors for regular Board
meetings and reasonable notices for all other Board meetings will be
given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them has an opportunity
to attend the meetings. Board papers will be given to the Board at least 3
days before the date of the Board meeting by the Company Secretary.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a

matter, the matter will be preferably dealt by a physical Board meeting
rather than a written resolution.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Year, the Board held a total of seven Board meetings. Details
of Directors’ attendance record in the year of 2022 is as follows:
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Directors meetings held
HESERAE

BEx BITEBRE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yao Jianhui kRS E 5/7

Ms. Xia Lingjie EERELt 77

Non-Executive Director FHITES

Ms. Zhan Yushan EEHZ 717

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

Ms. He Suying =&+ 77

Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEEL 77

Mr. Wong Chun Bong FIRFLLE ar7

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary’s role is to support the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the Board policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on governance affairs and facilitating the induction
and professional development of Directors. The Company Secretary is
an employee of the Company and reports to the Chairman. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
Company Secretary is delegated with the responsibility for drawing up
the agenda for each Board meeting and ensures that, where applicable,
matters proposed by other Directors are included in the agenda and
that all applicable rules and regulations are followed. All Directors may
ask for matters to be included in the agenda for regular Board meetings
by making a request to the Company Secretary. During the Year, the
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge
as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed of significant changes of the Group’s
business from time to time. They have unrestricted access to the advices
from the Company Secretary who is responsible for furnishing the board
papers and related materials.
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Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director. The
Directors including independent non-executive Directors may seek for
legal advices at the Company’s expenses to discharge their duties.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk
exposure arising from the business of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

A comprehensive, formal and tailored induction training will be given
to every newly appointed Directors. Directors will be provided with
materials relevant to the Company’s business and director’s duties and
responsibilities. In addition, in order to allow the Directors to understand
the latest development of regulatory and compliance issues, they are also
provided with market news and regulatory updates. A summary of their
training records of continuing professional development (“CPD") is as
follows:
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Types of CPD Subject of CPD

Directors (Note 1) (Note 2)

HESERRERN RBEEERRITE
BE (MtEE1) (FFzE2)
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yao Jianhui PhiEB A 1,2 A B
Ms. Xia Lingjie BEfEL+ 1,2 A, B
Non-executive Director FETES
Ms. Zhan Yushan P | 1,2 A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Ms. He Suying fA] =B+ 1,2 A, B
Dr. Tang Lai Wah BEEE L 1,2 A, B
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FiRF KA 1,2 A, B
Note 1: BiEET -
1. Attending in-house training or external seminars 1. RS EE RIS
2. Reading newspapers, journals and updated legal and regulatory news Note 2: 2. HEFHE  STRsINEEREEHR
Note 2: B3k 2
A The Company’s business A ENNGIES
B. Laws, rules and regulations, accounting standards B. VAR BRAIREG) - FEHEER)
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Board Committees

The Board has established three statutory committees with specific
written Terms of Reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Salary Review Committee are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

At the date of the Report, the Audit Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wong Chun Bong (the
chairman), Ms. He Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, inter alia, to review
and monitor financial reporting and the judgments contained therein;
and to review financial and internal controls half-yearly and annually,
accounting policies and to provide recommendations and advices to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor as well as their terms of appointment.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the management
the accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group and
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters. The audited
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Attendance of the Audit Committee members during the Year is set out
below:
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Members meetings held

HESRRE
RE BITEBRE
Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman) FIRBAEE () 4/5
Ms. He Suying A RE L L 5/5
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEE L 5/5

Nomination Committee

At the date of the Report, the Nomination Committee consists of three
members with two independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Wong Chun Bong (chairman) and Ms. He Suying and an executive
Director namely Mr. Yao Jianhui.
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The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The major functions of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure and composition of
the Board, to review and provide recommendations to the Shareholders
on individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and the terms
of Director’s service contract, and to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and to review the Board Diversity
Policy. Attendance of the Nomination Committee members during the
Year is set out below:
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No. of meeting
attended/No. of

Members meeting held

HEERRE
RE BTERRE
Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman) FIRFELE(EE) 0N
Mr. Yao Jianhui kB 7
Ms. He Suying DES-%-tun ”n

Nomination Policy

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations
to the Board. The director nomination policy sets out the approach and
procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and selection of directors
of the Company including the appointment of additional directors,
replacement of directors, and re-election of directors. Below are details of
the selection criteria and nomination process and procedures as set out in
the director nomination policy.

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate can
bring to the Board in terms of his or her qualifications, skills, experience,
independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity, etc. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection criteria and
such other factors that it may consider appropriate for a position on the
Board, including but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary to the
Board, (b) business experience, board expertise and skills, (c) availability, (d)
motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence and (g) diversity (in all aspects).

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election and/
or appointment of the Directors shall be conducted in compliance with
the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board
with a view to attaining a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company. The Board Diversity Policy is subject to annual review by the
Nomination Committee.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a bundle of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and independence. The Company will also take into account
factors based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time.

The selection of the candidate will ultimately be made based on merit
and contribution and will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

During the Year and as at the date of the Report, the Board is comprised
of six (6) Directors, four (4) of which are female. The following table
further illustrates the diversity of the Board members as of the date of the
Report:

Number of

Directors Position

Executive Directors

WITES

Non-executive Director

FMTES

Age Group
& iz Fie AR

““““““‘\ ; ““““““““““

50-59

B A

EEESUEE

ARREMEZTE S TEBR(EFEZ T
B EREIEREEE ST
RASKRAAIRERFEER -BEFEZT
LR TBREZ BRI FmE -

ARRBBEEE—RIRAEASKREREFS
Zlt BRETRRMER - Fik - XEEH
BEES Bk FELR - R FENBETL
o RRB IS TR IREAR & B0 E B E A S

RIORTE R AR ER AT PE RE AR KRB & 7l
REFEELZAERMRER  URZKR— 7
L AEETEE  BRETRNMER - F
B XEAMHEE R - EELR - AHE ML
5 o

RAFEARRARERH  EXEHN6)H
EFAN - M@ B AR - TRE—FE
ARARHEAREFEREZZTCIRE ¢

Service of
years

EREFR

Major Skill &
Knowledge

FERERAE

Real Estate

FEHE

4-5 _

Investment

BE

BHEMEEERDA 2022 F K

57



58

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e HEREE 4

The Nomination Committee has monitored the implementation of Board
Diversity Policy and has also undertaken periodic review of it at least on
an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and may seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expenses, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

Salary Review Committee

At the date of the Report, the Salary Review Committee consists of three
members with two independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. He
Suying (chairlady) and Dr. Tang Lai Wah and an executive Director namely
Mr. Yao Jianhui. The majority of the members of the Salary Review
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary objectives of Salary Review Committee are, inter alia,
to formulate the remuneration policy based on the responsibilities,
qualifications and working performance of senior management of the
Company (“Senior Management”) and Directors; review and recommend
the Board’s annual remuneration policy. The Salary Review Committee
has adopted the model under Code Provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Directors and Senior Management. The major objective of
the remuneration policy is to ensure that the Company is able to attract,
retain, and motivate a high-calibre team which is essential to the success
of the Company.

Attendance of the Salary Review Committee members during the Year is
set out below:

REZESEREFEZLILHERNERIS
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RBIULIFHITES °

Fima R E eI ERE B8R (AP )
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EZNBE  EFERIERBHIETEHMECE
BHFEFHBRERLANESSRHEHERS
R Fest R EGERMEEERTRIMST
MBS SR E1. 2(0)(ii) IREVIE S - ABLIERIZE S I
BREEABNFMEFENESSRHERE
R o FMBR 2 T 2R RTIBRANABENR
5 REBELHBHARRNNEZHEENSE
=E -

FBR R EeRERANFEALFEZNE
ST

No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Members meetings held

HESRXE
RE BIEBRE
Ms. He Suying (Chairman) fAIERRZE: (F/E) 7
Mr. Yao Jianhui PR A 11
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEBEE L 7

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and Senior Management for
the Year are set out in notes 15 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

During the Year, the Board was responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as follows:

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendation to the Board;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Group’s employees and Directors; and

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure on the corporate governance policies.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the Year, which have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee and audited by the external auditors, BDO Limited (the
" Auditor”).

Going Concern

As the Auditor has not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements for the Year, the Auditor issued the Disclaimer of
Opinion, the details of which are described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion” section of the Independent Auditor's Report as set out on pages
69 to 73 of the Annual Report.

The detailed discussion in relation to the Disclaimer of Opinion are
disclosed under the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section as set
out on pages 17 to 23 of the Annual Report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid/payable to
BDO Limited, the auditors of the Company, is set out as follows:

Type of services provided by the external auditors

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE  Bf
S ENARR RSB EERE B
FTER ARSI T

SMER R BAEm AT iR 2 BRI B2

Fee
EA
(HK$'000)
(F&7T)
Audit services: FERE -
Annual audit services of the Company KA RFEEZRG 2,200

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group, observing the requirements of the code provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, has established appropriate risk
management and internal control systems that are commensurate with its
current state of business operation and development. The management
is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the
systems, and the Board, by establishing a risk management committee
(the "Risk Management Committee”) on 31 December 2015, oversees
the systems on an ongoing basis. At the date of the Report, the Risk
Management Committee consists of two executive Directors namely Mr.
Yao Jianhui (chairman) and Ms. Xia Lingjie and a non-executive Director
namely Ms. Zhan Yushan. The Risk Management Committee ensures
that the risk management and internal control measures adopted are
compatible with the Group’s objectives, strategies and risk appetite.
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Attendance of the Risk Management Committee members during the
Year is set out below:

e SER0E v

REREEZEE@XENAFEALESHNE
REHIT -

No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Members meetings held

HESBRE
24=1 BITEERE
Mr. Yao Jianhui (chairman) Pk A 3/3
Ms. Xia Lingjie B+ 3/3
Ms. Zhan Yushan EEM L 3/3

The Board has directed that the effectiveness of the material controls of
the systems be reviewed regularly, at least annually, and such a review
must include financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board,
having considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budgets of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions based on reports of an
annual review of the systems, has directed that adequate resources be
allocated to meet the requirements in such aspects.

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems
are described as below.

Risk Management System

In common with all business concerns, the Group strives to achieve its
objectives amidst uncertainty and has adopted as reference the risk
management principles and guidelines under the International Standard
ISO31000 to manage the effect of such uncertainty on its objectives.

The risk management process, developed according to the standard as
an integral part of the management, tailored to and embedded in the
business practices, comprises the following activities and phases:

° Communication and consultation

Communication and consultation with stakeholders or risk owners
being those in charge of legal entities, functional units or business
processes are established, developed and exercised at all stages of
the risk management process, to address issues arising from risks,
causes, consequences and measures required to treat the risks.
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Establishing the context

Desirable objectives are articulated, external as well as internal
parameters are defined, risk criteria is set in order to facilitate the
conduction risk management process.

Risk Assessment

It is the overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and risk
evaluation.

(@)  Risk identification: through the network of communication
and consultation established with stakeholders or risk owners,
sources of risk, areas of impacts, events or changes in
circumstances, causes and consequences are identified. Risks
so identified are reported and recognised in the risk register
to facilitate risk analysis and evaluation of their impact on the
achievement of objectives.

(b)  Risk analysis: an understanding of the risks identified is
obtained in order to consider the causes and sources of risk,
their consequences whether favourable or unfavourable,
likelihood, confidence in determining the level of risk and
sensitivity to preconditions.

(©)  Risk evaluation: decision is made based on the outcome of
risk analysis, about whether a particular risk needs treatment
and corresponding priority for treatment implementation.

Risk treatment

Where decision is made that a particular risk needs treatment,
options are developed for modifying the risk by providing mitigation
or appropriate controls in order to reduce the residual risk to a
tolerable level.

(@)  Controls address the key causes and impacts of the risk.
(b)  Controls consistent with the achievement of the corporate

objectives and performance targets are designed and
implemented.
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e Monitoring and review

(@) Management reviews to ensure controls are effective and
efficient in both design and operation at least annually.

(b)  Risk management performance is regularly monitored.

(c)  Risks and risk management performance are appropriately
communicated to stakeholders or risk owners including
those in charge of governance and those responsible for the
management of legal entities, functional units or business
processes.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems for
identifying and managing risks that are material to the achievement of
corporate objectives.

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system designed and implemented
according to the framework and principles as advocated by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO") in 2013. The system thus developed facilitates the Group to
achieve effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance of laws and regulations. The main components
of the framework and the underlying principles that the Group observes
are as follows:

° Control Environment

Sound control environment is established by obtaining commitment
at all levels to integrity and ethical values, appointing independent
board of directors for oversight, enacting structures, organizations
and processes with clear reporting lines, authorities and
responsibilities, developing competences, and holding people
accountable to internal control.

° Risk Assessment

The risk assessment component under the COSO framework
complements that under the International Standard ISO31000. It
emphasises that clear objectives be firstly specified and risks to the
achievement of objectives are then identified with specific reference
to the need for considering potential for fraud and impact of
significant internal and external changes.
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° Control Activities

Control activities are selected and developed as part of the
treatment of risks identified. Controls are developed through
policies and procedures, along with information technology controls
selected and developed where appropriate.

o Information and Communication

This component is concerned with establishing internal and
external communication to provide the Group with quality
information needed to carry out day-to-day controls in support of
the achievement of its objectives. The communication component
under the COSO framework and that under the International
Standard 1SO31000 are two sides of the same coin, with the former
emphasising on information required to support the achievement of
objectives and the latter, on information required to address issues
arising from risks or the impact of uncertainty on the achievement
of objectives.

e Monitoring

It refers to ongoing and separate evaluations conducted to
ascertain whether material controls are appropriately developed and
functioning effectively. Internal control deficiencies identified are
evaluated and communicated to appropriate stakeholders.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, has ongoing oversight of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Risk Management Committee holds
regular meetings to review risks recognised in the risks register based on
information from various stakeholders or risk owners. The Directors are
kept regularly apprised of significant risks that may impact the Group’s
performance.

During the Year, the Board has engaged an external professional
consulting firm, JFU CPA, to review the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems with a view to:

o Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk

management and internal control systems insofar as the principal
operations as identified are concerned;
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o Developing and implementing a new integrated management
tool for coordinating the overall risk management activities of the
Group; and

o Reporting to the Audit Committee the findings of the review and
making recommendations to the Board.

On the findings and recommendations, the Board concludes that the
state of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems is
sufficiently effective and commensurates with the current development
of the Group. The Group has been moving at a rapid pace and key
business structures, organizations and processes are being formed in
support. Accordingly, the Board directs that more resources be assigned
to develop controls, risk treatments and training in alignment with the
continuing development of the Group, ensuring that the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems are maintained.

Inside Information

Policies, procedures and controls for handling and dissemination of
inside information has been set out internally to enhance information
management of the Group and to ensure the authenticity, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of information disclosed to the public
while safeguarding the legitimate rights and interests of the Company,
Shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders as a whole.

Corporate Governance and Internal Audit

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are very
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and for the
sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has established an internal
audit function since 2018 to uplift the quality of corporate governance.

The internal audit function is independent of the Group’s daily operations
and facilitates the Board on evaluating the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting interviews and
performing tests on management and operational controls.

Internal audit work plans are developed and executed with approval
of the Board, and with the essential support of experienced external
consultants. The internal audit function is accountable to the Board
through the Audit Committee.
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Special Measures for Pandemic Outbreak

Since the outbreak of the Pandemic, a number of provinces and
municipalities in the PRC have taken emergency public health measures
and various actions to prevent the spread of the Pandemic during the
Year. Under such special circumstances, the Group has been using its
best endeavours to forestall a prolonged effect of the Pandemic on its
operations.

At the operational level, the Group:

o has set out and adopted series of strict hygiene and epidemic
control measures for sake of safeguarding the personal health
safety of all staff and workers, contractors, customers and the
general public in various office areas, project sites and operating
premises of the Group;

o has designated a committee comprising of management team
members who will be responsible for the supervision of the process
of implementation of those key control measures, coordination and
arrangement of provision of services in the workplace with the aim
to maintain normal operation; and

o has been communicating with key suppliers and contractors for
logistic arrangements to ensure delivery of building construction
materials in various stages and gradual return of the site workers in
preparation for the resumption where applicable.

The Board will continue to assess the impact of the Pandemic on
the operation and financial performance of the Group, while closely
monitoring the development of the Pandemic and the risks and
uncertainties being faced by the Group as a result of the Pandemic and
will take appropriate measures and actions as necessary.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself/herself or
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The requisition in
writing should be sent to the Company’s office at Unit 1305, 13/F., Tower
Two, Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled at
Shareholders’ meetings for adoption. The Board will review Shareholders’
enquiries on a periodic basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the above address.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their enquiries
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at www:.tricoris.com,
or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com or dial its hotline at
(852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public counter at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Communication with Shareholders

During the Year, the Board has adopted the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy, which is posted on the Company’s website.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and its
shareholders.

Designated Senior Management is responsible for communicating and
enhancing relationships with the investors of the Company. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in a timely manner.
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Further, the Company provides extensive information in its annual and
interim reports and announcements. All Shareholders’ communications
are also available on the Company’s website, where the relevant latest
information, the up-to-date state of the Company’s business operation
and development, the Company’s financial information and corporate
governance practices and other data are available to the public.

The general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make
an effort to attend the annual general meeting. External auditor is also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’ queries.
In case of any general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address Shareholders’ queries.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.

Details of the Directors’ attendances at the 2022 general meeting are as
follows:
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T

No. of general
Meetings
attended/No. of

Directors general meetings held
HERRAERE

#5 BIRERERH

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yao Jianhui kB A 2/2

Ms. Xia Lingjie BiEEL+ 2/2

Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhan Yushan HEHAZ 2/2

Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHITES

Ms. He Suying fAZEEZ+ 2/2

Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEERET 2/2

Mr. Wong Chun Bong THRAEE 2/2

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company does not have any changes in the constitutional document
during the Year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

IBDO

EEE 1 +85222188288
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www.bdo.com.hk
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25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EFATHEER11158
KBRHIDL251

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLORY SUN LAND GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Glory Sun Land Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 228, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in the
“Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Scope limitation relating to appropriateness of the
going concern assumption

As disclosed in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$911 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, and as of that date, as disclosed in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$6,481 million, of which the current borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$5,568 million, while the Group had bank
and cash balances of approximately HK$88 million only.

BREFBEHEEARAFARRE
(RESEEZMAK LA BHRLF])

THRERER

EERREERI BN E T4 28R EHEN
SEARAR(ERA]) KENBAR (TEE
B WEZEEMBHRE  EReERN -2
TA=1T—HNEAMBINREK - UREE
ZHILFENGEEaEtEEERER - &
BRABHRMEERERER - URGEEH
BHRERME - ETESFBER -

BEY BERENGEVBBRRITERER -
BHREERST [THRRBANEE] —EAM
MEENEZN - BEEWRERNRERTEE
BZBBARZERAVBRENBZERR
HEE - ERAEHEMIE - BERRERE MK
BRERBEBRRGHIZ /RS -

THRRERNEE

ARFRECERRNEEE 2EE
BRR 51

BANR A ERERM 20 EE - REE=
T+ -_A=+—HUHFE  S£EE
AEELHM BEESTT AEE%A Ak
AISHRERMGE20FTIRE - SEEEREE
#76,481 BEABT - HAMENEL A5,568
BEBIT . AM BEEBERITIRSERELD
B8SEBEATT

BNEMREEARAT 2022FF

69



70

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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As at 31 December 2022, as a result of not making scheduled
repayment of loan principal and/or interest and breach of other loan
covenants during the year, among the current borrowings, the entire
principal amounts of approximately HK$3,295 million in aggregate
which comprised bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,567 million
(the "FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings”), other borrowings of
approximately HK$9 million, corporate bonds of approximately HK$605
million and loans from related parties of approximately HK$1,114 million,
together with interest payables of approximately HK$326 million became
due and repayable on demand.

In particular, due to not making scheduled repayment of interest and
breach of other loan covenants during the year, a non-current bank
borrowing of approximately HK$1,317 million was reclassified as the
current liabilities which was included in the FY2022 Defaulted Bank
Borrowings.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group has received repayment
notices from the banks to demand for repayment of total outstanding
principal amounts of approximately HK$1,567 million of the FY2022
Defaulted Bank Borrowings, together with the interest payables.

In addition, due to not making scheduled repayment of loan principal
and/or interest subsequent to 31 December 2022, the entire principal
amounts of approximately HK$604 million in aggregate including bank
borrowings of approximately HK$384 million (the “FY2023 Defaulted
Bank Borrowings”) and other borrowings of approximately HK$220
million, together with interest payables of approximately HK$83
million became due and repayable on demand subsequent to the end
of the reporting period. In particular, among the FY2023 Defaulted
Bank Borrowings, a bank borrowing with the entire principal amount
of approximately HK$318 million, of which approximately HK$66
million and approximately HK$252 million were classified as current
borrowing portion and non-current borrowing portion, respectively as
at 31 December 2022, has subsequently become due and repayable on
demand as a result of not making scheduled repayment of loan principal
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

These conditions, together with other matters set out in note 2(c) to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the Group may not be
able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
prepared a cash flow forecast (the “Cash Flow Forecast”) which takes
into account of the plans and measures as set out in note 2(c) to the
consolidated financial statements. Based on the assessment made by
the directors of the Company, assuming the plans and measures can be
successfully implemented as scheduled notwithstanding the inherent
uncertainties associated with the future outcome of the above plans
and measures, the Group is able to continue as a going concern and it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The appropriateness of the consolidated financial statements prepared
on a going concern basis largely depends on whether those plans and
measures as detailed in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements
can be successfully implemented as scheduled.

However, in respect of the plans and measures that the Group would
successfully make further drawdown of the unutilised loan facilities from
the fund providers (the “Fund Providers”), as and when necessary, we
were unable to obtain the information that we considered necessary
for our evaluation of the financial viability of the Fund Providers to
provide sufficient funds to the extent that is necessary based on the Cash
Flow Forecast due to the unavailability of the information of the Fund
Providers.

Due to the limitations on our scope of work as stated above and there are
no alternative audit procedures that we can perform to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support the above plans and measures
can be successfully implemented, as a result, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence to conclude whether the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting to prepare the consolidated
financial statements is appropriate.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above plans and measures as
abovementioned, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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We disclaimed our opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“2021 consolidated
financial statements”) relating to the going concern basis of preparing the
consolidated financial statements. The balances as at 31 December 2021
and the amounts for the year then ended are presented as comparative
information in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022. We disclaimed our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 also for the
possible effect of the disclaimer of opinion on 2021 consolidated financial
statements on the comparability of 2022 figures and 2021 figures in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate Number P04743

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fo 18 A S LAt 2 i W 4

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F - —F 1+ _-A=+—HILFZ

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET FAT
Continuing operations BHEREER
Revenue = 9 1,617,467 5,504,341
Cost of sales SHERA (2,142,594) (5,234,073)
Gross (loss)/profit E(8)F (525,127) 270,268
Selling expenses HEMX (53,119) (99,558)
Administrative expenses 1TERFASZ (118,956) (141,074)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARR K 37(a) = 296,057
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment BEMESANTE(EBE) ks
properties 21 (222,953) 70,713
Fair value gain on derivative financial ITESREEN R HERS
asset - 1,313
Impairment losses on property, plant and 4% - & KR ERIEEE - H58
equipment — net 20 (24,508) (35,755)
Impairment losses on financial and SRR EHNEERERE - F58
contract assets — net (12,673) (23,005)
Other income, gains/(losses) — net Hablg A -~ Wz (E518) - 358 10 81,455 9,875
(Loss)/profit from operations K (BE) R (875,881) 348,834
Finance costs BERA 11 (185,902) (125,036)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BREFEBAT (BE) ER 13 (1,061,783) 223,798
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfiike, (k) 12 150,519 (3,541)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REFECEEBRNAREE
continuing operations (E518) %7 (911,264) 220,257
Discontinued operations BAIEREER
Profit for the year from discontinued R E B AR A& TS AN 5 )
operations 17 - 84,452
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BE) BR (911,264) 304,709
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o P TR i B L il 2 v W i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F - —F 1+ _-A=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FET FAT
Other comprehensive income, BREEEMMEEKER
net of tax
Item that will not be reclassified THEHFEEEmEE -
to profit or loss:
Fair value changes of equity ERATHESBEMEAWETIER
instruments at fair value through (MEAFEEBEMEEE
other comprehensive income FIER ) 2R T AWM A FEE
("FVTOCI") £ (3.441) (2,782)
(3.441) (2,782)
Items that may be reclassified HETEN 7 EZREEE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BEGINETSHIE X =58
foreign operations (684,698) 180,390
Exchange differences reclassified HEWBATSETSEEELR
to profit or loss on disposal of HbE X =58
subsidiaries - (31,732)
(684,698) 148,658
Other comprehensive income for TEENREAZEM2EKS
the year, net of tax (688,139) 145,876
Total comprehensive income for AEEZHIKNRERE
the year (1,599,403) 450,585
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable FE{GZAEE (FiE),H5F ¢
to:
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIES TSN
— Continuing operations - BB (787,049) 250,169
— Discontinued operations = Jl S = 84,452
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable AARFEAREARFE
to owners of the Company (B18) % H (787,049) 334,621
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR
— Continuing operations — B REETS (124,215) (29,912)
Loss for the year attributable to I RGN FEEE -
non-controlling interests (124,215) (29,912)
(911,264) 304,709
Total comprehensive income for the E{iAFEEZEUGEHAE
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEEY SN (1,278,066) 393,486
Non-controlling interests FEFR MR S (321,337) 57,099
(1,599,403) 450,585
(Loss)/earnings per share — basicand &% (Fi8) BF - EXAR#E (re-presented)
diluted (HK cents) (L) (#=5%)
— Continuing operations — BB 19 (720.73) 239.70
— Discontinued operations - BRI ETE 19 = 80.92
19 (720.73) 320.62
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i SR L A

As at 31 December 2022 R —ZE - —#+_-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE FET FAT
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NERIE 20 84,048 137,116
Investment properties wEME 21 3,492,852 4,063,202
Goodwill EES 22 - =
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAFEESBEMZEKGETIRZ
TREE 24 1,253 4,694
3,578,153 4,205,012
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 8,086,954 10,016,940
Contract assets BHEE 26 31,505 34,619
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EMEKRIA 27 4,407,066 5,116,986
Tax recoverable EE4EE 51,119 53,487
Pledged and restricted bank deposits BRI MR EERI TR 28 441,325 381,882
Bank and cash balances RITRIRES 4 28 88,415 341,393
13,106,384 15,945,307
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings RN 29 5,567,577 5,404,088
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMERFRIA 30 4,022,677 4,039,754
Contract liabilities AHAaE 26 2,386,427 2,351,563
Financial guarantee BTG HEIR 31 80,482 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 40 5,581 5,918
Current tax liabilities BNEAfIB B B 97,613 101,877
12,160,357 11,903,200
Net current assets REBEEFE 946,027 4,042,107
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

0 SR Dl 2

As at 31 December 2022 R =—F - —F+—=-H=+—H

2022 2021

—E-CF T

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B 5T TH&T FHT

Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERAEBAR 4,524,180 8,247,119
Non-current liabilities kRBAE

Borrowings BN 29 913,535 2,663,386

Financial guarantee B TS HER 31 - 89,628

Lease liabilities MHEBE 40 47,062 58,626

Deferred tax liabilities BERTBEE 32 371,029 643,522

1,331,626 3,455,162

NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,192,554 4,791,957
Capital and reserves ERR B

Share capital A& 33 5,460 273,006

Reserves i 35 1,670,408 2,680,928

Equity attributable to owners of the RATIHEE AR

Company 1,675,868 2,953,934

Non-controlling interests FEF RS 1,516,686 1,838,023

TOTAL EQUITY EREE 3,192,554 4,791,957

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023 and were signed on its

behalf.

Yao Jianhui

ke
Director

EF

W)

p=lllg
N
[ 48
Sk

AV BRREEESEN _T_=F=
BHUER TR BIA TERRER

Xia Lingjie
xR
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o T A 5 B

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KDAREREAES
Share Non-
Share Share  redemption Merger ~ Statutory Other ~ Shareholders  Translation FTOC  Accumulated controlling
apital  premium resenve resenve reserve reserve  contribution reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
BOTE
FEHfRE
bt
R&  BfEE BROMEEE  AHEE GERE  HEBE  BRRME ENRR i EiEE Bt pEHRER  ERSE
HK$'000 HK$1000 HKS 1000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$1000 HKS1000 HK$'000
Thr Thn T Tin Tin T T Thn Thr Thr Thn T T
At lanuary 202 Ho8-2-5-A WS 3leE 28 pOme % L G mED  (BRY (BN 2088 M 406
Proftforthe year KEREH = = = = = = = = = 334621 334621 (2891) 304709
Fair vl changes of equity RATEREEM2ANEIE,

nstruments at FVTOCI BRTEH - - - - - - - - 278)) - (278) - (278)
Bichange dferences ontrandlating. — AE NI ERAEN 28

foreln operations - - - - - - - 9379 - - 93379 8701 18039
Bichange diferences recssfied  HEMBRTRERHEERENE

o proft o loss on disposals of HER

subsidiaries - - - - - - - (31732 - - 3173) - 3173
Total comprehensive income for - AEE2FHEEE

the year = = = S = S = 61,647 (2780) 34621 393,486 57,099 450585
Disposes of subsciaries HEHBLA - - - 90026 91.427) 2,08) - - - (846,5%6) - (8519) 8519
Deemed partial disposa of RS ERRAT

subsdares withoutlosng conol (REAIESIEE) (i 230)

(note 231b) o o & S S 4351 - m - - 5064 (5,064) -
Isuance of shares on placement ~ EEREARI (K333)

(note 33) 85,501 07034 - - - - - - - - 253 - 153
Transler to statutory esenve AZivdE - - = = 1919 = = = S (£9,195) = = =
Changes inequity fortheyear ~ AEEERSE 8H,501 01034 - 940,026 0130 2308 - 62,360 (2782 (561,130) 671,085 43516 T14601
At31December 2021 HoB=-£2A1-E M6 341685 289 SN A LT (680 (893 2mBC BRI 4%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

f iy A 5 Bl

KDAREREAES
Share Non-
Share Share  redemption  Statutory Other ~ Shareholders  Translation FVTOC  Accumulated controlling
apital  premium resenve reserve reserve  contribution reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
BAPE
FEHfRE
Waslg
R&  BHEE ROMERE  ERE  AMHE 0 BREE ENER fff  ZiER Bt FEHRER  EESE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T TEn T TEn TEn TEn TER 18R TER T T TEn
At1January 2022 W-BZZE-B-A 273,006 3,416,858 2,269 54,201 904,419 4149 164,990 (16621)  (1849331) 2953934 1838,023 4791957
Loss or the year KEEEE - - - - - (187.009)  (187049) (14215 (911,264
Fair value changes of equity nstruments at
frod - - - - (3,041) - (3,441) (3.441)
Exchange differences on transating freign
operations - - - (487,576) - - (487,576) (197,122) (684,698)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2AHGEE - - - (487,576) (3.441) (787,049)  (1,218,066) (321337)  (1,599,403)
Reduction of shae capta upon capita RAEEEREE ()
rearganisation (note 33) (267,546) - - - - 267,546 -
Transferto statutory esene EBELTRE - 1,565 - - - - (1,565) =
Changes inequityfo the year FEERRSE (267546) 1565 - SIS ) (G0 (806 B3N (15%9403)
At 31 December 2022 W-BZZEtZf=t-R 5,460 3,416,858 2269 55,766 904,419 4149 (322,586) (2006) (2370405 1,675,868 1,516,686 3,192,554
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRIRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before income tax B ETSRLAT (EB1R) & A
— Continuing operations — BT (1,061,783) 223,798
— Discontinued operations - BRI TS = 84,452
(1,061,783) 308,250
Adjustments for: AT RIEFE -
Interest income B U A 10 (4,083) (9,924)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 37(a) = (399,199)
Finance costs BB RN g 185,902 140,643
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~— E{th EE A& A 8 13 - 4,303
Depreciation e 13 21,107 30,642
Loss on disposal of property, plantand &Y - BE &R IENEE
equipment 10 32 1
Gain on early termination of lease BRI IERE MY 10 - 2)
Gain on lease modifications HEENRWES 10 (2,246) =
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment WEWEN N EEE, (W)
properties 21 222,953 (70,713)
Fair value gain on derivative financial TEemEEMNRN T EKE
asset = (1,313)
Foreign exchange gain Nl e (70,865) =
Loss from derecognition of derivative BIHERTE S B ENETE
financial asset 10 - 33,357
Impairment losses on other intangible  E 4 712 & R (E 518
assets 13 - 10,211
Impairment losses on property, plant ME - ME K&K
and equipment — net RIEEE - 55 13 24,508 35,755
Impairment losses on financial and SRNEAENEERBEERE - F58
contract assets — net 13 12,673 23,730
Write-down of inventories T EHUR 13 700,068 163,998
Operating profit before working capital %8 & & BB F] 2 & 25T
changes 28,266 269,739
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other 25 & H b fE k18
receivables WA (Em) 50,890 (214,807)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,(E0) 605,301 (1,453,808)
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEE N 292,308 2,137,536
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H A FET R IEIE h1 44,304 1,153,491
Cash generated from operations KETHEEE 1,021,069 1,892,151
Tax paid ENHIE (67,766) (159,735)
Interest received EHFIE 4,083 9,924
Net cash generated from operating ST TS IR & R %R
activities 957,386 1,742,340
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

PoE - CFEF =1 —HIFFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash PEWBAR  MRELERS
disposed 37(a) - 178,023

Placement of pledged and restricted
bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged and restricted

FA BRI R ZRBIRITFR

TR IR S X R BIRTTIFR

(901,406) (1,946,157)

bank deposits 796,733 2,134,586
Proceeds from disposal of financial BTFEEERATEBREM
assets at FVTOC! in prior year FEKBEIECEREE
FriS3k3R 3,946 -
Consideration received in relation to BATFEEHEMBARZ
disposal of subsidiaries in prior year BURE 132,000 -
Payment of consideration in relation BEFEUWEENE A RSN
to acquisition of subsidiaries in prior KRB
year = (548)
Purchases of property, plant and EEME - BE&&HE
equipment (8,190) (34,642)
Payment for investment properties XAREYE (25,669) (233,559)
Payment for intangible assets XEEE = (128)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  HENMERERN
plant and equipment FriSsE 55 103
Proceeds from disposal of investment &SRB EMN TS RIE
properties 24,608 415,604
Net cash generated investing activities R & RS FTISIR S H5E 22,077 513,282
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Advance from/(repayment to) related RaE 2 e, (BE)
parties 37(b) 1,433 (110,536)
Proceeds from borrowings B FEHIE 37(b) 2,813,120 5,117,219
Proceeds from issue of corporate BITRRIEFBRIE
bonds 37(b) - 180,000
Proceeds from issue of shares on B E R B TRR D RS I8
placement - 272,535
Repayment of borrowings BEEm 37(b) (3,677,822) (6,873,804)
Repayment of corporate bonds EBEARES 37(b) (75,012) (374,000)
Repayment of principal portion on BEHERRE2ASHD
lease liabilities 37(b) (914) (6,405)
Repayment of interest portion on EREEREZFEHD
lease liabilities 37(b) (5,524) (6,003)
Repayment to a non-controlling ERIEE MRS
interest 37(b) (205) (230)
Interest paid 2T & 37(b) (253,584) (799,271)
Net cash used in financing activities A RIS T (1,198,508) (2,600,495)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERHRESZEEYRL FHE
EQUIVALENTS (219,045) (344,873)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNzBEERBRESEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 341,393 735,501
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgH s T8
RATE CHANGES (33,933) (49,235)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SXZRERBESZEY -
END OF YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BRUTARRT 88,415 341,393
Bank and cash balances WEREFER S 88,415 341,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business in Hong Kong
is Unit 1305, 13/F, Tower Two, Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements. “The Group” comprises the Company and its
subsidiaries.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c) Going concern assumption

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$911 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, and as of that date, as
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$6,481
million, of which the current borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$5,568 million, while the Group had bank
and cash balances of approximately HK$88 million only.

As at 31 December 2022, as a result of not making scheduled
repayment of loan principal and/or interest and breach of
other loan covenants during the year, among the current
borrowings, the entire principal amounts of approximately
HK$3,295 million in aggregate which comprised bank
borrowings of approximately HK$1,567 million (the “FY2022
Defaulted Bank Borrowings”) (note 29(a)), other borrowings
of approximately HK$9 million (note 29(b)), corporate bonds
of approximately HK$605 million (note 29(d)) and loans
from related parties of approximately HK$1,114 million (note
29(e)), together with interest payables of approximately
HK$326 million became due and repayable on demand.

In particular, due to not making scheduled repayment of
interest and breach of other loan covenants during the year,
a non-current bank borrowing of approximately HK$1,317
million was reclassified as the current liabilities which was
included in the FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group has received
repayment notices from the banks to demand for repayment
of total outstanding principal amounts of approximately
HK$1,567 million of the FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings,
together with the interest payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. mEEE®
(c) Going concern assumption (Continued) () BERKERR B

In addition, due to not making scheduled repayment of loan
principal and/or interest subsequent to 31 December 2022,
the entire principal amounts of approximately HK$604 million
in aggregate including bank borrowings of approximately
HK$384 million (the “FY2023 Defaulted Bank Borrowings”)
(note 29(a)) and other borrowings of approximately HK$220
million (note 29(b)), together with interest payables of
approximately HK$83 million became due and repayable on
demand subsequent to the end of the reporting period. In
particular, among the FY2023 Defaulted Bank Borrowings,
a bank borrowing with the entire principal amount of
approximately HK$318 million, of which approximately
HK$66 million and approximately HK$252 million were
classified as current borrowing portion and non-current
borrowing portion, respectively as at 31 December 2022, has
subsequently become due and repayable on demand as a
result of not making scheduled repayment of loan principal
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the
Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have prepared a cash flow forecast of the Group covering the
next fifteen months from the end of reporting period (the
“Cash Flow Forecast”) with plans and measures to mitigate
the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position.
Certain plans and measures have been or will be taken by
the directors of the Company include, but not limited to, the
following:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(i)

On 3 October 2022, the Group and the related parties,
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (“GSFG") and
its subsidiaries (collectively as the “GSFG Group”)
entered into a framework agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”), and on 19 October 2022, the Group
and the GSFG Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to
sell, and GSFG Group conditionally agreed to acquire,
the 51% of the total equity interest of Shantou
Taisheng Technology Limited (“Shantou Taisheng”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
at the consideration of approximately RMB1,176 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,293 million) (“1st
Tranche Disposal”).

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
consideration from the 1st Tranche Disposal (the “1st
Tranche Consideration”) will be used to settle the
outstanding principal amount of all the loans advanced
by the GSFG Group of approximately HK$1,114 million
in aggregate (note 29(e)) and all interest accrued
thereon up to the completion of the 1st Tranche
Disposal (“1st Tranche Completion”). The remaining
balance of 1st Tranche Consideration shall be fully used
to repay the interest accrued under a current bank
borrowing with a principal amount of approximately
HK$391 million of an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, namely Shenzhen Baoxin
Industrial Company Limited (“Shenzhen Baoxin”), which
is secured by investment properties and properties
held for sale of Shantou Taisheng (“Secured Loan")
as and when they fall due pursuant to the irrevocable
undertaking given by the Group upon entering into the
Framework Agreement. The 1st Tranche Disposal has
been completed on 22 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, subject
to the satisfaction (or waiver, as the case may be) of
the conditions precedent, the Group shall dispose the
remaining 49% of the total equity interest of Shantou
Taisheng to GSFG Group within twelve months from
the 1st Tranche Completion at the consideration
of approximately RMB1,129 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,242 million) (“2nd Tranche
Disposal”), the consideration from the 2nd Tranche
Disposal will be used to settle the amount due to
Shantou Taisheng by the Group and the remaining
balance shall be used to settle the full outstanding
amount of the Secured Loan.

The Group has been actively negotiating with a
bondholder of corporate bond in principal amount of
HK$500 million (note 29(d)), for possible settlement
arrangements, which may include, among other things,
to use assets for settlement or to extend the maturity
date of borrowing. Up to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements, the lender has not
made any demand for immediate bond redemption. In
this respect, the directors of the Company are confident
that the Group would be able to achieve a possible
settlement arrangement with the relevant bondholder
during the period of the Cash Flow Forecast.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(iv)  As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a number of
unutilised loan facilities of approximately HK$3,186
million in aggregate (note 29(b)). Subsequent to 31
December 2022, the Group has further obtained a
number of new loan facilities from a number of fund
providers with an amount of approximately HK$2,222
million in aggregate (the “2023 New Facility”) (note
29(b)) and the Group has drawn down approximately of
HK$84 million of the 2023 New Facility (note 29(b)). In
this respect, the directors of the Company are confident
that these unutilised loan facilities could provide
adequate funding to the Group, as and when necessary,
such as repayment of overdue borrowings.

(v)  The Group will accelerate the pre-sales of its major
property development projects during the period of the
Cash Flow Forecast.

Based on the Cash Flow Forecast assuming the above plans
and measures can be successfully implemented as scheduled
notwithstanding the inherent uncertainties associated with
the future outcome of the above plans and measures, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
is able to continue as a going concern and would have
sufficient financial resources to finance the Group's operations
and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above plans and
measures as abovementioned, it might not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of
the Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(d) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"),
which is the Company’s presentation and functional currency.
Amount are rounded to thousands, unless otherwise stated.

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs
(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2022

The HKICPA has issued a number of amended HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the

Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment — Proceeds

before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost

of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1
HKFRS 2018-2020 Cycle First-time Adoption of

Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards,
HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, HKFRS 16
Leases and HKAS 41
Agriculture

The adoption of the above amended HKFRSs did not have any
significant impact on the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related amendments’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with
Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Hong Kong Interpretation

5 (Revised) Presentation
of Financial Statements
— Classification by the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies'

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
90 Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022

4

KRB BMBREER @)
(b) SHEMEREREBRZHFTH

RIETTE R BREER

WA 87 58 B4 2 B A ¥R AT A 4
M2 AT RGBT BB
RIS R MR AR - B R A
S EIRARA - AEEANAER
ZERYEN T AEAZEE -

BEUBERE  RRAOREBEBITA
SEBIZE 1757
BEUBRE  REFHABEDNRN
RAFI0FE  AERARHERIA
BHOIER  EE
F28% 7
EHES
BRUBRE  ERERSAR
SEBIIZE 1657
PACHE
BEQER  BAEIHEARDH
E1R2BIR  FERE?
BAEER ERRNERDAR?
F1RZBRIAR
BEQER  BERBESHREED)
FE1RIBIR  HBEROZH-
BERAHEERER
BEETNTHER

mn1a?

BRGHEN  SREREE
FIRRER
MBmEER
EHAESE2R
ZERTR

BRGHEN G ZER'
EREPACEIEN

BRGHEN  RE-QHELNEE
F125% REEBBNEL
ZERTR B!

' ASEC=F-A-BRZANTE

HAR AR -

? BT _WE-A-BHZENFE
HARR AR o

2 HARTEER GBI ERBE  EE AT
e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

KRB BMBREER @)
(b) T MBI REBZHETH

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued) 3.

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new
accounting standards and amendments. The Group does not
expect these new accounting standards and amendments
issued but not yet effective, to have a material impact on the
Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

Business combination

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combination using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities and
assets meets the definition of a business and control is
transferred to the Group. In determining whether a particular
set of activities and assets is a business, the Group assesses
whether the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and whether
the acquired set has the ability to produce outputs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of
12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value
at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
owners of the Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

(o)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4(p)),
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will
not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its
fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in
use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings, held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives are as follows:

Office equipment
Motor vehicles
Buildings

3 to 10 years

4 to 5 years

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease, and 20-30
years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Land and properties leased for Over the lease term
own use

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and ready for
its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Investment properties

()

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change
therein recognised in profit or loss.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment properties are permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property, calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term of 12 months or
less and do not contain purchase option. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or leasehold land where the interest in
the land is held as inventory, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS
40 and are carried at fair value. The Group accounts for right-
of-use assets related to interests in leasehold land where
the interest in the land is held as inventory are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Other than the above
right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased a number
of properties under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgement and determines that it is a separate
class of asset apart from the leasehold buildings which is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset arising
from the properties under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it
adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect
the payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of
lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element
of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount
being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero,
any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiation increases
the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the
lease term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount, if the renegotiation results in a
decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount
of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the
same proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of
the lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The
lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying
amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments
over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date
and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group has leased out its investment property to a number
of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the remaining lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit
or loss.

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECL") on trade receivables, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and debt investments
measured at FVTOCI. ECLs are measured on either of
the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
action such as realising security (if any is held); or the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

o existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the counterparty; (2) a breach of contract,
such as a default or past due event; (3) the lender(s)
of the counterparty, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; (4) it
is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or (5) the
disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an
asset that was previously written off are recognised as
a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings and consideration payable
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022

4, FESTTEHE (&)
() £MIE#)
(i) LHEEZREERE(Z)

FRRER EFETAKE
B AlgME(FoxE
#) ERMEEMNBIREE ° %
FERBREHREANEERETE
BEBARBEEXRAELR
IR TR E R BARRAE
ERMEN S - BERIKRE
?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ZﬁEﬁM&@ﬁﬂF‘aﬁ
RSP ERARERD -

EERESREEZMEW
ATIRB S BEE 2 B IHK
A (AR ER B 1R B )
AE WELRERERELZ
TREEZMNEWARRE
REREERE -

(i) THEE

AEERAEEEEZBNY
HeBMBBEETHE - ZH#
HRAAEZERABIY
BAFEABRMEENER
FEAERNAETE -

KEER AT EZ AR E

REBHEKAAEZEREE
(BIEE 5 R H A & RIE
ERREMNRE)  HEXK
BB SA R E S ARG
E- FAMNERAXERREF
TR o

HE TR B R A 88
R M S IBAE IR
T -



4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the
ECL provision measured in accordance with principles
of the accounting policy set out in 4(g)(ii); and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at their
fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other financial institutions, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #t2 —F — —F 1+ - H=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Non-current assets held for sale and disposal

groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale when:

(i) They are available for immediate sale
(i) Management is committed to a plan to sell

(iii) It is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn

(iv)  An active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated

(v)  The asset or disposal group is being marketed at a
reasonable price in relation to its fair value, and

(vi) A sale is expected to complete within 12 months from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of:

(i) Their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy; and

(i) Fair value less costs of disposal.
Following their classification as held for sale, non-current

assets (including those in a disposal group) are not
depreciated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups (Continued)

The results of operations disposed during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income up to the date of disposal.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, which comprises the post-tax
profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and post-tax gain
or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Properties under development and properties
held for sale

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Development costs include
acquisition costs, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to such
properties during the construction period. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties
held for sale at the carrying amount.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.

Properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
relevant year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods
or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method.

For contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

(i)

Sales of properties

The Group develops and sells commercial and residential
properties in the PRC. Revenue is recognised when
control over the property has been transferred to the
customer. The properties have generally no alternative
use for the group due to contractual restrictions.
However, an enforceable right to payment does not
arise until legal title has passed to the customer.
Therefore, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the legal title has passed to the customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed
under the contract. In most cases, the consideration
is due when legal title has been transferred. While
deferred payment terms may be agreed in rare
circumstances, the deferral never exceeds twelve
months. The transaction price is therefore not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Revenue from construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
when or as the construction projects are transferred to
the customer. Depending on the terms of the contracts
and the laws that are applicable to the contracts,
control of the construction projects may transfer over
time or at a point in time. If the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced, and therefore, recognises
revenue over time in accordance with the input method
for measuring progress.

Trading of commodities

Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised
when control of the commodities have transferred,
being when the commodities have been shipped to
the customer's specific location (delivery). The Group is
primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the specified good or service, has inventory risk before
the specified good or service has been transferred to a
customer and has discretion in establishing the price for
the specified good or service. A receivable is recognised
by the Group when the commodities are delivered to
the customer as this represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before payment
is due.

Trading of home appliances and building
materials

Revenue from home appliances and building materials is
recognised point in time as those services are rendered.
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets at FVTOCI is
recognised in profit or loss when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group completes
the construction works under such services contracts but
yet certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by customers, or (i) the customers retain retention
money to secure the due performance of the contracts. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date then
the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.
Contract assets are assessed for impairment on the same basis
as trade receivables under note 4(g)(ii).

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil
a contract when those costs meet all of the following criteria:

(@)  the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the cost
relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes and initial recognition of assets and liabilities
that are not part of the business combination which affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised, provided that the deductible temporary
differences are not arises from initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction other than in a business combination
that affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

An exception to the general requirement in determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.
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4, FESTTHE (&)
(m) Spi

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling
when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve.
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o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currency (Continued)

(n)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating
to that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees render
the related service.

(iij) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services received
is measured by reference to the fair value of the options at
the date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
the share option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number
of equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number
of options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long
as all non-market vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is
made irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions
are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for
failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is
also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of assets (other than financial assets) to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit
(see note 4(c)), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
cash generating unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022

4, FESTTEHE (&)

(p)

(q)

(r)

EE(EMEERN) BE
(&)

MEZR BRI ERSE - IKEEZ
AREEE N E R LBt ATl
Bl 558 - EFTIRINZ BRE(E T S8
B BEEFEL B EERDRE
EEmMREEENREE - RERE
1B E ANES FERR ik an - BRIFABRE
BERES —BEEMBREER
RERSEIE  ERBERT B
EEREDER AT BUHREE
AT 2 E A1 -

FERBEDREERREEESLR
FELEM(RHFEAQ) BHETR
KESREFNE  HRREEEMH
BEZERMSHEREESREE
EEM 2 FARER B AR R KR
REHRE-

BRARERL

UeHE - BEREEREREE (R
TE BB REERERAERT
ARt ECEE) EEELER
RAERCBZEEEZ DK
o BEEBRRBIEZEEEZX
BT AR B R A FTBRELZ WA AT
BE BN Z SRR AR AT
BHMERRAREE S BREEIE
FHPTER o

BERIAREE

EAKERBEEFTHARE AR
EEML MARRTRAEEREE
A SEfERT < BN R - B Y
AEEFHEI SR ABFELRE
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(®)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets (including
property, plant and equipment) are recognised as deferred
income in the statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are recognised as
other revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that make strategic
decisions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Related parties

(a

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(i) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has recognised deferred taxation on
changes in fair value of investment properties as the Group is
subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(ii) Principal versus agent consideration

Significant judgments include determining whether the Group
is acting as the principal in a transaction. When another
party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer,
the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods
or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange
for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The Group is a principal
in a transaction if the Group obtains control of the specific
goods or services before they are transferred to customers.
The control is the (i) ability, (ii) direct the use of, and (iii)
obtain the benefits from the specific goods or services. The
Group follows the accounting guidance for principal-agent
considerations to assess whether the Group controls the
specified goods or services before they are transferred to the
customers, the indicators of which including but not limited to
(a) whether the entity is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specific goods or services; (b) whether
the entity bear the inventory risk before and after the specific
goods or services are being delivered to the customers; and
(c) whether the entity has the sole discretion in establishing
the selling prices for the specific goods or service. When the
Group acts as a principal, it records revenues on a gross basis.
Otherwise, the Group records the net amount earned as
commissions from products sold or services provided.

The Group has obtained the control of the commodities prior
to the delivery to the customers, therefore, the directors
of the Company considered the revenue for the trading of
commodities is acting as the principal and the revenue is
recognised for on the gross basis.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(iii) Going concern assumption

As mentioned in note 2(c), the directors of the Company
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 based on a going concern
basis. The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making judgement by the directors of the Company
at a particular point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are uncertain. The directors of the
Company has prepared the Cash Flow Forecast and concluded
that the Group would have sufficient financial resources
to finance the Group's operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due to maintain the Group
as a going concern in the year ending 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group have the capability to continue as a going concern.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other key sources of estimation uncertainty that have
a significant risk of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next financial year are as
follows:

(i) Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income tax in the PRC. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(i) Income taxes and deferred tax (Continued)

Moreover, The Group is subject to land appreciation tax
("LAT") in the PRC. The PRC LAT is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of the sales of properties less
the estimated deductible expenditures, the cost of land use
rights and all relevant property development expenditures.
Significant judgment is required in estimating the amounts
of land appreciation and the applicable LAT rate due to the
uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible
expenditures. However, the implementation and settlement
of the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in various
cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have
not finalised their LAT calculations and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. The amount of the land
appreciation is determined with reference to proceeds of the
sales of properties less the estimated deductible expenditures,
including the cost of land use rights and all relevant property
development expenditures. The Group recognised the LAT
based on the management's best estimates. The final tax
outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the income
tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the
periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to
be probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(i) Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the valuation method, input used and the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these input and assumptions would
result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(iii) Impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets based on lifetime ECL. For trade receivables
and contract assets which are individually significant and
credit-impaired, the management assesses credit losses
individually by estimating the contractual cash flow expected
to receive, based on the evidence of credit-impairment and
forward-looking information. Except for trade receivables and
contract assets which are individually significant and credit-
impaired, the management uses provision matrix to assess
ECL, which is based on collective credit risk characteristics.
The ECL rates are based on the Group’s historical loss rates,
taking into consideration forward-looking information. The
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets involves
management’s accounting estimations and judgements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv) Provision for net realisable value on properties
under development and properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Based on the experience of the directors of the Company
and the nature of the subject properties, the directors of the
Company determine the net realisable value of properties
under development and properties held for sale by reference
to the estimated market prices of the properties under
development and properties held for sale, which takes into
account a number of factors including the recent prices
of similar property types in the same project or by similar
properties, and the prevailing real estate market conditions in
the PRC. The directors of the Company estimate the costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sale by reference
to the actual development cost of other similar completed
projects of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities, Renminbi (“"RMB"). The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

5.

ARESTHER AT TIEEN
ZEERE @)

fhEr AREM 2 EERR (40)

(iv) EZYHERGELHEYXTE
BFENEE

YR RFHELEMR TR
HEAI R FEME 2 REEAR -
REBEANREFZREREPISYE
HE  ARABEZRSEERMER
FEHEMEZ MG EREE
REERMERBIELENE 2T
BRFE UEEIZEREAERX &
ER—EE P RUYEERSEU
VRO SOER - UWRRTHEE
WEMSRR - KARABAEFL2ER
SEEMBLEEKIER 2 BEHH
BERAEETR TR R EHE PR A
7 o

B E b EE

FEBEREEXBAXSEM KRR : 4
KRk EREAR-  EERRE RBE
TR LN RER o NEEZEERR
BRI A B ARNZ 2R TS
AR - 75 Sk 3 AT RE IR IE S AN 68 B B A
BZBETNEE -

(a) HpHEmE B

MR AREABNEBRS - BE
RBBERUAREE  MASK
BEXEEEERIIEEE/AR
BETARE] BAKEFEET
SN R o AN SRR AT I LN
R5 - BERBESITINGEHK
Ko AEBEZYEEINIERR - I
BRAH R EELEHEAINE R

LA
o0
2

o

BNEMREEARAT 2022FF

133



g

134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s bank and
cash balances and pledged and restricted bank deposits are
mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and US dollar (“US$").
Since HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group believes the exposure
of transactions denominated in US$ which are entered into
the Group to be insignificant.

As at 31 December 2022, if the HK$ had weakened 5 per
cent against RMB with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year (2021: consolidated
profit after tax for the year) would have been approximately
HK$32,716,000 (2021: approximately HK$33,155,000)
higher (2021: lower), arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on the combined effect of bank and cash
balances, borrowings and interest payables denominated in
RMB. The same % increase in the foreign currency exchange
rate on RMB against HK$ would have the same magnitude
on the Group’s consolidated loss after tax for the year (2021:
consolidated profit after tax for the year) as shown above but
of opposite effect, on the basis all variances held constant.

These are the same method and assumption used in preparing
the sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to
be effective.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on the
Nasdaq Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Price risk (Continued)

(o)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2021: 10%
higher/lower):

- other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2022 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$125,000 (2021: increase/decrease by
approximately HK$469,000) as a result of the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and
from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group as
set out in note 31, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is
calculated using the probability of default, loss given default
and the exposure at default with reference to the historical
data of the market of the debtors’ and the industry.

ECL rate of contract assets with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$34,790,000 (2021: HK$38,743,000) is
assessed to be 9.44% (2021: 10.64%). As at 31 December
2022, the loss allowance provision for contract assets was
HK$3,285,000 (2021: HK$4,124,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIEEAMERE#)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (0 FERKE)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following tables provide information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at 31
December 2022 and 2021:

ESRUSEAREHEE ()

TERREEEEAEER T -_—F
—EC—F+_-_A=1+—8BnE
SERFEERAEERR XTE

HEEEECER
Gross

carrying Loss
2022 —E-_F ECL rate (%) amount allowance
RPEEEBERE(%) AR E EiERE
(HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F#ExT) (F#ExT)

Current (not past due) to BNHA (CRgHf) =
30 days past due #HI30 A 0.05% - 1.83% 2,402 14
31-90 days past due #EI31 =90 H 0.09% - 70.00% 3,150 1,578
More than 90 days past due BHEI90 HIA F 0.12% — 70.00% 33,280 15,439
38,832 17,031

Gross

carrying Loss
2021 —E - ECL rate (%) amount allowance
TEERE B R (%) HEREE EERE
(HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F%&7T) (F&T)

Current (not past due) to BIHA (R Ef) =
30 days past due #HEI30 H 0.001%-1.88% 21,774 22
31-90 days past due #HI31E90H 0.001%-1.88% 5,836 8
More than 90 days past due #HIO0 H A 0.01%-8.58% 49,569 667
77,179 697

ECL rates are based on the probability of default, loss given
default and the exposure at default with reference to the
historical data of the market of the debtors’ and the industry.
The loss allowance based on past due status is further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

EMEREEBRETDENZOME
EHEBRNENRR - X2RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

6.

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade

BERRER 2
() EERME)

ESRUSEAREHEE (&)

BRE ZRUGRIA 2 BRBERR

receivables during the year is as follows: FREHIT :
2022 2021
—EB-CF —E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 697 782
Amounts reversed during the year FNREED LR (212) (163)

Impairment losses recognised during R FERHEEE 18

the year 17,662 1,330
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37(a))  H &M E A (FizE37(a)) - (1,284)
Exchange differences PE W =58 (1,116) 32
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 17,031 697

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

BERGHEEZEEBRERNFEA

contract assets during the year is as follows: FHpnT -
2022 2021
—E-—F —EB-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January mw—BA—H 4,124 3,963
Amounts reversed during the year FREE SR (445) =

Impairment losses recognised during  4F N FESREY 5 (& ET1E

the year - 3
Exchange differences PE 5 =58 (394) 158
At 31 December Wt+t=-—B=+—H 3,285 4,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEREE®)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (0 FERKE)
Other receivables Bt K E
In respect of other receivables, the Group monitors the HEMBURFIENS - AEEBER
exposures and manages them based on historical settlement FELEECHEIBELR B K
records and past experience, current conditions and T8 HA R SR AR B AR S BE 15 [l P I S 7 T
forecasts of future economic conditions. At the reporting B o N¥ERE - BEAEMER
date, the credit risk on other receivable has not increased FIEREER R 8 YA TR A SR
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the AR ARERBEN T
loss allowance for other receivable at an amount equal to EAEREESE SETEHMm
12-month ECL. JEU IR B B IR R o
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of other BREMEWFRIE  BEEERR
receivables during the year is as follows: FNEEHNT -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
At 1 January n—A—H 9,711 31,223
Amounts reversed during the year FERER ST (4,628) (998)
Impairment losses recognised during  £F N TEREY R (E B 18
the year 296 23,558
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37(a))  HEME QA (FizE37()) = (45,706)
Exchange differences PE N =58 (727) 1,634
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,652 9,711
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HIEEAMERE#)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) FEBELREE

The Group's management regularly monitors current and AEEEREETHERE N REH
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains MBESF R UBRERERFTRE

sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$911 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, and as of that date, as
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$6,481
million, of which the current borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$5,568 million, while the Group had bank
and cash balances of approximately HK$88 million only.

As at 31 December 2022, as a result of not making scheduled
repayment of the loan principal and/or interest and breach
of other loan covenants during the year, among the current
borrowings, the entire principal amounts of approximately
HK$3,295 million in aggregate which comprised FY2022
Defaulted Bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,567
million (note 29(a)) other borrowings of approximately
HK$9 million (note 29(b)), corporate bonds of approximately
HK$605 million (note 29(c)) and loans from related parties of
approximately HK$1,114 million (note 29(e)), together with
interest payables of approximately HK$326 million became
due and repayable on demand.

In particular, due to not making scheduled repayment of
interest and breach of other loan covenants during the year,
a non-current bank borrowing of approximately HK$1,317
million was reclassified as the current liabilities which was
included in the FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group has received
repayment notices from the banks to demand for repayment
of total outstanding principal amounts of approximately
HK$1,567 million of the FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings,
together with the interest payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIEEAMERE#)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) R"BELRMZ)

In addition, due to not making scheduled repayment of loan
principal and/or interest subsequent to 31 December 2022,
the entire principal amounts of approximately HK$604 million
in aggregate including the FY2023 Defaulted Bank Borrowings
of approximately HK$384 million (note 29(a)) and other
borrowings of approximately HK$220 million (note 29(b)),
together with interest payables of approximately HK$83
million became due and repayable on demand subsequent
to the end of the reporting period. In particular, among the
FY2023 Defaulted Bank Borrowings, a bank borrowing with
the entire principal amount of approximately HK$318 million,
of which approximately HK$66 million and approximately
HK$252 million were classified as current borrowing portion
and non-current borrowing portion, respectively as at 31
December 2022, has subsequently become due and repayable
on demand as a result of not making scheduled repayment of
loan principal subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

These conditions, together with other matters set out in note
2(c), indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, that the Group may not be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have prepared the Cash Flow Forecast which takes into
account of the plans and measures as set out in note
2(c). Based on the assessment made by the directors of
the Company, assuming the plans and measures can be
successfully implemented as scheduled notwithstanding that
there are inherent uncertainties associated with the future
outcome of the above plans and measures, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is able
to continue as a going concern and would have sufficient
financial resources to finance the Group’s operations and
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

6. HIEEAMERE#)

(d) RBESRER®)

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEASEFTECRBENTL
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as RUMREREETHOIEA DT
follows: HHT
Less than Between Between
1 year or 1and 2 and Over
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
150 R
BRER 122F 2E5% SFLE EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FBT T FET
At31December2022 R=-B-=-£+=-f=+-H
Borrowings EES 6,485,405 831,027 366,512 - 7,682,944
Trade payables B HENFE 2,529,794 - - - 252979
Wages and salaries ERIERGE - BEME
payables, interest BT B R R AMENTIR
payables, accruals and
other payables 1,398,985 - - - 1,398,985
Lease liabilities HEaE 10,440 10,678 24,475 33,347 78,940
10,424,624 841,705 390,987 33,347 11,690,663
Financial guarantee issued &% B B 1& 1R
Maximum amount RRzESEE
guaranteed 1,437,293 - - - 1,437,293
At31December2021 R=-B--5+=-A=+-H
Borrowings EE:S 6,599,799 848,965 2,887,657 - 10,336,421
Trade payables B S ENFE 2,940,351 = = - 2,940,351
Wages and salaries ERIERGE  BEME
payables, interest et B R REMENTIE
payables, accruals and
other payables 1,025,529 - - - 1,025,529
Lease liabilities HEaR 12,029 11,627 34,545 41,739 99,940
10,577,708 860,592 2,922,202 41,739 14,402,241
Financial guarantee issued 3% BT 75 1E(R
Maximum amount RRz&ESEE
guaranteed - - 1,660,573 - 1,660,573
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(e)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amounts
if that amounts are claimed by the counterparty to the
guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subjected to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee that the
guaranteed financial receivables held by the counterparty
suffers credit losses.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits which bear interests at variable rates that vary with
the then prevailing market condition.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds and
loans from related parties bear interests at fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s loss for the year and increase/decrease the Group's
accumulated losses by approximately HK$48,608,000.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit for the year and increase/decrease the Group’s
accumulated losses by approximately HK$60,506,000.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that
date. The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting
date.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022 and
2021.

6. HKRAMERE®
(d) R"BELRMZ)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBERREE®
(f) Categories of financial instruments at f) A+t=ZA=+—Hz&®IT
31 December BES
2022 2021
—E-C—F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Financial assets ERMEE
Measured at fair value: BAFERE
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAVEEBEMEERES
PR & REE
— Equity instruments -RATA 1,253 4,694
Measured at amortised cost: BN AT E
— Financial assets included in trade - (3t A2 5 K E ihpE =08
and other receivables HERERE 489,605 1,090,921
— Pledged and restricted bank - BEEARZREIRITFR
deposits 441,325 381,882
— Bank and cash balances —-RITRIRES 88,415 341,393
1,019,345 1,814,196
Financial liabilities tHmasd
Measured at amortised cost: R SER AT E
- Borrowings — &5 6,481,112 8,067,474
— Financial liabilities included in -5 AE S R EMEFUR
trade and other payables HEmBE 3,928,779 3,965,880
Lease liabilities -fEaE 52,643 64,544
10,462,534 12,097,898
Financial guarantee ISR 80,482 89,628
(g) Fair values (9) 2¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The completed properties held for rental purpose and/or for capital
appreciation were reclassified from level 2 to level 3 during the year
as the management considered that significant unobservable inputs
were used in determining the fair value of the properties.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at

AT{E &

RFERTSH2EERTERNETZ
BFR5PHEEEMRESEZRAR
a2 B8 - AT HBEZ X FEE
ERRAFESZRES - ARSI AN
AEAFEZHBERMZBABED B
=4

F—RBARE  AEERFTERHA
ESHREEXRERGEMISHRE
(REEFHE) -

F_RBARE: F-AMEBROBRE
MONAI B ESBETEREMG (BEL
) B8 AU ©

F=RBARE: BEXRENTATE
ERABIE -

MR ERERAEETNEATFENE
AAEFABEZHARE - W(FRE
Bk REAEEL R THERAT
EmE-REIAE=R -

REE 2 BTN F A 3 A g B i
ZIERAHREFH 7 B EREAME D
—EFRERZ— -

RZB-ZZHF+ZA=+t—-HZ

31 December 2022: A ESERZEE -
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t ] £ st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FERT FExT FHExT
Recurring fair value REMATVERE
measurements:
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI R AFEFBEHMEE
Wbk S REEE
Listed equity securities A E S 1,253 - - 1,253
Investment properties BREYE
Properties in the PRC aslEizobyES - 3,492,852 3,492,852
Total st 1,253 - 3,492,852 3,494,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{% —F ——

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AVEFE®E)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 AZB-—-H+ZA=t+—-HZ
December 2021: NEEERZEE -
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1 ER BE=MH HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHETT FHETT FHTT
Recurring fair value REMHATETE:
measurements:
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI 1R AFEFEBHMEE
Wass|iR s B EE
Listed equity securities FHREARE S 4,694 - _ 4,694
Investment properties BEYE
Properties in the PRC RAREIR 3 = 694,452 3,368,750 4,063,202
Total @t 4,694 694,452 3,368,750 4,067,896

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

REF="RMBAVEFEZEE

based on level 3 # AR
2022
—E__F
Description i Investment
properties Total
REYE et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T THExT
At 1 January R—A—AH 3,368,750 3,368,750
Total gains or losses recognised in profit AIEZSHER RIS sk E BB %E
or loss (142,305) (142,305)
Additions A= 81,912 81,912
Transfer from investment properties BEEINEYEE RS
under development to completed ERIREME
investment properties (575,100) (575,100)
Transfer from level 2 RS 1,065,324 1,065,324
Exchange difference E =% (305,729) (305,729)
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 3,492,852 3,492,852
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DAV EFE®
Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value BREFE=ZFELAFLEFEZEE
based on level 3 (Continued) R (®)
2021
B —F
Description Investment
Put option properties Total
RohHARE B HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
At 1 January w—A—H 32,044 4,965,506 4,997,550
Total gains or losses recognised B MERR MY IRz Sk S 1B 42 58
in profit or loss 1,313 71,922 73,235
Additions INE - 350,562 350,562
Derecognition on derivative RILERTE ST A
financial asset (33,357) - (33,357)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AT
(note 37(a)(iii) (FF5E 37(a)ii)) - (2,224,723) (2,224,723)
Exchange difference PE R =% - 205,483 205,483
At 31 December WN+—-—A=+—H - 3,368,750 3,368,750

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements:

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The
chief financial officer reports directly to the board of directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the chief financial officer and the
board of directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional
qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations.

REBMETAFESFEFREAN
HEEF GERTREAZE
WENMT :

AEENEFEMBEREETYBRE
FrEKMNEEMRBERTFENE B85
E=RRFEAE BRVBEEEER
E=QERZEATEFE BEUH
FEREESEFEOETMAARMGE
T2 Fr R AR T E )R A ©

REZRAFEFEMS ARE—R
CEABRARAUEXERMOHETRE
ERERAIMBEERZETT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AVEFE®E)
Level 2 fair value measurements E_RATETE
Fair value
as at
31 December
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2021
R-ZT_—%
+—-A=+—8
et (GEE] BARIE ZnHE
HK$'000
TFHETT
Investment properties Direct comparison approach Market price of comparable 694,452
REME BELBE A& LR TI5ER
Level 3 fair value measurements F=RMATETE
Fair value
Effect on As at
fair value 31 December
Valuation Observable/ for increase 2022
Description technique unobservable inputs Range of inputs Assets
WABEBLA H=T==F
HNYE t=A=+-H
it fEER M EE /FTABESRAHE @E opZ ZEEATE
HK$'000
THET
Investment Direct comparison  Price per square meter, taking ~ Approximately Increase 3,492,852
properties approach into account the differences HK$6,512-
in time, location, condition, HK$60,500 per
size, age and other square meter
individual factors between
the comparables and the
property
REME BELRE FYHARER - L RAIR §FAR46,51287 Ein
MERZYEBEXSHE  £60,50087T

] B M ETE R
IRAE AR AR ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

PoE - CFEF =1 —HIFFE

)

Fair value
Effect on As at
fair value 31 December
Valuation Observable/ for increase 2021
Description technique unobservable inputs Range of inputs Assets
BAZBLA RITF
HATE +=A=1+—8~
TR BT ABE/TABREASE &EF VEE ZEENTE
HK$'000
FHET
Investment Direct comparison  Price per square meter, taking ~ Approximately Increase 3,368,750
properties approach into account the differences HK$28,138-
in time, location, condition, HK$41,875 per
size, age and other square meter
individual factors between
the comparables and the
property
REME BHELEE BERKER - KA RAHER SFFKO28,138  #0

MEEZNFE L FERZX S
)~ B - R AR
RAEMENEENZR

BILE 41,8757
7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to
make strategic decisions.

The Group has several operating segments as follows:

Yacht club operation of a yacht club

Training - provision of training services

Real estate and property
investment

property development and
property investment

Trading of commodities trading of commodities

Construction - provision of construction
works
Others - operation of a golf practising
court;
- operation of children
playrooms;
- operation of fitness rooms;
- operation of a karaoke box;
and
- trading of home appliances
and building materials

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the operating segments of
yacht club and training were discontinued.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4(t) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 05 A I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F - —F 1+ _-A=+—HIFFZ

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. ZEEHE @

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) of each segment without DEEBIEEDEATIEE Z2AI& 5

allocation of following items, #E A, (E1E) -

~  Central administration costs; - PRITHRAR

—  Directors’ emoluments; - EEBg:

- Gain on disposal of subsidiaries; - HEMBRRIMES

- Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties; - REDEZANFEWR(EBE)

—  Fair value gain on derivative financial asset; - {TEEREEZATERS

-~ Other income, gains/(losses) — net; and - EmlA - Wes S (E1E) - FE
M

- Finance costs. - RERK-

This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker I RE RSB R FZB B MR E

for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment. DEBAREZWMHETEE »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. ¥ E &)
Segment revenue and results DEEHEBEREE
Revenue reported below represents revenue generated from TXE2E®mMIEEBRINBEFPEEZE
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both 8 o NEFEIL IS FHEHE o
years.
The following is an analysis of revenue and results by operating REBREED TS DM E LB REL
segment of the Group: ST -
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z-_—_S+-A=+—HLFE

Continuing operations

BESEER
Real estate
and
property  Trading of
investment commodities Construction Others Total
EHER
MERE ARRS B Hity st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FER FET TR

Revenue EE 992,000 587,394 - 38,073 1,617,467
Segment results DENEAE (673,184) (729) 449 (42,521) (715,985)
Fair value loss on investment & MEN LN FEFR

properties (222,953)
Other income, gains/(losses) - EAbUA « Yezk /(518 %4

net 81,455
Finance costs BEKA (185,902)
Unallocated corporate expenses A4 FRab &5 Fl (18,398)
Loss before income tax BRI (1,061,783)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of revenue and results by operating

segment of the Group: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SEREEDMENNERBERES
DWW : (&)

BE-E--—F+t-A=+t—-RHLEFE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HEREEH BHEERTs
Real
estate and
property  Trading of
investment  commodities ~ Construction Others Subtotal ~ Yacht club Training Subtotal Total
FHER
NFRE KRB B Hft N ERER sl 5t @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
ThL Thr ThL Thr ThL Thr Th Th ThR
Revenue BEE 1,466,901 3,948,164 - 89276 5504341 6,568 - 6,568  5510,909
Segment results AHxE (24,49) 2,384 M 13269 (8,350) (4,149) (7291)  (11440)  (19,790)
Fair value gain on REMFRATERS

investment properties 70,713
Fair value gain on TEEREENLTE

derivative financial e

asset 1313
Gain on disposal of HEHBARNNE

subsidiaries 399,199
Otherincome, gaing/~~ EIA - &/ (E8)

(losses) - net e 18,246
Finance costs BERA (140,643)
Unallocated coporate A FAEAAEHR

expenses (20,788)
Profit before income tax B TS HRATE T 308,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{% —F ——

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment assets and

As at 31 December 2022

liabilities

8. ¥ E &)
PHEERARE
R-—B-—=—f+=-A=+—H

Continuing operations

BEREER
Real estate
and
property  Trading of
investment commodities Construction Others Total
EHER
MERE RRRZ BE Hftr @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET T
Segment assets DHEE 16,487,625 3,252 38,455 83,955 16,613,287
Unallocated assets TFRENEBE
- Bank and cash balances - RITRB R EH 51,479
- Others -Hh 19,771
71,250
Consolidated total med 16,684,537
Segment liabilities DEEE 11,183,006 87,402 110,022 101,910 11,482,340
Unallocated liabilities AFHlEmEE
- Borrowings -BR 1,770,574
~ Others -Hft 239,069
2,009,643
Consolidated total REA 13,491,983
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

8.

DEERE (&)
PHEEREEE)

R-B=—F+=A=+-8

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HELEEH RIHER%H
Real
estate and
property  Trading of
investment  commodities  Construction Others  Sub-total Yacht Training ~ Sub-total Total
FHER
NERE  ARRS B Hft It i il 3t @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TEn TEL Fhn TEL Fhn TEL i
Segment asses AR 19,814,148 1910 45417 178074 20,039,549 - - - 20,039,549
Unallocated assets AAENEE
- Bank and cash balances - {7 RIS 79147
- QOthers -Eff 31,623
110,770
Consolidated total &A%zt 20,150,319
Segment liabilties G 12,825,280 142,575 163,469 90516 13,221,840 - - - 13221840
Unallocated liabilites —~~ FFHEHB(E
- Borrowings - 2,007,601
- Others -Efp 128921
2,136,522
Consolidated total ~ &A%:t 15,358,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated bank and cash balances, financial assets at
FVTOCI and corporate assets.

° bank and cash balances are allocated to operating segments
based on the location of bank and cash balances.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
corporate bonds, corporate borrowings and corporate
liabilities.

° liabilities payable to the government department such as

tax bureau and social security department are allocated to
operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. ¥/ E &)
Other segment information Hitbn H&E R

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE—E-_—F+-A=+—HLEE

Continuing operations
BRCEEY
Real estate
and
property  Trading of
investment commodities Construction Others  Unallocated Total
BHER
NERE RS B Hit FFAE )
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THr THx THx THr THr THr
Additions to non-current REFRDEE
assets (other than financial (BRI AN
instruments) 81,921 - - 8,181 - 90,102
Depreciation ik 7,849 - - 11,493 1,765 21,107
Impairment losses on property, — #1% « BiE R/
plant and equipment - net HEEE - FE - - - 24,508 - 24,508
(Reversal of impairment)/ SRRANEE
impairment losses on financial ~ (REZE) /HEEE -
and contract assets - net 8 (4,108) It} (449) 17,223 (36) 12,673
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G A R MR

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. ZEBEE 4
Other segment information (Continued) Hib D EHER (#)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE_—F+-A=+—HLEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REAEH BIHEEEH
Real estate
and
property  Trading of
investment  commodities ~ Construction Others  Unalocated ~ Subtotal ~ Yachtcb ~ Training  Subtotal Total
FHER
NERE  ARRB B i FFAR i 4 S5l Dt a3t
HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn  Thr TR TR TEm TR TR TR TR TEn
Additions tonon-curent  FESETEIERE
assets (other than (BeBIAN)
finandial instruments) 400,709 = = 32,682 = 433391 133 - 133 433524
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation 14,185 - - 12,755 3,508 30,448 234 2,155 4497 34,945
Impaiment losses on other £t EFAENEEE
intangible assets - - - - - - 5,620 4591 10,211 10,211
Impaimentlosseson 1%+ BERHE
property, plant and HEFE
equipment - - - 35,755 - 35,755 - - - 35,755
Impaiment losses / SHRANER
(reversal of HEER/ (58
impairment) on BE)- %8
finanial and contract
assets - net 22533 26 7 vy (32) 23,005 488 237 725 23,730
Geographical information b33 & R

The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group.

No separate analysis of segment information by geographical
segment is presented as the operations of the Group, its revenue
and non-current assets are principally attributable to a single
geographical region, which is the PRC.

Information about major customers
There was no single customer that contributed to 10% or more of

the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

LR

TR BHEIBERIRBEAND2EFE

products or service line for the year is as follows: REEEAFWT -
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FH&TT
Continuing operations: BEQEEK
Revenue from contracts with EARAMBEHREENE15KEAEER
customers within the scope of ZEFENEERE
HKFRS 15
Sales of properties YIEHE 968,345 1,446,556
Trading of commodities KERXS 587,394 3,948,164
Others Hih 38,073 89,276
1,593,812 5,483,996
Revenue from other sources REHMRR 2 & EEE
Rental income el A 23,655 20,345
1,617,467 5,504,341
Discontinued operations: DRI
Revenue from contracts with ERAMBEHREERE1SHEERR
customers within the scope of ZEEANEEE
HKFRS 15
Yacht club services PERE 2 FTARTS = 291
- 291
Revenue from other sources REHMRR 2 & EEE
Rental income AL WA - 6,277
- 6,568
1,617,467 5,510,909
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

9. REVENUE (continued)

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary
geographical market and timing of revenue recognition. The table
also includes a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the

Group's reportable segment.

9. EHH ()

RTR EXBFHIBEHEMSENER
BRBER DK - TREHBENFEE

FREAREE A 2 Wm0 FPHER

Continuing operations

BELEER
Real estate
and
For the year ended 31 B2-_E-_—F+-H property  Trading of
December 2022 =t+-HLEEE investment commodities Construction Others Total
BHER
MERE ARRZ BE Hftr @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Primary geographical market FEhEMH
PRC s 992,000 587,394 - 38,073 1,617,467
Timing of revenue recognition % %M
- At a point in time N 968,345 587,394 - 6,940 1,562,679
— Transferred over time - R—BEENED - - - 31,133 31,133
968,345 587,394 - 38,073 1,593,812
Revenue from other sources REEMREZE£5E 23,655 - - - 23,655
992,000 587,394 - 38,073 1,617,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

REVENUE (Continued) 9. EXX »)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REEEEH BIHEERH
For the year ended BE-Z--E+-f Real estate
31 December 2021 “+-ALLEE and
property  Trading of
investment  commodities ~ Construction Others Subtotal ~ Yacht club Training Subtotal Total
FHER
NERE  ARRS B Eft Mt BEER Sl 5t it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TEL TER TEL TERL AL TERL AL iR
Primary geographical ¥ EHETH
market
PRC el 1466901 3,948,164 - 89,276 5,504,341 6,568 - 6,568  5510,909
Timing of revenue  EEERINE
recognition
- Atapoint n time - RE-REE 1,446,556 3,948,164 - 89276 54839% - - - 5483,9%
- Transferred over time - R—REERES - - - - - 291 - 291 291
144655 3,948,164 - 89276 5483,99% 291 - 291 5484287
Revenue fromother ~ REEMTEE E%E
sources 20,345 - - - 20,345 6,271 - 6,277 26,622
1466901 3,948,164 - 89,276 5,504,341 6,568 - 6,568 5,510,909

BHEMEEERDA 2022 F K

161

2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

10. OTHER INCOME, GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

10. HAtWA - s~ (&518) F8

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations: BEREEY
Interest income from bank balances RITEEERAY A B A 4,083 9,909
Loss from derecognition of derivative RIEFERTE S REERNEIR
financial asset = (33,357)
Gain on early termination of lease R EEER R = 2
Gain on lease modifications MEBETHRER 2,246 =
Government grants (note (a)) HFE 8 (M5t (a) 512 210
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) — net HNE IR #F B 70,304 28,370
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  H&EWE - ME LR EEE
equipment (32) (M
Others HAtb 4,342 4,742
81,455 9,875
Discontinued operations: EARIEREEL
Interest income from bank balances RITEEERAY A B A = 15
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) — net SNE U ES (E518) JF 458 - 8,375
Others HAtb = (19)
- 8,371
81,455 18,246

Note:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2022, included in government grants of
approximately HK$212,000 (2021: HK$210,000) represented subsidies from
PRC local government as an encouragement for the contribution in specific
industry in the region. The Group recognises the government subsidies when
it fulfills all the conditions specified in the subsidy notice or relevant law and
regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, included in government grants of
approximately HK$300,000 represented subsidies obtained from Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government supporting the payroll of the
Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the Group has to commit to spend these
grants on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee headcount below
prescribed levels for a specified period of time. The Group does not have any
unfulfilled obligations relating to the ESS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BMERAEK
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations: BEREER
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEREF B 218,478 359,475
Interest on other borrowings HEZRHFE 207,582 315,041
Interest on corporate bonds NEEHFE 50,731 81,712
Interest on loans from related parties BE T BERAFE (M3E41()
(note 41(a)) 124,947 93,705
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFIE 5,524 6,003
607,262 855,936
Amount capitalised (note (a)) ARt 2T (3 () (421,360) (730,900)
185,902 125,036
Discontinued operations: BRIERE
Interest on bank borrowings RITERAFE - 2,597
Imputed interest on consideration JERRENHEF R
payable - 13,010
- 15,607
185,902 140,643
Note: BeE -
(@) The weighted average capitalisation rate for the year on fund’s borrowed is at a (@ AFEEAEEONETHERMEFENER

rate of 8.96% (2021: 7.47%) per annum.

8.96% (—T——4F : 7.47%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12.

The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

s (ER) BxX

HeBRmlEtEzARERANTIES

loss and other comprehensive income represents: FiE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Continuing operations: BESEEK
Current tax: ENEATRIR
—PRC EIT - B EASH 45,877 76,219
- PRC LAT — PE B (E R 23,593 39,448
69,470 115,667
Deferred tax (note 32): RIER I (M1EE32) ¢ (219,989) (112,126)
Income tax (credit)/expense FriSfi (%) Fx (150,519) 3,541
(a) Corporate income tax (a) TEMRBH
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the RAEREFE  BRAEERS
Group has no assessable profits for both years. B R FEER TR N - AR A
FISTEL B -
PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2021: 25%). PR EMERIZ25% (2T = —
F : 25%) BOTRRETIRIE -
(b) PRC withholding Income tax (b) FEIFEHFIEH

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the PRC
to their foreign investors out of their profits earned after
1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong
and fulfill the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements
between the PRC and Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B{2 —F — —F 1+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

(o)

PRC LAT

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including lease charges
of prepaid lease payments and all property development
expenditures, which is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as income
tax. The Group has estimated the tax provision for LAT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon completion
of the property development projects and the tax authorities
might disagree with the basis on which the provision for LAT
is calculated.

12. FIEBL(ER) BEX(#)

(9]

B + 3t (B B

B 4 3 3R (A A Bt i 48 (B (BN
& W) 5K PSSR HNRR AT R IE B 7
X (BHEENEEREZHEER
MIIEMEBERAX)) REBERE

30% £60% HH - WRERE B
K E A 2 E W R ATIVERTEH -
REBERBERBEAEBREERNOR
AR TE A ET B TG E R VR /Y
HIAEE BERTPE I MIEERE
ERERSHBFINYEERIER T
I - MBI Rl se MR &
BB BAEEGEN T IR ERFTE
Bt o

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to REFEH(EL) HAXHGEEER
the (loss)/profit before income tax in the consolidated statement of &EMEE@%—( SERAZ BTSSR (&
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: 18),E A ERAT
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
(Loss)/profit before income tax TSFLAT (E18) %7
— Continuing operations #Zgigéf%j‘k (1,061,783) 223,798
— Discontinued operations - BRI ETE = 84,452
(1,061,783) 308,250
Tax calculated at: AT A REFTERTIA
the domestic tax rate of 25% (2021: BIRFHEE25% (ZF - —4F : 25%)
25%) FENHEA (265,446) 77,063
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax H/ERFH UG IS E
purposes (50) (149,288)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AT 0B 2 YR 76 2 28
tax purposes 29,984 16,182
Tax effect of temporary differences not K& RIS
recognised 1,681 (22,788)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  JREERFHIE E18 MR 7S 82 28 55,518 48,373
LAT + I F 23,593 39,448
Tax effect of EIT on LAT EMSHYE T HIEEFROT TR (5,898) (9,862)
Others Hip 10,099 4,413
Income tax (credit)/expense Frig®s () B (150,519) 3,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 13. BRFTEBLAT (B51R) & F
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRETISELAT (E518) m M B bk, (5T
A) TFI&IE -
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations: BESEEK
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEREE 1,432,728 5,059,496
Write-down of inventories TFE MR 700,068 163,998
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR FEERA
expenses 2,132,796 5,223,494
Auditor’s remuneration IZE A &
— Annual audit - FEBEZ 2,200 3,180
— Other audit and non-audit services - Hthwm & R IEE RS = 588
Depreciation e
— Owned property, plant and - BEYE - BENERE
equipment 13,601 17,412
— Leasehold land for own use - BERMEE T 3,478 4,242
— Properties leased for own use - MHEEBRANME 4,028 8,794
21,107 30,448
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HE¥E - FE &REERE
equipment 32 1
Gain on early termination of lease REXRIEEE WS - (2)
Gain on lease modifications MEBTHWER (2,246) =
Impairment losses on property, plant and #7% - BE & & EREE 1B F5E
equipment — net 24,508 35,755
Impairment losses on financial and ERRENEERBEESEFE
contract assets — net 12,673 23,005
Short-term leases expenses EHEERY 971 1,252
Direct operating expenses arising from  BEFAS WA Z R EMEMEL 2 BE
investment properties that generated KT
rental income 1,239 1,040
Discontinued operations: DRI
Amortisation of other intangible assets — ELfh 2 & E S 4 (T ASHERR)
(included in cost of sales) - 4,303
Depreciation e
— Owned property, plant and - BEME - BEREE
equipment = 194
Impairment losses on other intangible  Eo{th 8 7124 2 B9 361 (& 5 18
assets = 10,211
Impairment losses on financial assets — & &4 2 Bl (B F5 185 58
net - 725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

14. EMPLOYEE COSTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS

14. BEERARAENESHFAL

2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Continuing operations: BEREEK
Employee costs (including directors) EBEXRA(BREES) B :
comprise:
Wages, salaries and other benefits I& FHahEMERN 85,508 136,327
Contributions on defined contribution — REHFERIRETEIMHE TR
retirement plans 4,086 4,643
89,594 140,970
Discontinued operations: DRI
Employee costs (including directors) BERA (BIEES) B
comprise:
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE& - HekHMmETR = 1,373
Contributions on defined contribution — REHFERIRET BT
retirement plans - -
- 1,373
89,594 142,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

14. EMPLOYEE COSTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14.

INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2021: one) was director of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 15 below. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2021: four) individuals were as follows:

BERAREUESHF AL
(#)

rEEBRAEERFEEFY  —H(ZF
——F . —Z)BARBEE - HE M
SER T 15HEP R - 82 TP
H( B —F {H) AL ZMenT -

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Salaries and other benefits He REMEF 3,988 4,166
Contributions on defined contribution — REMFGERET I

retirement plans 161 148

4,149 4,314

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

ERMSNIATEE

Number of individuals

A
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/8 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000 7T 1 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of every director of the Company paid/

payable by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
is set out below:

15. EEME
(a) ESE&

AEBREBE-_STE-_—_F+=H
=+t HIEFEENENEARAR
SEHEEZHEFMNMT

Name of director EEpE Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Salaries and benefit Discretionary
Fees allowances scheme bonus Total
EEEK
e HeREE BAFEHER BBTEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER TR TR FHT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui shEmB A ([HkE D)
("Mr. Yao") - - _ _ _
Ms. Xia Lingjie BT 240 1,119 53 50 1,462
Non-executive Director ~ FHTES
Ms. Zhan Yushan ST L 220 340 18 50 628
Independent Non- BYFHTES
executive Directors
Ms. He Suying EELt 220 - 12 20 252
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HBERL 220 = 12 20 252
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FiRAEE 220 - - 20 240
1,120 1,459 95 160 2,834
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

15.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

15. EEfM < 2

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME &)
The remuneration of every director of the Company paid/ AEBREBEZE-T=-—F+=H
payable by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 =+—HBLEFEEN/EAARAT
is set out below: BEREFIMEHIIOT
Name of director i Employer's
contribution
to retirement
Salaries and benefit  Discretionary
Fees allowances scheme bonus Total
EBERIK
e HERER BB WisTEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET THET
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao B E = = = = =
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong SREER LA (HFE(d)
(noted (d)) 500 - - 50 550
Ms. Xia Lingjie BARR T 240 917 47 50 1,254
Non-executive Director ~ FHTES
Ms. Zhan Yushan ARz 240 360 18 50 668
Independent Non- BYFHTES
executive Directors
Ms. He Suying MERERT 240 - 12 20 272
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEERT 240 - 12 20 272
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FiRAEE 240 - - 20 260
1,700 1,277 89 210 3,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(a) No arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. No
inducement for joining the Group or compensation for loss of office
was paid or payable to any directors during the year (2021: Same).

(b) Bonus is determined by the Salary Review Committee with reference to
the performance of the Group.

(o) The remuneration shown represented remuneration received from the
Group by these directors in their capacity as employee to the Group
and/or in their capacity as directors of the Company.

(d) Mr. Zhang Xiaodong was resigned as the executive director of the
Company on 12 October 2021.

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group does not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’ services
(2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

As at 31 December 2022, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, bodies
corporate controlled by and connected entities with such
directors (2021: Nil).

Save as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Group was a party and in which a director of the Group had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2021: Nil).

15. EEfME (2

(a)

(b)

==Y AE )
e

(a) HE_ZT-_—_FR-_F-_—F+=A
=+—BHLEFE WEESHEXR
EREAAMES 2T - TR A%
B3 & B A ST B T AR E
FEAMAREER 2 BEIKERBER
HWE(ZZEZ—F:RAL)-

b) TEARMFMRIEESEL2ELE

J i

(@  EXFRHBIEZSESAEERA
EHEENIMERARAEEL Y
D RA B2 # B

(d) RERLER-_ZE=-—F+A+=H
BEARBRITES -

(e) BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—H1IF
B AEEWEGEREESREM

AEAE=TXHRE(ZT=—%F:
&®) -

EERNXRG  ZHHAEHZ
EREHE

RZBE-_=—F+=—A=+—H &
BUEENZHEESTH 2 AR
AR EREEERECEER
RHAZER - EUEREEAAR
PLH(ZE=_—F 1 |) -

BRER A RS ImER R KT
S MERSFEAEREERESR
BEASEXBABALRKEE
RIINTRAGEEEENEFTE
ERRZREEARSNEMEX
RP - REREGH(ZFT=_—F:
&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

16.

17.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount
of contribution of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the
retirement benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these
subsidiaries with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet
the required contributions under the scheme.

There are no provisions under the Retirement Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 23 July 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose
of the entire equity interest of Yue Jin Asia Limited (”Yue Jin Asia”)
(together with an interest-free shareholder’s loan owned by Yue
Jin Asia) for a cash consideration of HK$1. Yue Jin Asia and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in operation of a yacht club as
well as provision of training services in the PRC. The disposal was
completed on 23 July 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 17. BRLEREER @)

The revenue, results and cash flows of Yue J

in Asia were as follows: BISTMNEERE ZERRESTOT ¢

1 January to

23 July 2021
T
—A—RA=%
+A=-+=H
Notes HK$'000
B3 FHTT
Revenue e 9 6,568
Cost of sales HERAR (6,233)
Administrative expenses THAX (853)
Impairment losses on other intangible HivfmZ A ERERBE
assets 13 (10,211)
Impairment losses on financial assets — net 4 @& ERIEEE - H58 13 (725)
Other income, gains/(losses) — net HaUg A - Uezs(E518) - F48 10 8,371
Loss from operations K Ea (3,083)
Finance costs BhE AR 11 (15,607)
Loss before income tax BRETIS T AT 1R (18,690)
Income tax credit FriSTiE R -
Loss after tax from discontinued BRI EEBNTREE
operations (18,690)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ek =N Eo gy 37(a)ii) 103,142
Profit for the year from discontinued PRI EEBNFE RN
operations 84,452
2021
—E-—4F
HK$'000
FiTT
Cash flows from discontinued operations: &RIMREXBRELZRHERE
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEEES IR R 3,163
Net cash used in investing activities WEREFTE RS 55 (128)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEERHELEZRESFE 4,692
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RBe& KRS SEYEINFE 7,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

17.

18.

19.

=F—HIFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in note 37(a)(ii).

A profit of approximately HK$103,142,000 arose on the disposal
of Yue Jin Asia, being the proceeds of disposal less the carrying
amount of the subsidiary’s net liabilities and attributable goodwvill.
No tax charge or credit arose from the disposal.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based
on the following data:

18.

19.

. DRIEBEER #)
DHEEERE GRS EHEH%FINE

18 2 FHBTARRE 37(a)ii) 3 5E -

PEERTMNTE XN E R
103,142,000 L (R E BB A
BB ARABFEMEEEEZER
B) - HESBETEELETMNHERIN
K o

8=\

ARABEINKERBE_T -
TZA=+—HIEFENHRE
F ) e

BR(EBR) BR

AAREBEESHAARESRERN
RESE(BR) /BRITRE AT #Es

st
(=
Ea

(=2 =—

2022 2021
—E-CF T
'000 ‘000
T TFh%
(re-presented)
(F&E5))
Number of shares &
Weighted average number of ordinary s+ EEREA KR #5E (&518) /BHNH
shares for the purpose of calculating TS E RS A
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share 109,202 104,366

(@) From continuing and discontinued operations

REFESERCRIEEE
e

(a)

2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of HEEREAX(ER) B
calculating basic (loss)/earnings per (Eﬁ?ﬁ)//ﬁﬁl
share (787,049) 334,621
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

19. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 19. 8 (BE) BR@
(b) From continuing operations (b) REFERLSEXEK
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable  ANAQAFIFH AEEAREE
to owners of the Company (E548) % F| (787,049) 334,621
Less: profit for the year from W RE B AR E R TR
discontinued operations REEHF = (84,452)
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of TERBRBEREESNERERN
calculating basic (loss)/earnings per (&) /EFH (E18) %5
share from continuing operations (787,049) 250,169
(c) From discontinued operations () RECKILKEEER
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit for the purpose of calculating  5E KA B R ILELEBFNEFRER
basic earnings per share from 2 8 A
discontinued operations

- 84,452
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding HE-_Z-—_FR-FT-_—F+=
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. A=+—RHIEFE  $BEFETEN

MARBEEET BN LR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. ¥ - BERKE

4

176

Land and
properties Construction
leased for Office Motor  Leasehold in progress
ownuse  equipment vehicles improvements Yacht Buildings ("CIP") Total
BREEBAN HE HEIR
THRYNE  RAERE ot HEL i 4 By (#RIR) szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL T ThL ThL ThL Th ThR T
Cost B
At 1 January 2021 R-E--F-F-H 173277 8,324 3,789 80,522 3873 5535 39,814 315134
Additions AE 8,083 3,019 135 31488 - - - 43325
Disposals e - (128 = s 5 5 = (129)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAA = (@717 (1313) (52,522) (3,944) - (34519) (97,015
Transfer from CIP BRAKEIR - - - 6,059 - = (6,059) =
Written off fisH (2368) - - - - - - 2368)
Farly termination of ~ ER#AHHE
lease (140) - - - - - - (140)
Bxchange difference  EH 2§ 6,730 395 (188) 2,768 N 21 764 10,761
At31December2021 W=-ZF=-%
and 1 January tZA=1-BR
2022 —E-CF
-B-H 186,182 6,893 2423 68,315 = 5,756 - 269,569
Additions AE - 1,966 - 6,224 - - - 8,190
Disposals HE - = (497) S S S 5 (497)
Lease modifications ~ BEKE] (2,521) = = 5 5 5 5 2521)
Exchange difference EiZE (18,103) (955) (282) (7,576) - (587) - (27,503)
At31December2022 RZZ-Zf
tZB=1-A 165,558 7904 1,644 66,963 - 5,169 - 247238
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

FoE -

)

20. M1% - BERERE @)

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

Land and
properties Construction
leased for Office Motor  Leasehold in progress
ownuse  equipment vehicles improvements Yacht Buildings ("CIP") Total
BERBAN HE HEIR
THRUE  RAERE ot HEL i BF (#RIR) @t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TAL ThL Th ThL THI Thn TAL
Accumulated SHTERAEEE
depreciation and
impairment losses
At 1 January 2021 R-E--£-f-H 59,701 3,956 2,11 52,961 2,586 435 33,886 155,686
Depreciation ik 13,036 1,638 392 15,304 80 192 - 30,642
Disposals He - (24) - - - - - (24)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAT] - (3753) (628) (49,936) 2713) - (34,519) (91,549)
Written off i (2,368) - - - - - - (2,369)
Farlytermination of ~ ER#AIHE
|ease (105) - - - - - - (105)
Impairment losses HEEE 25730 - - 10,025 - - - 35,755
Exchange difference EXZEE 2,347 206 (251) 1411 47 23 633 4416
At31December 201 H=B=-f%
and 1 January tZR=t-Bk
2022 ZECCE
-B-H 98,341 2,03 1,624 29,765 - 700 - 132,453
Depreciation e 7,506 1727 166 11,521 - 187 - 21,107
Disposals e - - 410) - - - - #10)
Impairment losses HEFSE 1829 3,480 - 19,199 - - - 24,508
Bichange difference EX £ (9,763) (447) (215) (3,960) - 83) - (14,468)
At31December 2022 H=Z=Z
TZR=1-A 97,913 6,783 1,165 56,525 - 804 - 163,190
Net carrying amount B /E
At31December 2022 W=Z=Zf
tZR=1-H 67,645 1121 479 10,438 - 4,365 - 84,048
At31December 2021 H-Z=-%
tZR=1-H 87,841 4,870 79 38,550 - 5,056 - 137,116
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic may have had negative impacts to the PRC
economy, business environment and directly and indirectly affect
the operations of the Group. The financial performance of the
operations of a karaoke box, fitness rooms and children playrooms
were adversely affected resulting from the uncertain economic
environment.

The financial performance of the operation of a golf practising
court is recovering, there is an indication that the impairment loss
recognised in prior years for the assets other than goodwill may no
longer exist or may have decreased.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amounts of
the property, plant and equipment allocated to the respective
cash-generating unit(s) (“CGU(s)") and as a result the carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment were written down
to its recoverable amounts of approximately HK$84,048,000
(2021: HK$137,116,000). Impairment losses of approximately
HK$33,800,000 (2021: HK$26,818,000) was recognised
for the CGUs related to operations of a karaoke box, fitness
rooms and children playrooms while reversal of impairment
loss of approximately HK$9,292,000 (2021: impairment loss of
approximately HK$8,937,000) was recognised for the CGU related
to operation of a golf practising court. As a result, net impairment
loss of approximately HK$24,508,000 (2021: HK$35,755,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for continuing operations.

As at 31 December 2022, the recoverable amount of the CGU
related to operations of a golf practising court (“Golf CGU"), a
karaoke box (“KTV CGU"), fitness rooms (“Fitness CGU") and
children playrooms (“Playroom CGU") have been determined based
on value in use calculations respectively, which is arrived at on
the basis of valuation carried out by an independent professional
valuer. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period and the growth rate that does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in which
the CGU operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

20. M1% - BERERE @)

BHE_Z_—_F#+-_A=+—81L*F
€ - COVID-19 /B S h BIASE - Z IR
RERAETE  TEEKEEFET
REEEE - AR EBEIRIETAR -
KERNOKIE - BEERAEBRLEN
IS RIB RSB R L o

EEBBARRES 2 HRERUE -
BRRSEE (BRI RBEFER
RZAEBRRY FTBEERTLES
AL «

At - AEBFHOREESERGESE
BU(RSELEMNDNYE  BE
MEENA D &5 WAL BE -
WEMEZEOEREBDAENRE A KE
& BE#984,048,0008 T (— & = — & :
137,116,000/ 7T ) » B B & & RHL 0K
EREERREELECHBRSE
A B T FRRL B /5 18 49 33,800,000 %8 7T
—E - —4£:26,818,000/87T) - A
MEEMEARRE S HERSEE
BB v T RR Rk 1B FES 18 9 21 499,292,000 78
T(ZEZ—F : JFEEE#8,937,000
BIr) o At RErpEEkEMEE
WEFRABR B ELEEBNRERS
B4 524,508,000 (& = —F :
35,755,000 7T) °

RZE-_—_FF+-_A=Z+—H HE
EeBRABRBEB((ERAREEL
BAL]) - FROKIE([KTVIR € E 4 &
) BREE(RERSEEEN]) K
REBLR((HREREELEMN]D A
MrBeELESEUzRE&3EEER
FREEFEET  UWEREBEEBEIER
B BEGHEMETZHESH - Z&t
ERAENKARARESIE  RER
FHZROBMEBEENE S RERER
B EEERFBBZREELEEMAT
LR 7 REAFHIRRER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B{2 —F — —F 1+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The key assumptions for the cash flow projections as at 31
December 2022 are as follows:

20. M1% - BERERE @)

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HHEERE
FER 2 EBEREMT ¢

Golf CGU KTV CGU Fitness CGU Playroom CGU
ELES KTV fes BRE
REeELEN REELEN REELEN REeELEN
Annual projected revenue over  RFHIFEERLEE HK$18,545,000to  HK$4,075,000t0  HK$4,334,000t0  HK$1,409,000 to
five-year period HK$19,292,000 HK$5,404,000 HK$12,247,000 HK$5,632,000
18,545,000 T  4,07500087%Z  4,334,000ETE  1,409,00087ZE
19,292,000 & 7T 5,404,000 7t 12,247,000 8¢ 5,632,000 7T
Estimated weighted average LEHRRREREY
growth rate for cash flows fEET TR %
beyond the five-year period 3% N/A T 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate AR = 18.69% 22.14% 20.94% 15.93%

The key assumptions for the cash flow projections as at 31
December 2021 are as follows:

j% EIJZIKTEP“ZZDT

Golf CGU KTV CGU Fitness CGU

BEX KTV 24

BEeEEEN BEEEEN BEeEEEN

Annual projected revenue over FFHAFETERI L ¥ HK$16,673,000t0  HK$7,077,000to  HK$11,303,000 to
five-year period HK$18,687,000 HK$9,156,000 HK$15,896,000

16,673,000/ TE
18,687,000 7T

Estimated weighted average TFHERAERE
growth rate for cash flows et T RE
beyond the five-year period

Pre-tax discount rate FRATaLIR &

7,077,000/ 0%
9,156,000 78 7T

11,303,000/870%
15,896,000 78 7T

3% N/A &R 3%
16.77% 16.92% 25.34%

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment amounting to approximately HK$4,365,000 (2021:
HK$5,056,000) was pledged as security for the Group's bank
borrowings (note 29 (a)).

RZEZZF+=ZA=+—8" ﬁ%ﬁ
8 /& #14,365,000/8 T( =T = —
5,056,000/ 7T ) I 2 ~ BB K& 1%5
THEMR - DEAREEIRITER 2 HET
o (MFEE29(@a)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

20.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 20. ¥ -  BERRE#)
The analysis of carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of REMEERFESNEREEERT
underlying asset is as follows: BT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
BisE FHExT FAT
Land and properties leased for BITERATIBR 2 HEEE AN
own used, carried at depreciated i K ¥nE
cost
— Leasehold land for own use - BFHRMREELH (i) 49,350 48,251
— Properties leased for own use - HEEE RNy (ii) 18,295 39,590
67,645 87,841
Notes: Bt EE -
(i) Leasehold land for own use (i) BERAEELH

The Group has obtained the right to use a parcel of land in the PRC for its
operation of a golf practising court. The lease term is 17 years. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to lease the land, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease.

(i) Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its various offices and
shop premises through tenancy agreements with independent third parties
and a related party, a company in which Mr. Yao has significant influence over
the related party. The leases with independent third parties typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 8 years (2021: 2 to 8 years) while the lease with the related
party runs for an initial period of 20 years (2021: 20 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.
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IRIR B 55 = M BRiE (P £ Hax g
FEBERVENZ AR ZHERE -
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EMEZEN MEBUE=-H2HEERE
MEEE2E8F(ZT_—F:258%F) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

21. BEWE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fair value ATE
Completed properties held for BEREENER REFEE
rental purpose and/or for capital 2R T Y -
appreciation:
At 1 January H—HA—H 694,452 1,069,035
Disposal k= (24,608) (415,604)
Fair value loss NHEEE (80,648) (1,209)
Transfer from investment properties BETEINEYE
under development 575,100
Exchange differences PE R A58 (98,972) 42,230
At 31 December Wt=-—A=+—8H 1,065,324 694,452
Investment properties under EEREYE -
development:
At 1 January R—A—H 3,368,750 4,965,506
Additions NE 81,912 350,562
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37(a)ii))  H &M B2 A (KizE37()iii) - (2,224,723)
Fair value (loss)/gain NEEEE) W (142,305) 71,922
Transfer to completed investment EERTIREME
properties (575,100) -
Exchange differences PE 3 =58 (305,729) 205,483
At 31 December R+t=A=+-A 2,427,528 3,368,750
Total Bt 3,492,852 4,063,202
Unrealised (loss)/profit on properties FFAM R EEIBEYE
revaluation included in profit or loss EHEAER(EBB),EF
for the financial year — continuing - FHEE R
operations (222,953) 70,713

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2022 and 2021 have been carried out by Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited, an independent professional valuer who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in
the location and category of the investment property being valued.

R_E_—_Fhk_ZT-_—F+_-A
=t—R AREREVENLFET
MBY EXAEMTIEFEERARIE

o &G EE A R

BUIEIEEIE RS

BE BMHINGHREREDENILE

MBI EEBRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

21.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The valuation for investment properties was derived using the
direct comparison approach by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the property market. The construction
cost incurred and estimated construction cost to complete the
development as at the date of valuation are also taken into account.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

During the year, approximately HK$1,065,324,000 (2021: Nil) was
transferred from level 2 into level 3, details are set out in note 7.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, approximately
HK$24,608,000 of the completed properties was disposed to
independent third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed
of investment properties under development upon disposal of
subsidiaries of approximately HK$2,224,723,000 (note 37(a)(iii)).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into
an agreement to dispose the completed properties of approximately
HK$392,608,000 in relation to the land resumption of the
local government authority in Shenyang and the remaining of
approximately HK$22,996,000 was disposed to independent third
parties.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of investment
properties amounting to approximately HK$2,260,017,000
(2021: HK$640,816,000) was pledged as security for the Group’s
bank borrowings (note 29(a)) and nil (2021: approximately
HK$1,251,987,000) for the Group’s other borrowings (note 29(b)).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of investment
properties amounting to approximately HK$39,185,000 (2021:
HK$46,992,000) was pledged as security for a bank borrowing
granted to a former subsidiary which had been overdue (note 29(f)).
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21. REWE #)

REMEZHEDZENETS LAF
ZHEBUBHEFEBRRAERLBLRE
b BEEERHEELENBEERAR
SERFAEN SR ZERANTIEE BENA °

FA - HETDELELRE -

AFEABIER LM E ZFARSR
ERR  ZERRHETERARTETRR -

FR - #91,065,324,0008 0 ( —ZF = —
FR)AF_FEALZL  FBHEHR
BeE7 -

REBEZ-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HIHF
& » 4924,608,00078 THE T E
EFBIE=F -

REBEE_ZE-_—F+-_RA=+—HIF
E AEBERLENBARKEERE
BIRE W E#2,224,723,0005 7T (K&
37(a)iii)) °

REE-_ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—HL
FE - AEBERERG S M BT B
WEHaTHm ALERTYWE
#7392,608,000/ ;L M T3 0 4
22,996,000 B LB HETFEIE=FH °

RZBEZZF+-A=+—80" @
{E#92,260,017,0008 T ( ZF = — 4 :
640,816,000/ 7T ) I EWEE T 1K
o AEAARNEERITER(HFE293a))
ME(ZZTZ—%F : £91,251,987,000 %
T ) 7 5 B B b fig 3k (B 5E 29(b)) A 3K 3

[}
oo °

RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H k@A
{8 #739,185,000/%8 ;w( = & = — & :
46,992,000 L) MIHEYW D TEA
UEARTRINEB A RE B ERITER
2 AR G (B EE 29(F)) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

22. GOODWILL 22. B8
HK$’000
THETT
Cost R
At 1 January 2021 R=-E=-—%—HA—H 319,435
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries EILER D EWB AR (M 37a)i0)

(note 37(a)(ii) (305,806)
Exchange differences M 5 Z=%A 6,374
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-ZBE-—F+-A=+—HAKR=Z=-=-F—H—H 20,003
Exchange differences P =58 (2,041)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_ZH+=-A=+—H 17,962
Accumulated impairment losses RiPBEEE
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—H—H 319,435
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries BIFFER B EM B A R (MsE 37()0)

(note 37(a)(ii) (305,806)
Exchange differences MEHZERR 6,374
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R=-ZBE=-—F+-A=+—HAK=Z=-=-F—H—H 20,003
Exchange differences b 5 =58 (2,041)
At 31 December 2022 HN-E-=—%+=-HA=+—H 17,962
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-——F+—-A=+—8 _
At 31 December 2021 HN=—TB=-——F+=-H=+—H -

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on
the higher of fair values less cost to disposal and value in use
calculation.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the goodwill had been fully
impaired.

REBAHTRENEESNKERD
EEBHREBEREHAMHZIREESL
B o

BeELEMNABRSBEIERRF
ERHERAEEREECRREETE °

R-ZB-_—_HR-_FT_—F+-H
=t—H BESTTERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

23.

The following are the particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2022 and 2021 which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/

R BARINKRE

UWTAERRREERATBEFEAEH
¥E BEXEBRZEIENBATN=
T = —E—+ZA=+—H
ZHB-EERE REEMHBAR
ZHBESERRBANRIE

Percentage of

registration and operation/ Particular of ownership interest/voting
Name kind of legal entity issued share power/profit sharing ratio  Principal activities
EMARYL BEREELYE/ REERE RER/
£B HEEERER BERTRAFE MEENNE A TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B
Glory Sun Investment Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary share US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited liability company
ENREBRARRR KERNES BREMLRR  TARIEET 100% - REER
Baoxin International British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary share US$1 = 100% Investment holding
Development Limited liability company
ENERERARAT RERNES BREERR  TARIET - 100% REZR
Karsen International Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary shares US$50,000 - 85% Investment holding
liability company
SIHERER AR AERLHE BREALA  BiEMRKS50,000%T - 85% AR
Micron Capital Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary shares US$50,000 = 85% Investment holding
liability company
FREABRAA EBRLHS  BEREMAT  EBRS0000%T - 85% ALK
Micron Technology Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary shares US$1 = 85% Investment holding
liability company
FARBRARAT] KERNES BREERR TERIEET - 85% AR
Baoxin Development Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 - 100% Inactive
(Hong Kong) Limited company
BBENERERAT &5 AREMRLA EER1BT - 100% EEEH
Baoxin Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited company
EAENERERAT B4 BREARAR TER1BT = 100% ®REER
Glory Sun Land Management Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 = 100% Administrative for the
Limited company group
ENEMERERAA] B4 BREARAR LEk AT = 100% &EIH

184
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Percentage of

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

23. RMTB A RINERE (&)

registration and operation/ Particular of ownership interest/voting
Name kind of legal entity issued share power/profit sharing ratio  Principal activities
SR BEREEES REEER REE/
£R HEEERER BRTRAFE MERNHE A TEER
Direct Indirect
B# EE
Qianhai Glory Sun Group Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
company
AEENEEARAR &% BREERF LaR1 BT - 100% REER
Baoxin Technology (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$100,000 - 85% Investment holding
Limited company
EABHMRARAA B ARALLA LA 100,000787T - 85% AR
Micron Technology Development  Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares - 85% Investment holding
Limited company HK$80,000,000
FHHBERERAA &% ARALLF £187%.80,000,000 BT - 85% ALK
Rich Wealth Investment Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares - 85% Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited company HK$203,700,000
EAREA(BR)ERAR B ARALLA i@ 203,700,000 - 85% REHEK
Baoxin Holdings Company The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 100% Property investment
Limited (wholly-foreign owned RMB1,000,000,000
enterprise)
ENERERAA hE - BREAQHF AMERARE - 100% #MFERE
GIEEELE) 1,000,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Baoxin Logistics The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 100% Trading of home
Company Limited RMB300,000,000 appliances and
building materials
ANEFDRERAF] hE - BREAATF AR - 100% BEERERAGR
AR¥300,000,0007C BEME
Shenzhen Baoxin Supply Chain  The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 100% Trading of
Company Limited RMB332,000,000 commodities and
home appliances
and building
materials
AYEEHEEERAR hE - BREALRT HEMER - 100% ARXHHR
AK%332,000,0007C EERERMR
R

BNEMREEARAT 2022FF

185



4

186

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Percentage of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

23. RMTBRARINERE &)

registration and operation/ Particular of ownership interest/voting
Name kind of legal entity issued share power/profit sharing ratio  Principal activities
SR BEREEES RaEER REE/
&R HEERER ERTRAFE MERRHE A TEER
Direct Indirect
B# ElE3
Shenzhen Baoxin Trading The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital - 100% Trading of
Company Limited RMB10,000,000 commodities
AN EFEEERAT hE - BREART HMER - 100% AZRX%H
AE#10,000,00070
Shenzhen Baoxin Industrial The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital = 85% Property investment
Company Limited RMB1,764,800,000
RYENEREBARAA hE - BREALAT RaliEw - 85% MERE
AR 1,764,800,000 7
Shenzhen Jitong Industrial The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital = 85% Real estate
Company Limited RMB1,200,000,000 development
AERERERAA hE - BREAQTF FMER - 85% EHERE
AR 1,200,000,000 7T
Changchun City Baoxin Property - The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 59.86% Real estate
Development Company RMB426,000,000 development
Limited
RETEHNFEHEREERLA 7B AREAQA FMER - 59.86% FEHIERE
AR 426,000,000 7
Hunan Meilian Property Company  The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital - 4335%* Real estate and
Limited (“Hunan Meilian") RMB163,265,036 property
investment
HEXBHERBRAA P BRERLTF HMER - 4335%* EHERWERE
(M#m ) AR 163,265,036 T
Weinan Baoneng Property The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 51% Real estate
Company Limited RMB300,000,000 development
BETEREXARAA P EREALRA AfMER - 51% BHERE
AR 300,000,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Percentage of

23. RMTB A RINERE (&)

registration and operation/ Particular of ownership interest/voting
Name kind of legal entity issued share power/profit sharing ratio  Principal activities
BMAYL BRREELYE/ REERE RER/
£R HEEERER ERTRAFE MEERWE AL TEER
Direct Indirect
B# B
Shantou Taisheng Technology ~ The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital - 85% Real estate and
Limited RMB2,310,000,000 property
(2021: investment
RMB2,000,000,000)
WSEMRER AR AR hE - EREALR AfER - 85% EMERNERE
AR#2,310,000,000 7T
(ZZ=—F:
AK%2,000,000,0007T)
Yunfu Baoxin The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 85% Real estate
RMB360,000,000 development
EEREN hE - EREALA AMER - 85% miEME
AR 360,000,0007C
Shenzhen Ruiteng Enterprise The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital - 85% Property investment
Management Company RMB200,000,000
Limited (“Shenzhen Ruiteng”) (2021: RMB10,000,000)
RRREFEEBRAA P EREALR AfER - 85% MERE
(MARYREE ) AR 200,000,0007C
(ZZ=—F:
AR¥10,000,0007C)
Shenzhen Virdom Education The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital - 85% Property investment
Investments Company RMB40,000,000
Limited (“Shenzhen Virdom") (2021: RMB10,000,000)
(formerly known as Shenzhen
Qianhai Virdom Education
Investments Company Limited)
AEEHEREERDA hE - BREAQTF HMER - 85% MERE
(MRYIEE) (AR A% 40,000,000
RYFTEEBHFRE (ZZ=-F:
BRRA) AE%10,000,0007T)
Shenzhen Borui Enterprise The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 85% Investment holding
Management Company RMB720,000,000
Limited
RYBREEERARAA) hE - BREALRT &R - 85% AR
AE#720,000,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RIBARNKRE @)
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
registration and operation/ Particular of ownership interest/voting
Name kind of legal entity issued share power/profit sharing ratio  Principal activities
BMARYL BEREELYE/ REERE RER/
&R HEERER ERTRAFE MERRHE A TEER
Direct Indirect
B# C
Shenzhen Chaoshang Joint The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital - 48.28%* Investment holding
Investment Company RMB625,000,000

Limited (“Chaoshang Joint
Investment”)

AIHEHERERNERAR FE ERECLA AR - 48.28%* REER
(MammakE)) AR 625,000,0007C
Chaoshang Group (Shantou) The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 48.28%* Real estate and
Investment Company Limited RMB600,000,000 property
investment
HEEBOIR) REERAR  $B BREAARA AR - 4828%* EHERMERE
AR 600,000,0007T
Shantou Chaoshang Chengzhen  The PRC, limited liability company  Registered capital - 46.46%* Real estate and
Comprehensive Management RMB600,000,000 property
Company Limited investment and
infrastructure
construction

WS AR S a R e BREEAA AR - 4646%* FHE - MERER

BRAFE AR 600,000,000 7 B RS

Shenyang Bao Xin Business The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered capital - 85% Property investment

Company Limited (wholly-foreign owned HK$183,000,000
enterprise)
EEENEEERAR e BREARARIONEEER HMER - 85% MERE
%) 183,000,000 %75

* For the entities with indirect percentage of ownership interest/voting power/ e EREHREEER RER /DT eE
profit sharing ratio which are lower than 50%, the Group is considered to have EEDHER50% @ AIAEBWAR (EEB %
control over these entities as the Group through subsidiaries which the Group EEENER BANSERBNEEHR
have controlling interest, possesses the power, exposure, and rights to variable BEREENMBAREREN IRERE
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those BISRERELHRIEOBRBE R NEEST
variable returns. iR A G R B, -

Notes: BEE -

(i) The names of certain companies referred to in these consolidated financial (i) WEHRAMBEHRERIENE T RAREBIER
statements represent management’s best effort in translation of the Chinese EREREABNEZERAN T BB
names of these companies as no English names have been registered or EHRBIE  RARS AR EEMkRE
available. XA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 255 R PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. REBATNKRE &)

(a) EAFZGIMEER

TRETZEHAIFIEDE#R
(Rt ) B ASEMN S
BEAZHBLRER - RELQA

(a) Material non-controlling interests

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries
that have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) that are material to
the Group. The summarised financial information represents

amounts before inter-company eliminations.

IR HAT < B AR RN T -

Chaoshang
Hunan Joint
Name Meilian Investment
£18 HMEXE HREBeRE
2022 2022
—s-= —s=-=
Principal place of business/country of = B2 tFHMAZER The PRC/ The PRC/
incorporation The PRC The PRC
% of ownership interests/voting PRI RS ?—rﬁﬂ’]%ﬁﬁé% =/ 56.65%/ 51.72%/
rights held by NC| KEEB D 56.65% 51.72%
HK$'000 HK$000
THET F#ET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8":
Non-current assets ERENVEE 266,999 937,674
Current assets mEEE 3,441,714 3,350,095
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (62,503) (337,207)
Current liabilities mEIRE (3.320,824) (2,392,660)
Net assets BEFE 325,386 1,557,902
Accumulated NCI St R 184,331 805,747
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t=-A=1+—HLEE":
Revenue R 3,065 259,661
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (EBE) %A (210,252) 150,490
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 muzs (46,860) (205,698)
Total comprehensive income PHEW BT (257,112) (55,208)
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI IR MR (JEST‘E)//mﬁ“ (119,108) 77,833
Other comprehensive income ZEIEEIE R 2 Bt 2 E W
allocated to NClI (26,545) (106,387)
Total comprehensive income SEREIFEFIEEEERER
allocated to NCI (145,653) (28,554)
Dividend paid to NCI IR TSI R R < BB = =
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE (FTiE) /EA 2R & /T8
operating activities (18,186) 63,470
Net cash used in investing activities — R&EBNFTHE 2 IR & 558 (169,512) (32,203)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEBEL(FFE) 2R F8
financing activities 86,100 (38,717)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRReEEMR D FE
equivalents (101,598) (7,450)
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(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. REBATNEKRE &)
(a) EARFEZSIMRER =)

Chaoshang
Hunan Joint
Name Meilian Investment
#8 RAEES WEHAEIRE
2021 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Principal place of business/country of FE4& %2 FHA T BER The PRC/ The PRC/
incorporation The PRC The PRC
FE FE,
s s
% of ownership interests/voting FEIEHIM R IE A C A s 56.65%/ 51.72%/
rights held by NCI BRERAESL 56.65% 51.72%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 31 December: R+=—RA=+—8":
Non-current assets FEMENEE 319,846 1,051,899
Current assets mEEE 3,705,232 4,143,544
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE (311,260) (367,500)
Current liabilities mEBEE (3,131,320) (3,214,833)
Net assets BEFHAE 582,498 1,613,110
Accumulated NCI B IEfE s RS 329,984 834,301
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t-A=+—RHLEE:
Revenue | 4,717 556,384
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEE (FE) &5 F (148,499) 38,616
Total comprehensive income THEW AR (122,943) 99,673
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DEEIHEHIEER 2 (B518) % F (84,125) 21,039
Total comprehensive income AEEIHEHIMER 2 2 HRE AR
allocated to NClI (69,648) 52,618
Dividend paid to NCI AT T IR dI M A 2 2 AR B - =
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESTEIES (AR 2RSS F5E
operating activities 538,121 (186,571)
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEEES () 2R T8
investing activities 11,038 (125,492)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (i) ELEZIRE F5E
financing activities (562,628) 260,359
Net decrease in cash and cash Re LA EBEYR A FRE
equivalents (13,469) (51,704)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
Deemed partial disposal of subsidiaries in prior year

On 15 and 18 January 2021, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has disposed of its entire equity
interest of two subsidiaries, Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen
Virdom, respectively to an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company at a cash consideration of RMB1
each, the Group’s effective equity interest in Shenzhen
Ruiteng and Shenzhen Virdom were then reduced from
100% to 85% upon completion. Accordingly, the Group
recognised an increase in equity attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$5,064,000 directly in equity.
The transaction was completed on 15 and 18 January 2021.

RTB A RINRE (&)
(b) EEFEZHMUERZIRS
RiBEEEHBEAT

RZEBE-_—F—A+HBETN
B ARA—HHEE2ENBA
BIE D RlE— ARG EEIER
BB AR EE ERFE mER
FIIMEBRE B R AR 2R
#-HERESAAREIIT R
TR ANE BRI ERR
I A EFRARE R 100% > 2
85% o EItt - NEEREREP EE
RARAIFE ARSI
5,064,000/ 70 °c Z X HER=F
——F—A+RBAETN\BREK -

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 24. AV EZBHMEE KIS
BReemEE
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET T
Listed investments, at fair value EmRE - BAVE
Equity securities in the United States LA KB W AR A FE 5 1,253 4,694

The Group designated the listed investments at FVTOCI (non-
recycling), as the investment is held for strategic purposes.

On disposal of these equity investments, any related balances within
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to accumulated losses.

The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices.

HRIRETRREENMSE - WAE
BiEERAFEEBREMEEKEIIE
ZEMERE (TAgE) -

RHOEZERARER  REQFES
B H 2 W R 51 AR 2 W A R E AT AR
RSB D BERGER -

FHESNAFEANEMNEABRE
ZEO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (Continued)

25.

Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following
currencies:

24. BNV EHEBHMEZE WS

ReeMEE©)

BAVPEEBEME2EKEIIR S/
BENATIIEHE

2022 2021

—E-CF T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FABT

uss$ ET 1,253 4,694
INVENTORIES . B&

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Properties under development EEME 6,219,814 7,184,282

Properties held for sale BEHEE 1,866,687 2,832,206

Others Hib 453 452

8,086,954 10,016,940

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included a write-
down of inventories of approximately HK$69,045,000 (2021:
HK$163,998,000) and HK$631,023,000 (2021: Nil) in the carrying
amounts of the Group’s properties held for sale and properties
under development to the net realisable value during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The amount of properties under development expected
to be recovered in more than one year is approximately
HK$3,685,038,000 (2021: HK$4,953,882,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of properties
under development and properties held for sale amounting to
approximately HK$4,409,654,000 (2021: HK$4,923,458,000)
and HK$1,298,471,000 (2021: HK$49,803,000) respectively are
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings (note 29(a)).
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EERAAAINGFERAREAEER
REBEZE-_ZTE-__F+=-A=+—HL
FERFEFEVERTEYENERR
EMREZATEREFENTEMRR D
Al #69,045,000%8 (=T = — F:
163,998,000 7T ) 5 631,023,000% 7T
T —F )
FEHNBBE—FRBEMNEEZDESEE
%9 %3,685,038,0008 L( =T = — 4 :
4,953,882,000 7T) °

RZE-Z__F+-A=+—H" M@\
B » Bl A& #14,409,654,000% jt( —
T — — 4 :4,923,458,000/8 T ) &
1,298,471,000% ;t( — & = — F:
49,803,000 70) MIEEYH MIFIERE
MEDTER  UMEALTEBRITER
2 ARG (B EE 29(a)) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 17 S 5 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B{2 —F — —F 1+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

INVENTORIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of properties held
for sale of nil (2021: approximately HK$1,208,000,000) is pledged
as security for the Group’s other borrowings (note 29(b)).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of properties held
for sales amounting to approximately HK$28,857,000 (2021:
HK$32,136,000) is pledged as security for a bank borrowing
granted to a former subsidiary which had been overdue (note 29(f)).

According to state-owned land use rights grant contracts dated in
March 2014 (“Land Use Rights Contract 2014"), the parcels of land
in the PRC for the property development project of which certain
property under development of approximately HK$128,847,000
held by a subsidiary namely Yunfu Baoxin was required to be
completed by March 2017.

As at 31 December 2022, the development was still under
construction. A failure to meet any development milestones
contained in the Land Use Rights Contract 2014 may lead to a
daily penalty of 0.01% of the consideration of the Land Use Rights
Contract 2014 in according with the terms of the Land Use Rights
Contract 2014. The Group had made submissions to relevant land
authority on application of extension of completion of development
on the ground amongst others that such delay has been due to
various reasons beyond its control. In 2021, a written notice had
been served to Yunfu Baonxin by the relevant land authority stating
that Yunfu Baoxin shall accelerate the progress of construction
works and the relevant land authority reserves the right to pursue
penalty. After consultation with the PRC legal advisor, the directors
of the Company consider that the probability for penalty by the
relevant land authority in respect of the possible breach of the Land
Use Rights Contract 2014 is minimal, and therefore no provision is
to be recognised as of the end of reporting period.

25. BE (&)

R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8" EEE
ABE(ZZT=—F : #91,208,000,000 7%
TO) RS ER EMED TR - LMEAR
EEEME TR (HE29(0b)) -

NR-ZTE-—F+-_A=+—08 " BEL
E Y ERE(E428,857,0008 T (=&
——% 132,136,000/ 70) B P - LA
EABRTRNBAREAMBRITERZ
IR (B EE29(F)) ©

BEASAE-Z—NF=AZEG L
FRHERFAN( T —NF L FER
AN URPRZ AR ER
BIEE - ANBAR(AEZEH)FE
ZETIEEYEY) 128,847,000/8 TLER
—tF=ZAFERT -

RZE-Z=ZF+=-A=+—H B@H
BIEBNERERD - MR EI_-F
— PO + M RS A PRt 2 (E o] 3%
RERE ATt gRB T —NE L+
MERABEGHNZHKBIE BAKR-F
—llfli:timﬁﬁﬁﬁé #R(EZ0.01% &1

c AEENUTEHRBER(EFEIE)
ﬁ_H:'nﬁT flEENSBEREAMBMAE
T BEEBRER T EMTAAEAR

CHRIEZ_—F - FHELTMEERE
t/%é!%ﬁgﬁﬁjiﬁf_%u KHEEFE
FTIEMRZER TREE  MBBLME
BERREBEBREINESN - LAPEDE
BEMBRE  ARRESERE AH
THEERHAEER T —NF i
2 A& 40 bt AN B2 51 &9 7T e M AR BN -
A A0 2 S HA SR SR SR T B A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

26. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

A n’]ﬁE& A n’]ﬁ1§

(@) BHNEE

(a) Contract assets

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Contract assets arising from: BRIEEELR -
Construction services FREERRTS 34,790 38,743
Less: loss allowance for ECL - TEER= B EE 2 EE R (3,285) (4,124)
31,505 34,619

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group's future performance.
The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

The Group'’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period
once milestones are reached.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to
be recovered in more than one year is approximately
HK$31,505,000 (2021: HK$34,619,000).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from contract asset are set out in note 6(c).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

26. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 26. EREEREGHNEERE®
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contract liabilities arising from: BRIE BELR -
Sale of properties SHEME 2,374,546 2,336,958
Operation of a golf practising court K& SR AR E S5 3,411 2,992
Operation of children playrooms KERBREE 1,243 1,746
Operation of fitness rooms EREHE 7,130 9,793
Operation of a karaoke box KRB OKJE 97 74
2,386,427 2,351,563

Contract liabilities represent sales proceeds received from
purchasers in connection with the Group's pre-sales of
properties, operation of a golf practising court, children
playrooms, fitness rooms and a karaoke box.

StBEERAEEEENE 1
BEBARERS  REBHE
i 5 B OK B M B R 2

SHEFTSFUA -

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during EHBEEERRERNCERES W
the year are as follows. ™o
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
Revenue recognised that was FAAFVIGHBEERZ
included in the contract liability EERE X
balance at the beginning
of the year (785,433) (860,455)
Revenue recognised that was not Rt AFETEHEEESRZ
included in the contract liability EEREER
balance at the beginning
of the year (176,473) (695,205)
Decrease in contract liabilities as a HHENBARERENEERD
result of disposal of subsidiaries (B EE 37(a)iii))
(note 37(a)(iii)) - (1,823,945)
Increase in contract liabilities as AWM EEEEMEZIZSBHAL
a result of receiving deposits in BEEm
respect of pre-sales of properties 1,237,642 3,854,737

195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

27. BE5 R EHARYIR

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHT

Trade receivables =) e 38,832 77,179

Less: loss allowance for ECL B TEEREE BB EEEE (17,031) (697)

21,801 76,482

Other receivables H b Uk IR 107,641 108,089
Other receivables from related parties H b e W BAE 5 708 (M5 41(b))

(note 41(b)) 2,740 498
Consideration receivables (note (a)) UK E (Mi3E (@) 352,408 540,039
Prepayments and other deposits AR R EAR RS (M (b))

(note (b)) 3,889,121 4,267,383
Other tax assets HEMMIBEEE 33,355 124,495

4,385,265 5,040,504
Total trade and other receivables B NEMEWFIAEE 4,407,066 5,116,986

Notes:

As at 31 December 2022, consideration receivables represented the balance
of the proceeds (net of impairment losses) in connection with the disposal of
financial assets at FVTOCI of approximately HK$44,000 (2021: HK$3,755,000)
in the PRC in prior year; the proceeds (net of impairment losses) in
connection with the disposals of the investment properties in relation to land
resumption situated in Shenyang of approximately HK$352,364,000 (2021:
HK$392,389,000) (note 21) in prior year; and the proceeds (net of impairment
losses) in connection with the disposals of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial
Company Limited of nil (2021: approximately HK$143,895,000) (note 37(a)(iii))
in prior year.

As at 31 December 2022, included in prepayments and other deposits of
approximately HK$2,149,632,000 (2021: HK$2,282,256,000) represented
an amount paid for redevelopment project of certain land parcels in the PRC
designated to a subsidiary of the Company by the local PRC government. The
demolition work of redevelopment project has been completed. The remaining
balance substantially represented prepayments made to the contractors of
property development.

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 10 days

(2021:

10 days) for its customers of trading of commodities and

30 days (2021: 30 days) for its customers of trading of home
appliances and building materials.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in trade receivables are trade debtors (net of impairment
losses) with the following aging analysis, based on invoice dates, as
of the end of reporting period.

27.

EFREMEWRIEZ)

RBEHREREEESRKHIEAZE
SRR - RIZHE B HEHREIE
EBRE - AREONIT -

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FABT

0-30 days 0-30H 2,388 10,811
31-60 days 31-60 H 368 11,122
61-90 days 61-90 H 1,205 860
91-120 days 91-120 H 260 5,307
Over 120 days 120 B £ 17,580 48,382
21,801 76,482

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in RMB.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are set out in note 6(c).

7% 55 (8 5 55 50T 10 B T MELBA A R 5
£HE -

BRAASBEEERRNANRE S R EMRE
WHREEL ZEERR 2 E—TFEHR
PAPEE B(c) ©

28. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 28. EHEARZMRFBIBITERUR
AND BANK AND CASH BALANCES RITRB SR
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Pledged and restricted bank deposits &1 & Z R &I$R1TE R FET FAET
Guarantee deposits for construction of  AGEFEEIBEME 2 RBILS
pre-sales properties 419,325 296,132
Pledged bank deposits for notes payable it Z% K IR RTT1F 50
(note 29(c)) (P 5E29(c)) - 61,250
Pledged bank deposits for a bank FB B = HERIRITERMEEN
borrowings granted to an independent  $R1T1E X
third party 22,000 24,500
441,325 381,882
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28. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 28.

AND BANK AND CASH BALANCES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank and cash balances
of approximately HK$78,744,000 (2021: HK$319,017,000)
and pledged and restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$441,325,000 (2021: HK$381,882,000) were denominated
in RMB and held in the PRC. Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

EEARZIRHEBTERUAR
SBITRREEeR#)

R—ZZBE-_—_F#+=-_RA=+—H0 ' &x&
BULUARBFTENIRITRR S &%
AR BB RZRGERITERD R
A #)78,744,000% T( =& = — F:
319,017,000 7t ) K& #7441,325,000/%8
JTT(ZZF——% :381,882,0007T) > A
R W INE 785 AR B HMNE B IR 1501 &
WHiE - EEMMNEEERTEZRR -

29. BORROWINGS 29. B
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
ED FERE mEh FERED
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MI5E FHET TET FET FET
Secured B
Bank borrowings SRITER (a) 2,526,469 252,507 1,179,308 2,025,782
Other borrowings HibfEm (b) 66,000 99,000 1,885,741 =
Notes payable ENZEE () - - 62,628 =
2,592,469 351,507 3,127,677 2,025,782
Unsecured fiiig

Other borrowings EAh &K (b) 959,270 562,028 345,327 637,604
Notes payable FEZEE (©) 297,000 - = =
Corporate bonds nalfEH (d) 604,988 = 680,000 =

Loans from related parties  B#:E 7 B
(note 41(b)) (M3 41(b)) (e) 1,113,850 - 1,251,084 =
2,975,108 562,028 2,276,411 637,604
5,567,577 913,535 5,404,088 2,663,386
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

29. BORROWINGS (cContinued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, total current and non-current

borrowings were repayable as follows:

B (#)

29.

=+—8
FHAT -

RZEBEZ_—_FR_E-_—F+=A
CRBRIEREERBRE R

Borrowings others than

Bank borrowings

bank borrowings

RITER BR(TEFERITER)

2022 2021 2022 2021

—EB_—F T B —_FET—_—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT FET FAT

On demand or within one year 1ZH &si—F R 2,526,469 1,179,308 3,041,108 4,224,780
More than one year, but not BB —F + B TBBRE

exceeding two years 66,000 - 486,246 527,865
More than two years, but not  FBBMF - BTBRBTF

exceeding five years 186,507 2,025,782 174,782 109,739

2,778,976 3205090 3,702,136 4,862,384

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated

in the following currencies:

REEERNREEA THIEBEHE

HKS$ RMB Total
BT AR st
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FEx FEx

2022 —E-_F
Bank borrowings RITER - 2,778,976 2,778,976
Other borrowings EAbEK - 1,686,298 1,686,298
Notes payable R - 297,000 297,000
Corporate bonds NElESH 604,988 - 604,988
Loans from related parties fAETER 523,000 590,850 1,113,850
1,127,988 5,353,124 6,481,112
HK$ RMB Us$ Total
BT AR Vi BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FAT

2021 —E-—F

Bank borrowings RITER - 3,205,090 - 3,205,090
Other borrowings EfER - 2,868,672 - 2,868,672
Notes payable TENEZE - 62,628 - 62,628
Corporate bonds NRfESH 680,000 - - 680,000
Loans from related parties FE R ER 523,000 678,940 49,144 1,251,084
1,203,000 6,815,330 49,144 8,067,474
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

29. BORROWINGS (cContinued)

The range of effective interest rates at 31 December were as

29. B (&)

RT-ZA=1+—H BERENEN&EELN

follows: T
2022 2021
—E-CF B
Bank borrowings RITIEK 4.65% - 10.26% 4.65% - 10.26%
Other borrowings HiER Nil - 18.00% Nil = 15.00%
Z£%18.00% £%15.00%
Notes payable FANES Nil Nil - 3.6%
=z £E36%
Corporate bonds NANEFH 8.80% - 10.00% 8.80% - 10.00%
Loans from related parties BERER 8.00% - 12.00% Nil - 12.00%
8.00% £ 12.00% £FE12.00%
The borrowings are arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the BRUREEMELHE  SREEAER

Group to fair value interest rate risk.

(@) As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings of
approximately HK$2,778,976,000 (2021: HK$3,205,090,000)
were secured by:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

200
-

corporate guarantee given by certain subsidiaries of the
Group;

corporate guarantee given by a related company of the
Group;

personal guarantee given by a director of the Company;
equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group;

the Group’s property, plant and equipment (note 20);

the Group’s investment properties (note 21); and

the Group’'s properties under development and
properties held for sale (note 25).
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SRS

(a)

RZE-_—_F+-A=+—H" =&
EERRITE F492,778,976,000
Bt (Z& = —4F : 3,205,090,000
BIT) A TN SIBEE IR -

() AEEETHEBRRRMEN
NRYER

iy ANEEBEBARRENDR
BR

Zl

(i) ARFERELOBEAER
(iv) AKEETHIERRRBGE

v) AEENVE- - BEMRE
(Fft&E20)

viy REEBEMNKEEDECHF
21): &

AEBEERMERFELE
W% (BEE25) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B{2 —F — —F 1+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

29. BORROWINGS (cContinued)

(a)

(Continued)

As disclosed in note 2(c), as at 31 December 2022, as a
result of not making scheduled repayment of loan principal
and/or interest and breach of other loan covenants
during the year, the FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings
comprising the bank borrowings of entire principal amount
of approximately HK$250,129,000 and approximately
HK$1,316,700,000 respectively, together with the interest
payables of approximately HK$103,437,000 became due
and repayable on demand. In particular, due to not making
scheduled repayment of interest and breach of other loan
covenants during the year, the amount of approximately
HK$1,316,700,000 of a non-current bank borrowing was
reclassified as the current liabilities which was included in the
FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group has received
a repayment notice from a relevant bank to demand
for repayment of total outstanding principal amount of
approximately HK$250,129,000 included in the FY2022
Defaulted Bank Borrowings, together with the interest
payables. Details are set out in Company’s announcement
dated 6 March 2023.

In addition, subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Company
has received another repayment notice from another
relevant bank to demand for repayment of total outstanding
principal amount of approximately HK$1,316,700,000, which
was secured by, among other things, a guarantee by the
Company (as a guarantor) in favour of the bank, included in
the FY2022 Defaulted Bank Borrowings, together with the
respective interest payables. Details are set out in Company’s
announcement dated 17 March 2023.

29. B

(a)

NG
(%)

—=— —

_7__

AN B FE 2(c) PR 1 55
F+-—A=+—8" l$%@%¢
NARBIRTETERBEEERE
SRR F B E R H A E K
R S _HFEHRITE
m@%ﬁﬂﬁm 2EAE S
2 R4 A250,129,000 7 7T N 49 A
1,316,700,000 7% 7T » 5 0 FE& 1~ F
8.#49103,437,000% L& B B 2 2B
BEREER - BBME - BAKE
RAFERBIRTATERPEETF
%it&ﬁm%wﬁ- + JEBNHAER
178 3 #91,316,700,00078 7L & &
%ﬁ TREAERHAERG  UBEEEZZ
I EENBITEREF -

RZZ-_—_F+=-—A=+—H& "
REBUREAERERITE HNERE
M EREBEEBIAZZ __8F
BABRTERRZREELASER
#9250,129,0007 JT * 5 H0 & - F|
B #BHEHRARARBHAE-Z
TZFEZANBRRE -

o R-ZE - —F+-A=+—
A% AEBWRE S —REHR
TEEMNS—MHERRAN BX
EBEEBIWA-ZS - —FFELHR
TERPZAEBERASREREY
1,316,700,000 8 (B LA(EF &
B)ARRBI(EBERA) MZIRTT
EH MR ABIRIE) - SINEERE
NFE - FBENARTBH A=
T=F=A+EHHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

29. BORROWINGS (cContinued)

(a)

(Continued)

Furthermore, as disclosed in note 2(c), due to not making
scheduled repayment of loan principal and/or interest
subsequent to 31 December 2022, the FY2023 Defaulted
Bank Borrowings comprising the bank borrowings of entire
principal amounts of approximately HK$65,890,000 and
approximately HK$318,507,000 respectively, together with
the interest payables of approximately HK$61,722,000
became due and repayable on demand subsequent to the
end of the reporting period. In particular, among the FY2023
Defaulted Bank Borrowings, a bank borrowing with the
entire principal amount of approximately HK$318,507,000,
of which approximately HK$66,000,000 and approximately
HK$252,207,000 were classified as current borrowing portion
and non-current borrowing portion, respectively as at 31
December 2022, has subsequently become due and repayable
on demand as a result of not making scheduled repayment of
loan principal subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s other borrowings of
approximately HK$165,000,000 were secured by:

(i)  corporate guarantee given by certain subsidiaries and
related companies of the Group;

(i)  corporate guarantee given by an independent third
party;

(i)  personal guarantee given by a director of the Company;
and

(iv)  properties owned by an independent third party.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s remaining other
borrowings in principal amount of approximately
HK$1,521,298,000 were unsecured and unguaranteed.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a number of
unutilised loan facilities of approximately HK$3,186,235,000
(2021: HK$5,293,846,000) which is unsecured and
unguaranteed. Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the
Group has further obtained a number of new unsecured and
unguaranteed loan facilities from a number of fund providers
with an amount of approximately HK$2,222,000,000 (the
“2023 New Facility”), as defined in note 2(c)), and the Group
has drawn down approximately HK$83,721,000 of the 2023
New Facility.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited  Annual Report 2022

29. B (&)

(a)

(%)

AN A 20 PR IR EE - =
E-—F+-A=+—H%  BX
EERBRBETEFHERERAN
R/ FHNE T = FE
WERITERERBERITER 2
A& 27D B4 A 65,890,000 75
JT X 49 /318,507,000 7T © SN
FERTR B 4961,722,000 7 7T 2 A R
LHIREEIHNARENREER - &
BT F-ET - CBIEELERT
BERA - AN & 8% 47318,507,000
BILZBITERER RZF
ZTZE+ZA=+—B5REH
66,000,000 7% JT & #7252,207,000
BT fE A B8 5K E 5 K JERN ER
BREly  EREBRRERBRIET
EBRHERERASTEMERS
REFNHARBERERKEE -

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H" 'K
£ @ 1) H fth £ 7% 165,000,000 78 7T
AT S EEE R -

() AEBEETHERFKEH
NARHH R AR

(i) BUE=TTREMDAER

(i) ADRRBFELHHBEAER
&

vy HMBIE=THEENHME -

R-FBE-_—F#+=-_A=+—H"
AEBFRGEMERTSSED
1,521,298,000 7% T & FE K 1 & &
R o

RZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H"
AEBHEZERDEESRME
#93,186,235,000/8 w( =& = —
£F 1 5,293,846,0007 T ) & &
BN EER RN T - —F+ =
A=+—H% A&EBEgZ2XES
RHEDESZEFEERREER
#) B kRl E 492,222,000,000 5 7T
([ZZEZ=FFmE] TERW
$20) AEBBRR-Z-_=F
e & 4983,721,000 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

29. BORROWINGS (cContinued)

(b)

(Continued)

In particular, as disclosed in note 2(c), as at 31 December
2022, as a result of not making scheduled repayment of
loan principal and interest during the year, other borrowings
of approximately HK$9,350,000, together with the interest
payables of approximately HK$1,064,000 became due and
repayable on demand.

In addition, due to not making scheduled repayment of loan
principal and interest subsequent to 31 December 2022,
the current other borrowing of entire principal amount of
approximately HK$220,000,000, together with the interest
payables became due and repayable on demand subsequent
to the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other borrowings of
HK$1,885,741,000 were secured by:
(i)  corporate guarantee given by certain subsidiaries and

related companies of the Group;

(i)  corporate guarantee given by an independent third
party;

(i)  personal guarantee given by a director of the Company;

(iv) intragroup group receivables of a subsidiary of the
Group;

(v)  properties owned by an independent third party;

(vi)  the Group's investment properties (note 21); and

(vii) the Group's properties held for sale (note 25).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s remaining other
borrowings of approximately HK$982,931,000 were
unsecured and unguaranteed.

29. B (&)

(b)

(%)

HEgims - M 20mRE -
AAREENAFERBIRTEE RN
HEEERASBLNE - Hifh
X #99,350,000 78 T4 [F & 1 7 B
#)1,064,000/8 TTE 2| B R AR 2

oh  RZEZZF+ A =+—
A% AARSEREIEETERSR
EEERASELRNE  2848¢
%8 #/4220,000,000 8 LR BN ER E
18 FGE R E AL E B RIS R
BEEARBIEERKEE -

RZFZ—FF+ZA=+t—H &
&£ B H fib 2 30 1,885,741,000 7
TCERMA TS EEEE

() AEBEETHER KE
RARHE D FIFER

(i) BIB=ZFREMNRFER

(i) ARFREBFEHOEARER

(v, AEE—-REHRBARNEHE
NEE YR

) HBEBIYE=FHENME

(i) NEBMKREYWECKHF
21): &

(i) AEEBELEYE(MNE
25) °

RZZEZ—F+=A=+—H" =K

£ [E g T E b {8 51 47982,931,000
VS TC A I IR I (R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G A R MR

29. BORROWINGS (cContinued)

(0

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has utilised
approximately HK$297,000,000 of notes payable which was
unsecured and interest-free.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has utilised
approximately HK$62,628,000 of notes payable which was
secured by a charge over the pledged bank and restricted
deposits amounted to approximately HK$61,250,000 (note
28).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had
outstanding corporate bonds of HK$500,000,000 (2021:
HK$:500,000,000) (“Bond 2021") and HK$104,988,000
(2021: HK$180,000,000) (“Bond 2022") bearing interest at a
rate of 10% per annum and 8.8% per annum with maturity
on 18 May 2021 and 31 March 2022, respectively, of which
Bond 2021 had been further extended to 22 May 2022.
The corporate bonds were guaranteed by a subsidiary of the
Group and unsecured.

In particular, as disclosed in note 2(c), as at 31 December
2022, as a result of not making scheduled repayment of
loan principal and interest during the year, corporate bonds
of approximately HK$604,988,000 in aggregate, together
with the interest payables of approximately HK$77,754,000
became due and repayable on demand.

The Group has been actively negotiating with the bondholder
of Bond 2021, for possible settlement arrangements, which
may include, among other things, to use assets for settlement
or to extend the maturity date of the borrowing. Up to the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, the
relevant bondholder has not made any demand for immediate
bond redemption.

Regarding Bond 2022, after consultation with the legal
advisor, the directors of the Company considered the
extension of repayment of Bond 2022 is subject to the
contractual term of the bond instruments.
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29. B

(@)

K ()

RZF-_—_F+-A=+—H &
& E ¥ B %297,000,000 7 7T 2 fE
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F#)61,250,000 78 7T 2 FaC A
(PfF5E28) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B{2 —F — —F 1+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

29. BORROWINGS (cContinued)

(e)

As at 31 December 2022, amount of approximately
HK$1,113,850,000 was overdue, together with respective
interest accrued of approximately HK$143,987,000, and
became repayable on demand.

Such amount was advanced by the related parties (i.e.
the GSFG Group), of which the chairman and director
of the Company is also the chairman and director of
GSFG, comprising RMB-denominated loans with principal
amount of approximately RMB$537,136,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$590,850,000) and Hong Kong dollars-
denominated loans with principal amount of approximately
HK$523,000,000.

As disclosed in noted 2(c), the 1st Tranche Consideration
will be used to settle the outstanding principal amount of
all the loans advanced by the GSFG Group of approximately
HK$1,113,850,000 in aggregate and all interest accrued
thereon up to the 1st Tranche Completion. Details are set out
in Company’s circular dated 28 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2021, amount of approximately
HK$1,251,084,000 was unsecured and repayable within
1 year of which approximately HK$1,141,940,000 was
interest bearing ranged from 8% to 12% per annum
and unguaranteed, and approximately HK$49,144,000
was interest-free and unguaranteed, and approximately
HK$60,000,000 was bearing an interest at 10% per annum
and guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of investment
properties amounting to approximately HK$39,185,000
(2021: HK$46,992,000) (note 21) and properties held for
sales amounting to approximately HK$28,857,000 (2021:
HK$32,136,000) (note 25) of a subsidiary of the Group
were pledged as security for a bank borrowing granted to a
former subsidiary which had been overdue. A provision for
the obligation of a subsidiary of the Group have been made
and included in other payables as the repayment of the bank
borrowing from a former subsidiary was in default.

29. B

(e)

NG

RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H" %
%8 #91,113,850,00078 7T 2 3@ HA

i [F) A5 FE FE AT R B 40143 987,000
BT BERBENER

FHSEHBEEFENcREER
MRRBIZ EERESTHREN
CRCERRES) EPREMU
ARBHEZER (A& SBHNA
A R # 537,136,000 7T (48 & R 4
590,850,000 7T )) R LA TLEHAE
ZER(ARe£ 545 523,000,000
/%75)

B2 TR - F—HER
BERAREEETsRERLNZ
FTEERMKREELASERNB
1,113,850,000 8 T R H & % — &
BHRESKAILL 2B RS -
HBEHRAR 75%%_%:f¢
+=—A=-+NHZ®&

RZZE=—F+=A :—I——EI
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NEEFE(R © #949,144,0008 T AR
B REPEIR  #760,000,00078 L%
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. E5 K EAEARIA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade payables B G ENFIA 2,529,794 2,940,351

Wages and salaries payables ENTIERFS® 6,597 13,437

Accruals FEETE A 2,728 4,092

Other tax liabilities HEmfEEaRE 93,898 73,874

Interest payables JERTHLE 425,073 222,023
Interest payables to related parties FERTRAE S 2 A8 (FisE41(b))

(note 41(b)) 143,986 33,857
Secured deposits from contractors BEBAREZS 307,652 355,490
Other payables H h ET5RIE 463,462 342,805
Other payable to a non-controlling At B AT I MR 25 2 5RIA (MY 5T (a))

interest (note (a)) 43,407 48,554
Other payables to related parties Hoqth e < B 77 5RO (9T (a) &2 41(b))

(note (a) and 41(b)) 6,080 5,271

1,492,883 1,099,403
4,022,677 4,039,754
Note: BisE -
(@) Other payables to a non-controlling interest and related parties are unsecured, (a) HiE ISR R EE S 2 RIB A E

non-interest bearing, and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

31.

The credit period of trade payables in relation to trading of
commodities is ranged from 10 to 360 days (2021: ranged from
10 to 360 days); provision of real estate and property investment
is ranged from 7 to 30 days (2021: ranged from 7 to 30 days) and
trading of home appliances and building materials is 30 days (2021:
30 days).

Included in trade payables are trade creditors with the following
aging analysis, based on invoice dates, as of the end of reporting
period:

30.

EZREMENSTIEZ)

EREARRZNEBE S ENZENEERD
AFI10E360B(ZZFE=—4%F: NF10
£360A) : BHARERMERMERE
BEEBUNT7E2308 (ZE=—F :
T7%30RH): REEREARKBREN
B EEHA308(ZZ=—F : 30H) °

EoLEMEMNZRERLREE 5EMNE
o ERRERREREZHBHNRER
DT -

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
0-30 days 0-30 H 1,472,737 1,870,833
31-60 days 31-60 H 14,310 7,178
61-90 days 61-90 H 328 4,392
91-120 days 91-120 H 3,717 7,592
Over 120 days 1208 E 1,038,702 1,050,356
2,529,794 2,940,351
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 31. BIREER

(@)  Guarantee in respect of borrowings of a former subsidiary: (@) FRAIMNBERA R ZEFEEH 2R
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Non-current portion JERNEER - 89,628
Current portion BNEAER 5> 80,482 -
Financial guarantee WIS HER 80,482 89,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

31. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (Continued)

(a)

Guarantee in respect of borrowings of a former subsidiary:
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group issued guarantee of
approximately HK$80,482,000 (2021: HK$89,628,000) to
bank in respect of banking facilities granted to a former
subsidiary, and the guarantee has been reclassified to current
portion according to the scheduled repayment dates of the
banking facilities. Under the guarantee, the Group and other
independent third parties were jointly and severally liable for
all or any of the borrowings of each of them from the bank
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments
when due.

The maximum liability of the Group at 31 December 2022
under the guarantee is the amount of bank borrowings
drawn under the guarantee at that date of approximately
HK$1,437,293,000 (2021: HK$1,660,573,000).

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties:

As at 31 December 2022, guarantees amounting to
approximately HK$471,467,000 (2021: approximately
HK$24,509,000) are given to banks with respect to
mortgaged loans procured by the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Such guarantees will be released by banks upon
the issuance of the real estate ownership certificate to the
purchasers or the satisfaction of the mortgaged loans by
the purchasers, whichever is earlier. Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by
these purchasers, the Group will be responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title
and possession of the related properties. The directors of the
Company consider that the likelihood of default in payments
by purchasers is minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

32. DEFERRED TAX 32. IR IE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised REBERZBRLEHERBENEENT :

by the Group:

Property,
Investment plant and

Inventories properties  Putoption  equipment LAT Total
UES T

(3 G LES BN REfE  LHEER st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TEL TEL TAL TEL TAL

At 1 January 2021 R-B--%-f-H 316,227 474,338 1221 9,573 (31,333) 776,032
Credit to profit or loss for the year st AREE 2 B3 (i 12)

(note 12) (59,256) (32,743 (7.227) (9,362) (3,538) (112,126)
Disposal of subsidiaries WERBRR (M 37()i)

(note 37(aiii) - (66,027) - - 16,798 (49,229)
Exchange differences ERES 11,582 18,354 - 219 (1,310) 28,845
At 31 December 2021 and RZB=-F+ZB=+-BR

1 January 2022 “E--%-f-H 268,553 393,922 - 430 (19,383) 643,522
(Credit)icharge to profit or loss for the (3t A) /HIBAEE 7 %

year (note 12) (B3t 12) (179,158) (53,201) - - 12370 (219,989)
Exchange differences ERER (16,685) (37,013) - (44) 1238 (52,504)
At 31 December 2022 R-E--E+-A=1-H 72,710 303,708 - 386 (5,775) 371,029
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for BB 2WE N IEERIBA SR D T A0
financial reporting purpose: I

2022 2021

—E-CF T —F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Deferred tax liabilities EIEFTAE & 371,029 643,522

EFEHEBERAT 202258 209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. IEAEBIE (&)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—0 ' &A5H
approximately HK$507,009,000 (2021: HK$442,123,000) which B ] A EH SE R 2Os F 2 R E) A B IR S
were available for offset against future profits and are subject 8 #9507,009,000 7L( = F = — 4 -
to expiry period of five years. No deferred tax assets have been 442,123,000/ 7C) - EMEAAAFE - |
recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses due to the AR g TEUBI AR 3R 8 A SRR - B E A st
unpredictability of future profit streams. FIEIEEEREREERIEEE
Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, withholding BEPBERERKER - B B E
tax is imposed at 10% on dividends declared to foreign investors REIRNZTZENF— A — BRI
in respect of profit earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January FRNEIREE TR 2R EAR10% &Y
2008 onward. At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate TR MTEIOR o IR E AR - B
amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed B AR ARDIREFIEEERERRLT
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have IR ER TR Z 58425847 395,372,000
not been recognised is approximately HK$395,372,000 (2021: BT (ZF=—%F :783,766,000/87T) °
HK$783,766,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of ARZEERRREE AR AERET]
these differences because the Group is in a position to control the DA SR EZEEREEMNRR BR
timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable AR RZEZFEA LTGRO -
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Number Number
of shares of shares
BRE e
Notes ‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
BtEE T FE T T FAET
Authorised: JETE ¢
Ordinary shares of SRMAEC.05BTL
HK$0.05 each il
At 1 January ®—B—H 8,000,000 400,000 8,000,000 400,000
Share consolidation Bin& P (a) (7,840,000) - - -
Share sub-division A% ¥ 48 (a) 7,840,000 - - -
At 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—H 8,000,000 400,000 8,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRBE
Ordinary shares of HIRME{EO.05E T2
HK$0.05 each LA
At 1 January m—HB—H 5,460,125 273,006 4,550,105 227,505
Shares issued on placement Bt &RF3E1THS (b) - - 910,020 45,501
Share consolidation ffn & Bt (a) (5,350,923) - - -
Capital reduction R%15 Hr 48 (a) - (267,546) - -
At 31 December R+=BA=+—H 109,202 5,460 5,460,125 273,006
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 20 April 2022, a special resolution has been passed by the shareholders of
the Company for a capital reorganisation which involves share consolidation,
capital reduction and share subdivision.

The Company implemented the share consolidation on the basis that every fifty
(50) issued and unissued existing shares of par value of HK$0.05 each in the
share capital of the Company be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share
of par value of HK$2.50 each in the share capital of the Company. The share
consolidation was effective on 22 April 2022.

Immediately following the share consolidation becoming effective, the capital
reduction be implemented, pursuant to which, (i) any fractional consolidated
share in the issued share capital of the Company arising from the share
consolidation was cancelled; and (i) the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$2.45 on each
of the then issued consolidated shares such that the par value of each issued
consolidated share was reduced from HK$2.50 to HK$0.05. The credit arising
from the capital reduction in the amount of approximately HK$267,546,000
was applied to offset against the balance of the accumulated losses of the
Company up to the effective date of the capital reduction.

Immediately following the capital reduction, each of the authorised but
unissued consolidated shares of HK$2.50 each was sub-divided into fifty (50)
authorised but unissued new shares of par value HK$0.05 each. The capital
reduction and share subdivision became effective on 12 July 2022.

Details of the capital reorganisation are set out in the Company’s circular dated
30 March 2022.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2022 rank pari passu with
the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

On 7 April 2021, 910,020,000 ordinary shares of the Company were allotted
and issued to the placees at HK$0.3 each, pursuant to a placing agreement
dated 18 March 2021. The placement was completed on 7 April 2021 and the
premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately HK$227,034,000
after deducting the share issuance expenses, was credited to the Company’s
share premium account.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and accumulated losses.

33. A& (&)

(a) RZZFZZFWAZ+AH ' ARaREER
—TERRIRER  UETTRAEAE - R
KA & BF - BRASEIR I AR AR H7 48

ARAREBIRGA G EEBBAARBRA
RER+GO)EFRAEMESETZRAED
BT RAKRBEITIRA A P BAR RIS —(1)
R EE2.508 T2 A D - IRIDA G
ERZEZ_FHA=t+=HEM -

ZEERD B HHENRE - RIS T E i -
Bt - () B E HFRA A RE BEITRAF
EEZTRSHEHIRO FUEH  R>iE
ARIBBITRANZBFHEAERA (RERE
BEBRTAMRMD TR 2.458TAR) TIAY
W BEFREETA MR ZEESH2.50
S TLHIRE 0.05 7T © BRANBIRFTE £ 2 #
#£49267,546,000 & CE AEEEAAREHE
REAHIR AR B Bl 2 RaT B4 -

ZFERABIRE - F—RFREE2.508T
ZEEBRBEITAMRBRNDED T AR+ (50)
% & B E {5 0.05 7 7T 2 VA E B R EITH AR
7 REHBERBROIFAER T __F+
B+—B4&x-
BRASHEFBEHIRARRBHRAE=ZS ==
=A=tRZEK -
EHREBE_T__F+_A=1+—HILF
ERTZBRHMESF BEERRASEITR
NEHRFHAL -

(b) HZZ=——FPA+EA 910,020,000 AR
RIEBREREASHA-T-_—F=A+N
A 2 B & 13 LA S A% 0.3 78 Jo (M) A g A BE 3
RET BREFER_Z-_—FNNA+tHT
B BT 19 2 0k B 49227,034,000 %8 7T
(IR ARD BT %) Bt ARR BRI
B o

AEEEREEARUBRASEETE
BARELE  ANERELEBERRK
AEBFEASIERBEERKEZANE
W AEEMEBREBREEFGFELEL
A o

AEENERNEBEEARAFE AR
s ETERERTERA  HER
REtER
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure of the
Group on a timely basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Total debt comprises borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity (i.e. share capital, accumulated losses and
other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021
were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F -~ —4#F 1+ - H=+—HIFFZF

33. A& (&)

AAREFERHARENEREREE
1TEM - ERB|HH—#D - AARE
EFEEREARAR BEHERENAEH
MER - AEBSERIRMERE - BT
A R OB - A RBITHES T
MEBREARE -

AEEREHREHBEANZLREE
BN o L RIVZERFER AR E
BAGE - BHAECRER KRR
BRI EREER 2 ABARED (B
A REtEEEEMEE) - MG
REaBRIN ©

RZEZ—_FR_FE-_—F+=A
—t+—HZEEHCHBRALERRAT

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total debt (borrowings) BERRBRE (ER) 6,481,112 8,067,474
Less: bank and cash balances B IRITRIRE R (88,415) (341,393)
Net debt B HER 6,392,697 7,726,081
Adjusted capital KRR AR AR 1,675,868 2,953,934
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BTSSR M AL R 381% 262%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have
a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a
report from the share registrars weekly on substantial share interests
showing the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

34. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 34, R AT BMRARREARAT]

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Holding company statement of financial

R

(a) ZERRAMHIRRR

position
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE =+ =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURP B A T8 4,255,852 4,605,638
4,255,852 4,605,638
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hib kT 33 3,744
Bank and cash balances RITRIB e &% 3,626 18,546
3,659 22,290
Current liabilities REBasE
Borrowings B 1,708,932 1,839,105
Other payables Hith e E 240,882 81,728
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERPB B AR IR 22,112 24,215
Financial guarantee BT TSTEIR 497,797 -
2,469,723 1,945,048
Net current liabilities REBEESRE (2,466,064) (1,922,758)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERAEHEE 1,798,788 2,682,880
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,798,788 2,682,880
Capital and reserves BRARFE
Share capital &N 33 5,460 273,006
Reserves ER 34(b) 1,784,328 2,409,874
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,798,788 2,682,880
* represented balance less than HK$1,000 * JEEREET 2 1,000 78T
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and EFgR T =F=A=1H

signed on its behalf by:

HAEFRATATRERE

Yao Jianhui Xia Lingjie
whzE BERE
Director Director

EFE EBEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

34. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

34. ERATHMBMRRERREARRDF
RESE w)

(b) RATEEEEE

Share
Shares  redemption  Contributed Shareholder's ~ Accumulated
premium reserve surplus  contribution losses Total
RIEE ROBERE E4Es RREE Zith @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR TR TR TR
(note 35(b)(i))  (note 35(b)iii)) (note (a)) (note (b))
(B 35(0)))  (BiFaE 35(b)i) (FitzE @) GE0)
At 1 January 2021 RZE_—F-F-H 3,189,824 2,269 29,412 1392 (862,479) 2,360,418
Shares issued on placement  EYEBE{TIR(A (M3 33)
(note 33) 227,034 - - - - 227,034
Total comprehensive income  REE2ANHEE
for the year - - - - (177 578) (177578)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE-—E+-A=+-BkK
1 January 2022 “E--%-f-H 3,416,858 2,269 29,412 1392 (1,040,057) 2,409,874
Reduction of share capital upon ~ FRA S 4% 7 RAEI (st
capital reorganisation 33)
(note 33) - - - - 267,546 267,546
Total comprehensive income  REE2ENHLEE
for the year - - - - (893,092) (893,092)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+-f=1-H 3,416,858 2,269 29,412 1392 (1,665,603) 1,784,328
Notes: FffsE
(@) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the (a) RRBBHBHBIEARARBBEEEE
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to HETENR B AR 2 EEFEBEA
a group reorganisation and the nominal value of the ordinary shares ARABDREBWNEAREEFEM
issued by the Company in exchange thereof. BITEBRZREE D
(b)  The shareholder’s contribution of the Company represents contribution (b) RARZBREFERR_E—Z_FR

from the intermediate holding company for cancellation of the
Company’s share options in 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

35. RESERVES

(@) Group

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Share redemption reserve represents the aggregate
amount of the share capital and share premium in
relation to the repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Merger reserve arose as a result of business combination
under common control.

Statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of
the PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund
account as required by the relevant PRC statue.

Other reserve mainly represents gains/losses arising from
changes in Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control.

The shareholder’s contribution of the Group represents
(i) waiver of an amount due to a shareholder of the
Company in 2001 and 2002, (ii) the contribution from
the intermediate holding company for cancellation
of the Company’s share options in 2012 and (iii) the
contribution from the ultimate holding company on
acquisition of a subsidiary in 2020.

35. f#fE
(a) &=&EE

(b)

B 17 S 5 A Wi

PoE - CFEF =1 —HIFFE

)

AKE GO BREHRGA 8%
R 2 ERGER AR A BAE
CELELTR

BEEEREN

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

RERSHEREE AR
A BRI ZE 2 Al f#
DIKFARBBE - ERE
PEEE Y RIS BHRR - K
NRAEHFRENEBEREE
EERTRHEE -

Bein B B i et B BB [ A
RARGFHATERE 2 RA R

Pt B 4ERE

BB RN ERZES T
MRS EHES -

R TE e tE R TR AR B P B
PIEYIRE - #5 Bl & 2 =)
M ) BL = T A 0 B e 4
Bk

HitfEmERREEAARARER
MBARNERZES (T8
BERARIEHIME) FTELE R Wt
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35. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vii) The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the net assets
of foreign operations into presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 4(m) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(viii) FVTOCI reserve represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVTOCI that are held at the
end of the reporting period.

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed in the annual general meeting
dated 26 March 2014 which became effective on the same date.
The Scheme will remain in force for ten years commencing from the
effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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35. f#E (&)

(b) FEEMHERBN @)
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
20 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total or other amount as determined
by the board of the Company by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which
is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of the offer, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 December 2022, no shares in respect of which options has

been remained outstanding under the Scheme (2021: Nil).

Options are lapsed if the employee leaves the Group and the
relationship with consultants is ceased or terminated by the Group.

36. ARMDABERNTR @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. 8B & RERME

OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries in prior year (a)

(i) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinpeng Fresh Food
Industry Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Xinpeng”)

On 23 June 2021, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
interest in Shenzhen Xinpeng which was principally
engaged in trading of seafood for a cash consideration
of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$18,270,000).

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

RBAEFEHENE LR

() HEFRIFELHEERE
R 2 A ([FRIFTHE )

RZBEZ—FA=Z+=
B AEBUBESREBEAR
# 15,000,000 7C ( 48 & R %)
18,270,000 7T ) HEERE
JIFTHE 2 51% A% » Z A7)
FENEEE G -

REERH - BEFENT

HK$'000
FHTT
Property, plant and equipment W - B KEE 44
Bank and cash balances HRITRIR B AR 2,483
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A EWGRIA 25,215
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 27,742
Release of translation reserve FARBRIE 5 (2,759)
Release of non-controlling interests BRRR FEVE B 1 (8,519)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — BB A F s 1,806
Total consideration satisfied by cash LRSS HERE 18,270
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZBRESRAFHE
Cash consideration received EWBRSRE 18,270
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHERSMRSEED (2,483)
15,787
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. 8B & RERMT &)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) RBEFEHEWNBLF
(%)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries in prior year (Continued)

(i) Disposal of Yue Jin Asia (i) HEZHEZH

WM EE17 R R = —
FEAZ+=80 ~A&£EMU
ITBETHREREHEARE
SRRy B ELARAE o

As stated in note 17, on 23 July 2021, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in Yue Jin Asia for a
cash consideration of HK$1.

REERHMaEFEET

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FHTT

Property, plant and equipment Y - B NEAE 1,403
Other intangible assets HthmpEE 88,851
Bank and cash balances RITRIA S LEER 3,737
Current tax assets BUEATIIE & &= 9
Trade and other receivables H 5 &k E At EWGRIA 10,957
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERFIE (15,762)
Borrowings B (52,800)
Consideration payable FERE (179,826)
Amount due to the Group RS EFIA (305,346)
Current tax liabilities BERTR B i fE (4,725)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEBETE (453,502)
Release of translation reserve 1 o[ 3 (34,114
Derecognition of goodwill (note) TR E (M) -
Assignment of amount due to the Group EEENAEEFE 305,346
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 17) HEME A R (FEE17) 103,142
Total consideration BRE (79,128)
Satisfied by: ARSI R
Cash Re —*
Non-cash e (79,128)

(79,128)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEECZBESRAFE
Cash consideration received BUGRENRE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERSRESEEY (3,737)

(3,737)

* Represents the balance less than HK$1,000

Note: The goodwill had been fully impaired in prior years.

*

FEEEERT 2 1,000 87T

s - MEENBEFERENE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F+ - H=+—HIFFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. 8B & REXRMT &)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries in prior year (Continued) (a) RBEFELHENE AT
(&)

(iii) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang (i) HEFRIFEHEELETR
Industrial Company Limited 28] ([#15A]))
(“Xinhengchuang”)

On 22 December 2021, the Group disposed of its W-ZEZ—F+-HA=+=
entire equity interest in Xinhengchuang for a cash H AEBEUBRSREAR
consideration of RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to # 300,000,000 7T (FHE R %)

approximately HK$367,500,000).

367,500,000 ) HEER
Hr1EAIH 2 ZRALHE o

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: MRHE BN A EFEOT
HK$'000

FET

Property, plant and equipment W - B KEE 4,019
Investment properties AWM 2,224,723
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 39,069
Inventories FE 3,219,639
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A fEWGRIA 385,126
Current tax assets BVERfR IR & = 27,155
Pledged bank balances BHEAIRITAER 68,180
Bank and cash balances RITRIA S LERR 54,527
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERFIE (1,353,920)
Borrowings B (2,666,248)
Contract liabilities ABHBE (1,823,945)
Current tax liabilities BVERFR IR B fE (111,835)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE (88,298)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAETERE (21,808)
Release of translation reserve & o[ 5 5,429
Gain on disposal of a subsidiaries L EHE AR 294,251
Total consideration BRE 277,872
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao By WA 5 A W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. 8B & RERMT &)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries in prior year (Continued) (a) RBEFELHENEAT
(#)

(iii) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang (i) HEFRIFEHEELETR
Industrial Company Limited 2 E] ([#1EA)) (&)
(“Xinhengchuang) (Continued)

HK$'000
FHEIT
Satisfied by: TSR
Cash He 367,500
Non-cash JEIR & (89,628)
277,872
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZESRAFE
Cash consideration received BHERERE 220,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEReMBRSEEY (54,527)
165,973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. 8B & REXRMT &)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEETHELANEBHIER
financing activities
Other
payables Other
toanon- payables
Interest controlling to related Lease
Borrowings payables interest parties liabilities

EftEf HftrfEf

FERINER BES
(S RIS Z5E LA HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Thn TEn TEn TERL
(note 29) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30) (note 40)
(HtzE29) (HtzE30) (GiEE) (rat30) (HtzE40)

t 1 January 2022 RZB--&-A-H 8,067,474 255,880 48 554 521 64,544
Changes from cash flows: Reneg
Repayment to a non-controlling interest B \HEM - - (205) - -
Advance from related parties BEH 27 - - - 1,433 -
Proceeds from borrowings & Txﬁﬁ@%\ 2,813,120 - - - -
Interest paid 58 - (253,584) - - -

£[E5 (3.677.822) - - - -
NG (75,012) - - - -

Repayment of borrowings

Repayment of corporate bonds

Repayment of principal portion on lease ERME
liabilities - - - - (914)

FomF mE (U
:]
mHE
it

ST
Ritd
=3
i
iy
T
NG
St
k>
ﬂm“

Repayment of interest portion on lease ~ EETAEEEZFIBHH

liabilities - - - - (5,524)
Exchange adjustments B A% (646,648) (34,975) (4,942) (624) (6,220)
Other changes: A#E:
Finance cost (note 11) BERA(FiEE1) - 601,738 - - 5,524
Decrease in lease labilities from HEBITERREARRD

modification of leases - - - - (4,767)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-f=1-H 6,481,112 569,059 43,407 6,080 52,643
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. Z8BREREXRMT &

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) METHELENEBYHIER

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities (Continued) (%)
Qther
payables Other
toanon- payables
Interest controlling to related Lease
Borrowings payables interest parties ligbilities
EihpEf At
FiEsItRER BEn
&3 JENFIE 5B B HERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TAL TEL TEL FAL
(note 29) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30) (note 40)
(Fit7E29) (fitz£30) (Fitz£30) iEED) (P 40)
1 January 2021 R=E--%-F-H 12,363,664 230,995 46,916 114,065 59,951
Changes from cash flows; Rengs
Repayment to a non-controlling interest BiEsEms LB - - (230) - -
Repayment to related parties BEEEL - - - (110,536) -
Proceeds from borrowings [BRAERE 5,117,219 -
Interest paid EFIS - (799.271) - - -
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BT ATESHERE 180,000 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEED (6,873,804) - - - -
Repayment of corporate bonds BEANER (374,000) - - - -
Repayment of principal portionon lease ~ ERHEBE A2 HH
liabilities - - - - (6,405)
Repayment of interest portion onlease ~~ EEREEE2HEHA
liabilities - - - - (6,003)
Exchange adjustments e 373,443 3,745 1,868 2,623 2352
Other changes: Eih2E
Finance cost (note 11) BARA (1) - 852,530 - - 6,003
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37(a)) HENBAR (H:37@) (2,719,048) (32,119) - (881)
Increase in lease liabilities from AIAHEEH gL
entering into new leases - - - - 8,683
Decrease in lease liabilities from wiREBYEEARAD
termination of leases - - - - (37)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+-f=1-H 8,067,474 255,880 48 554 5271 64,544
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 S 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

= —F— —

=

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

38.

As at 31 December 2022, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statement, the Group and the Company did not
have any significant contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

HAREE

R-ZZE-_—F+-A=+—8 BIH%
WEREMHAFESEN  AEBRAK
AREBEAMNEARAREGE (T =—
FoE) o

39. COMMITMENTS 39. F&¥E
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted but not yet provided for: BRT4BREHE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE KRG 17,696 21,643
Investment properties under ERRENEREE
construction and inventories 7,246,879 7,827,487
7,264,575 7,849,130
40. LEASE 40. HE
Lease liabilities HEAE

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current reporting

period.

Total future lease

TRINFRABERRAKEHRERE
HRIERE K HAIR -

Present value of

payments the lease payments
RREERBLLE HEREBEZRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
B T B —ET-——=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT FE T FAT
Within one year —F R 10,440 12,029 5,581 5,918
After one year but within —FREMFNRN
two years 10,678 11,627 6,558 6,216
After two year but within MERERFA
five years 24,475 34,545 17,208 23,845
After five years HF% 33,347 41,739 23,296 28,565
78,940 99,940 52,643 64,544
Less: total future interest W ARRF SRR
expenses (26,297) (35,396)
Present value of lease liabilities FA&IE 7 IRE 52,643 64,544
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

40. LEASE (Continued) 40. HE#»)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HERE#)
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as follows: RRBEFBZRESTAT
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Current liabilities mEBaE 5,581 5,918
Non-current liabilities ERBERB 47,062 58,626
52,643 64,544
The Group as lessor: REEERLBEA

The Group leases out investment property under operating leases.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms for an
initial period of 2 to 15 years (2021: 2 to 15 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the minimum rent receivables

AREBBREKLEHELHITEWE - B
KTt HeEEBERBYLSAE2E
1I5F(ZFE=-—F :2515%F) -

RBERR - TAIREKERERTZ

under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BEREWRHESIT

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within one year —F R 29,974 32,781
Later than one year and BB —FET BB E

not later than two years 23,103 31,970
Later than two years and HRIBMEETBA=F

not later than three years 19,059 23,561
Later than three years and Bl =FE BRI

not later than four years 14,372 18,419
Later than four years and BIENFETBBERT

not later than five years 9,067 12,973

After five years FHFE 28,751 35,219

124,326 154,923
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4

226

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B A 205 A W

41.

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BERFRS
In addition to those related party transactions and balances RiZEMBHRREMM I AEE L ZF
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements. R8T 32 5 R AERRII
The Group had the following transactions with its related (@ HFA-  AREEHEEREST DHETU
parties during the year: TR :
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FAT
Related companies REENT
— Commission fee for issue - BITRAREFNASER
corporate bonds (), (ii) - 2,500
— Interest expenses on loans - BERFBAX (), (ii) 124,947 93,705
— Administrative expenses - 1THAX (i), (i) 29 7,156
— Selling expenses - $HEMRX (i), (i) 1,130 4,046
- Management fee income -EBREBEWA (i), (i) - (240)
Director =
— Interest expenses on corporate  — R EIfEENEH X
bond (i) - 4,883
Notes: BREE -

(i) A director, Mr. Yao, has significant influence over the related parties.

(i) The transactions were entered into at the terms mutually agreed with
the related party in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F =~ —4#F+ - H=+—HIFFZF

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following balances with its related parties
during the year:

41. BEHRH &)

(b)

FA-AREEEBETHEENAT
e

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
BiEE FHExT FAT
Related companies BAEANT
— Other receivables (note 27) — Bl aE (43T 27) (i), (ii) 2,740 498
- Interest payables (note 30) - FEAFIE (MisE30) @, (i) (143,986) (33,857)
— Other payables (note 30) — H b fEREIE (MsE30) (), (i) (6,080) (5,271)
— Loans (note 29) - BER(FzE29) (i), (i) (1,113,850) (1,201,940)
Director =
— Loans (note 29) - B (M5 29) (ii) - (49,144)
Notes: T

(i) A director, Mr. Yao, has significant influence over the related parties.

(i) The transactions were entered into at the terms mutually agreed with
the related party in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Key management personnel comprises the directors and
senior management of the Company. The remuneration of

0] EREEHBENREATE

(i)  ZEXRZINAEERBERBRES
R EAREE T A I TE MY BRGRRT 3L ©

TEEEABBREARAEENLS
MERAE - NARIEERHMAK

directors and other member of the Company during the year BRAEEZHMENT ¢
was as follows:
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fees e 1,120 1,700
Salaries and allowances e MoERY 2,709 2,471
Discretionary bonus BtEIEAL 260 307
Employer’s contribution to retirement {& FiRREFGHEIL R
benefit scheme 113 107
4,202 4,585

BNEMREEARAT 2022FF
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42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated
financial statement, the Group has following significant event after
the reporting period:

Disposal of entire equity interest in Shantou
Taisheng

On 3 October 2022, the Group entered into the Framework
Agreement with GSFG Group in respect of the disposal of the entire
equity interest in Shantou Taisheng (the “Disposal”). Pursuant to
the Framework Agreement, on 19 October 2022, the Company
procured Shenzhen Hong Jia Xin Technology Limited (the “Vendor”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and GSFG
procured Shenzhen Baokai Investment Holding Company Limited
(the “Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of GSFG
Group to enter into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, pursuant
to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, the 1st Tranche Sale Equity
Interest (representing 51% of the total equity interest and actual
paid-up registered capital of Shantou Taisheng). Pursuant to the
Sale and Purchase Agreement, subject to the satisfaction (or waiver,
as the case may be) of the conditions precedent, the Group shall
dispose the remaining 49% of the total equity interest of Shantou
Taisheng to GSFG Group within twelve months from the 1st Tranche
Completion. The resolution in relation to the Disposal was duly
passed by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 17 January 2023. The 1st Tranche Disposal
was completed on 22 March 2023. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 3 October 2022, 17 January
2023 and 22 March 2023 and the circular of the Company dated
28 December 2023.
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BREHRER

RS mREMEBORBEMBREESIN
REBBATEAREMREIA

HEIETmREREHRE

RZE-—_F+A=H AEEEBEH
TRMEBTLEERE  NDEREEE
WEET R 2 2 HRE(HESE]D -
RIBERWGZE  RZTEZ=ZF+ A+ N
B ARaEfEARARcBEIEZEN
BRARARINEETRIEERARIE
A REFHRECEN S EEE
FEMBRARRIERREERBRA
AI(T B ) AT AR A% - 1Rt -
B EBRMHRAEREMNEFBKHERE
5 — PR ERSHE I (I BE T Rk 48
fEiE R B S R AMERS51%) o BIERK
R NRE (SER - BERM
TE) SEREHRIRIIR T - AEEFNE—
BEERET_HMARMNEHSREE
MEIEM R 2 Flgr40% Rk #E -
AL EEBEMNABRERER S _=F—
A+tHBIHBREFIRE EEARR
AIREERN BB - E—REHEERZ
E_=F=-A-+-AEK-HEF2
MARARRHA-_Z-_—_F+A=H"
—E=F—A+tARZE=F=
A+ -_HMRAEUERKRARBHEA
T oF+ A+ \BMEK -



PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

E SR

IETAEEEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Equity  Approximate
attributable  gross floor area Estimated date of
Location to the Group ~ (square meters) Type Lease expiry ~ Progress in development completion
rEEEE BNEREEE

ks ERER (Frk) EH ERORED  IREE it TR A
Shantou Chaoshang Financial Centre 48.28% 48516 Complex' 2057 Superstructure under way December 2024
Junction between Haibi Road East and

Zhucheng Road North, Zhugang New City,

Longhu District, Shantou
WSEHE 2 RR L GAEX FETRET “ECmETCA
SRR IS B R IR

TR R R
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park 85.00% 7483 Commercial 2057 In service Completed
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between Jinwan (Bay Culture

Second West Street and Shangang Road, Centre)

East New Habour City, Longhu District,

Shantou
MSERER I [EE ERARR =5z
Mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%i?%ﬁﬁ* (EEiem)

RMBRZRREaERE
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park 85.00% 273,484 Complex* 2057 Phase 1: Completed; January 2024

(Phase 1, 2) Phase 2: Groundwork
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between Jinwan

Second West Street and Shangang Road,

East New Habour City, Longhu District,

Shantou
ISERAREIE (— —H) GAER B ERi “B_RE-R
M?E%HEﬁirﬁﬁé/ | ZHHETR

RUBRI AR ERERE

Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 4) 46.46% 47912 Complex 2084 Superstructure under way December 2023
South City Street, Chaoyang District, Shantou
SRR mIEE (1) FAER FETRET ZEC=51CR
WETHBREEE
Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 4) 46.46% 2497 Kindergarten 2084 Superstructure under way December 2023
South City Street, Chaoyang District, Shantou
SRR mIEE (1) iR FETRETT St
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
BN

Equity  Approximate

attributable  gross floor area Estimated date of
Location to the Group ~ (square meters) Type Lease expiry  Progress in development completion
ARERE BOLREER

HE ERER (Fr%) EA LEORER  IRER Rt TR A
Hunan Jinxiang International Star City 43.35% 13,994 Commercial 2053 In service Completed
Chaohui Road, Yuhua District,

Changsha, Hunan
MEEREREN [ BRARR B
WARITRERHER
Shenyang Waterfront City 85% 2,186 Residential 2082 In service Completed
No. 305/307, Xijiang North Street,

Yuhong District, Shenyang, Liaoning
BRI = BARR B
RELRBT I REATILE 305307 %
Shenyang Waterfront City 85% 12,305 Commercial 2052 In service Completed
No. 299/301, Xijiang North Street, (Shops)

Yuhong District, Shenyang, Liaoning
BRKER 7% (%) BRARR B
RELRBTIREATILE 299301 %
Hefei Time Original Garden 85% 1,943 Commercial 2081 In service Completed
No. 82, Baxia Road, Hefei Economic and

Technological Development Area
ARt RELE [ BRARR B
AETERRE K825
Hefei Lingxiang Garden 85% 6,063 Commercial 2049 In service Completed
No. 449, Huangshan Road, (Shops)

Shushan District, Hefei
AR % (%) BRARR B
AEMELERILHE 4493
Shenzhen Ocean Towers 100.00% 177 Residential 2074 In service Completed
20A, 20H, Tower 5, District A, Phase 3,

Ocean Towers, Seaworld,

Nanshan District, Shenzhen
AIEERE lid BRARR B

FmELEE HREBE3H
A 51204~ 20H
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND HELD FOR SALE

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

E SR

HERSFEHEWE

Equity  Approximate
attributable  gross floor area Estimated date of
Location to the Group ~ (square meters) Type Lease expiry  Progress in development completion
ARERE BOLREER

B BRER (FAXK) B LEONER  IREE fhateri B A
Baoxin Finance (Office) 59.86% 183,877 Complex' 2057 Superstructure under way June 2024
Jiefang Avenue North, Fengshun Street West,

Chaoyang District, Changchun
BMHETL (AT FamE" FETRER “TCmERA
REGAGRBHARIAL - BIREIAE
Weinan Baoneng Prosperity Mansion 51.00% 337,488 Residential 2088 Phase 1: Completed; June 2023

(Phase 1,2) Phase 2: Superstructure under way
Southeast Point, Crossroads of Shuangwang

Avenve (National Highway 310) and Weiging

Road, Linwei District, Weinan
ERERER(— —H) ft= —HBRi: ZE2ZERA
EEmEERET AL (3108E) 8 FETREMY

HERRTFREA
Yunfu Baoneng Yuelan Mountain (Phase 1-3) 85.00% 211,245 Residential 2084 Phase 1: Completed; December 2025
No. 1, Zijing Road, Duyang Town, Phase 2, 3: Not yet commenced

Yunan District, Yunfu
ERERRL(—E=8) i —#:8%T: ZECRECA
ENEREHREALZNR 1T ZoZH AT
Shantou Chaoshang Financial Centre 48.28% 173,466 Complex’ 2057 Superstructure under way December 2024
Junction between Haibi Road East and

Zhucheng Road North, Zhugang New City,

Longhu District, Shantou
Pl Rl FaER" FETRER “ECmETCA
WET AR ER R

SRR AR AR
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park 85.00% 398,965 Complex* 2057 Phase 1: Completed; January 2024

(Phase 1, 3) Phase 3: Superstructure under way
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between

Jinwan Second West Street and

Shangang Road, East New Habour City,

Longhu District, Shantou
ERENAR (- =H) FABRA —HBRK: “TCmE-A

R RV e et i)
AR RRERERE

= FETREAD
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

B SR

Equity  Approximate
attributable  gross floor area Estimated date of
Location to the Group ~ (square meters) Type Lease expiry ~ Progress in development completion
ARERE BOLREER
HE ERER (Fr%) EA LEORER  IRER Rt TR A
Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 2-4), 46.46% 247,091 Residential 2084 Phase 2: Completed and up for sale;  December 2023
South City Street, Chaoyang District, Phase 3-4: Superstructure under way
Shantou
SRR LR (ZEMmE) ft% B RIRE ZECCETCR
WETHBE A EE = W FETREND
Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 3), 46.46% 21,977 Complex? 2084 Superstructure under way September 2023
South City Street, Chaoyang District,
Shantou
SRR LR (=) FamRA LETRERF ZE-Z%NA
TR R EEE
Hunan Jinxiang International Star City 43.35% 34,428 Complex® 2053 Completed and up for sale Completed
(Phase 1-4)
Chaohui Road and Northeast Point of
Jiayu Road, Yuhua District,
Changsha, Hunan
MEBREREN (08 FamEA TIGE B
MERYTREEEREZRERLA
Hunan Jinxiang International Star City 43.35% 4,344 Commercial 2053 Completed and up for sale Completed
(Phase 3, 4)
Chaohui Road, Yuhua District, Changsha, Hunan
HMERRERES (= - n8) A% RIfE B
MR R TRER R
Changsha Baoneng Hall 43.35% 120,451 Residential 2053 Completed and up for sale March 2023
Intersection of Chaohui Road and Jiayu Road,
Yuhua District, Changsha, Hunan
ROBHLNE (i3 TIfE “5-Z%ZR
HERITRERBRERNARER
Changsha Meilian Plaza 4335% 57,750 Residential 2053 Under planning June 2025
Intersection of Chaohui Road and Jiayu Road,
Yuhua District, Changsha, Hunan
RORMES fiE RE ZZCRERA
HBRITRERBRARNARER
Shenzhen Baoneng City Garden 85.00% 87 Residential 2082 Completed and up for sale Completed
16A, Block J, Tower 4, Baoneng City Garden,
Liuxian Avenue North, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen
ABHTEE ft% TIRE B
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